TP ONLYY N anWv3vN

( $hbl N 9 )

T 10 TV




- The accusad moved to strike out this answer on the ground that it was
| hm.'.rl

' The judge advocate replied,
. The commission announced that the motion was not sustained.

Y. Q. From whom did you learn that this priscner's name was Smith?
A, The German knew a little Japanese and I brought over a book and talked
to him 1n Japanese and in German and English, and while I was guarding him
this German told me that this old man beside me -- his name was Smith,

The mocused moved to strike out this answer on the ground that it was
| hearaay.
The judge advocate replied.

The commission announced that the motion was not sustained. Ly S

35, Q. What interrupted your guarding of these priscners?

A, Warrant Officer Ajicka and myself went to Wiszuho Village on an inspec-
tion. AjJiocka came back before me and I was at Misuho Village for twe or thres
days and when I ceame back I found that the German couple were not there. I
do not recall whether the Englishman was there or not.

¥, Q. Did you ever see the Englishman, Smith, again?
A, On August 15, 1945 when we dug up the remains I dug up the remains of
Smith,
' The accused moved to strike the words "I dug up the remains of Smith"
out of the answer on the ground that they were the mere opinion of the wit-
ness.

The judge advocate replied.

The commisslicn directed that the words be strieken out.

17, Q. Did you ever see the Englishman, Smith, again?

|4, No, I did not see him, (

18, Q. Did you ever see the body of Smith again?
A. TYes,

19. Q. Tell the commission how you happened to see the body of Smith again.

A. Around August of 1945 I was attached to the Mizuho Village Detachment.

On the 15th of August a messenger came from the headquarters and said that

four auxiliary Kempeis were to assemble at Gasupan. I and the others went to

| the Miguho Bridge and there Corporal Nakagawa met us and Corporal Nakagawa

| Yed us to the scenme at Gasupan, While we were waiting there First Lieutenant
Atmupzma.mmwmupmwdam_da
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The judge adveoeate replied,
The commission announced that the objection was sustained.

1. %. Did you recognize the features of this corpse that you dug up?
L ] Fﬂ-

2, Q. Whose body was this?
L. It was the body of the Englishman, Smith,

3. Q. What was done with the corpse of Smith?
These corpses were gathered in one spot and cremated there and afterwards

hu;.r were burled,

2L. Q. Following this cremation was anything said by Nakamura with reference

o 1it?
. I do not recsall,

Cross-exanined by the accused:

R5, Q. Was this 59th Regiment that you were a member of a Kempeital organi-
Eation?

#h. No,

|-,. Q. How could Colonel Miyazaki be your commanding officer if you were a
pnember of the 59th Regiment?

L, In April of 1944 I was in the 59th Regiment and we landed on Angfgk. On
July tenth of that same year I received orders to be attached to the First
Datachment of the Eempeitai unit.

27. Q. You said that Colonel Wiyazaki was your commanding officer in July
mben you were ordered to the Kempeitai. Is that the first time he became your

ommanding officer?
hs Yes.

P8, Q. You said that you heard that this man's name was Smith and that you
| aarﬂ it from this German. Did you also hear that this Smith was married to
fa native woman?

i I d4dn't hear that.

« Q. Did you hear that he had always lived in the Palau Islands?

I heard this from scmeone else,
. Q. These thirty Kempeis who came with Captain Naksmura, did they all |
mtnﬂgupth-hndyormm -

31, Q. Did any of them?
lA. Myself and three other auxiliary Kempels dug up the grave of the English~

132, Q. Did the grave have a marker on 1t?
4. ]

How did you know where to
MIHWh#ﬂMwmmm




34. Q. What do you think they instructed you to do?
A, We were told, "Dig the remains that are in here," and we dug.

35, Q. Then no one told you at that time that these were the remalns of
Charlie Smith, did they?
A, No, I didn't hear it,

36. Q. It was not until you were questicned by the Americans that you thought
you had dug up the remains of Charlie Smith, TIsn't that right?
A, I knew that it was Charlie Smith while I was still at Casupan.

|37. Q. When did you first know that it was the remains of Charlie Smith?
|A, Then I started digging I kmew that it was the remains of the Englishman,
Charlie Smith.

|
38, Q. Why? Did somecne tell you it wes the remains of Charlie Smith?
A, DNobody told me, but I had known Smith because I had gone out to get him '
i at Asahi Village and at Gasupan I had guarded him, so after I dug him up

from his appearance I lmew it was Charlie Smith,

39. Q. The body that you dug up, did it bave the same clothes on as when yop
had seen him at Gasupan? !
A, His clothes were a little soiled and torn compared to when he was at
Gasupan., The flesh on his face was somewhat decomposed and his body was
somewhat decomposed but Smith was a very short person and he locked somewhat
like a native so I knew him when I saw him,

m- Q- H“ lh-nl't WA het
A. He was about five feet three or four inches.

41, Q. Was the skin on his face dark like a native when you dug his body
up?

A, DNo, it was not that dark. The flesh around his head was decomposed but
his skin was not so dark,

|
42. Q. Hip flesh wasn't so decomposed then but that you could plek him up
and carry him to the place where he was to be cremated?
A. No, His flesh was not so decomposed that it would come off, It seemed
| that his foot was kind of broken but when we carried him over to the place
of cremation the body was all in one, It did not become separated.
|

« Q. Could you tell from looking at the body how Smith had died?
No, I did not look into that matter.

s

Q. Are you sure his head was still attached to his body?
The head was still on his body.

45. Q. How many bodies were dug up that day?

This question was objected to by the judge advoecate on the ground that
it was irrelevant and immaterial.

; hl“ﬂﬂ.'l.d. : ' s
mmmuum—mm
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The commission did not desire to examine this witness.
The witness said that he had nothing further to state,
The witness was duly warned and withdrew,

The commission then, at 4110 p.m., adjourned until 9 a.m,, tomorrow,

anuary 21, 1948,

60

The judge advocate did not desire to reexamine this witness.
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The commission met at 9:30 A.m,
Present:

Rear Admiral Arthur Q. Robinson, U, S, Navy,
Lisutenant Colonel Hemry K, Roscce, Coast Artillery Corps, United States
w’

~ Lieutenant Colonel Victor J, Garbarino, Coast Artillery Corps, United

States Army,

Lieutenant Commander Bradner W, Lee, junior, U, 8, Naval HReserve,

Major Donald B, Cooley, junior, U, 3. Marine Corps,

Lieutenant Commander Bdwin M, Koos, U. 8., Navy, members, and

Lisutenant Commander Joseph A, Regan, U, 8, Navy, and

Lieutenant James P, Kenny, U. 5. Navy, judge advoeates.

Stewart R. Smith, yeoman first class, U. 5. Navy, reporter.

The accused, their counsel, and the interpreters.

Mnmammﬂmrmmﬂmummmu
approved.

No witnesses not otherwise connected with the trial were present.
A witness for the prosecution entered and was duly sworn,
Examined by the judge advocate:

1. Q. State your name and former rank.
4. VWarrant Officer Ajicka, Misao, Imperial Japanese Army,

&% 9 Hmﬂminth-mm,huuth-um-mrmmh.
(A. OCaptain Nakamurs, Kasuo, IJA; Warrant Officer Kokubo, Chihiro, IJA;
w Nagatome, Yoshimori, IJA,

3 Q. Hdmmmumm.uhhﬂ-l
A: T &id.

|4« Q. Between what dates?
| A, hﬂhﬁ.ﬁr,lﬂ!,uﬂllmﬂmmmm-ﬂﬂﬁm+

Q. In December, 1944, to what unit were you attached?
Imﬂiﬁhlﬂﬂ:l-lnpﬂid.

16, Q. And who was the commanding officer of this antt?
A, Lisutenant Colonel Niyasald,

30




9. Q. When were you in the hospital?
A. I was in the hospital from 15 August 1944 to 16 September 1944.

10. Q. In December of 1944, when you were not in the hospital, who was your
immediate superior in command?
A. Captain Nakamura.

11. Q. Is that the Nakamura who is present in court today?
A. Yes.

12. Q. In December, 1944, where in the Palans were you stationed?
A, At Gasupan,

13. Q. FWhile you were at Casupan did you ever have in custody any priscners}
A, Yea.

14, Q. Do you remsmber a partiduolar prisoner known as the Englishman?
A, Tes,

15. Q. Do you know the name of that man?
A. TYes, I do.

16. Q. That was his name?
A. I heard it from my superior but he was called Charlie Smith,

The accused moved to strike out this answer on the ground that it was
hearsay.

The judge advocate replied,
The commission announced that the motion was not sustained.

17. Q. How did this Charlie Smith /@pbpen to be in custody at Gasupan? V.4
A. I do not know,

18, Q. Do you know who brought him to Gasupan?
A, I do,

|
I 19. Q. Who brought him to Gasupan?
A, Sergesnt Yamada, First Lieutenant Sgno of the Special Higher Section qﬁ
Sergeant Major Tamamoto, .
|
I

20, Q. This Sergeant Yamada that you referred to, do you know to what unit

| be belonged?
Ads 1 do.

| 21, Q. What unit did Yamada belong to?
Ay The First Detachment of the Kempeitai, I believe.

!i. Q. Dd you know who his immediate superior in command was?
A:; Captain Nakamura.

:iii Q. What became of this Charlie Smith?
A, He was executed,




26, Q. Did Yamada shoot Smith?
A, Yes.

27. Q. All through your testimony you have referred to Nakamura as &
captain, Do you mow whether he was a captain in December, 19442
A, I think he was a first lieutenant. He became a captain after that.

28. Q. And after Yamada shot Smith, what was done with the bedy of m
A. He was put in an old antiaireraft ghelter in the meighborhood and
was made into a mound, and a grave.

29. Q. What, exactly, did Nakamura say to Yamadal

A, Ihnmptlinl:hlnrtmtothunl&drﬂidlhﬂmdfmothn
unit he said, "We will do it here," and ordered Yamada to shoot. At that
time there were about three planes in the air and as the nolse was great I
did not hear what Captain Naksmura said but I believe he sald scmething e

30, §. Dnrnuknmthnfirntmtbf!uadﬂ
A, 1 de.

| 31, Q. What is 1t?
A, [Kiyoshi.

32. Q. And what was Yamada's rank in December of 19447
4. Sergeant, I belleve.

33, Q. And what was your rank in December of 19447
A, TVWarrant officer.

e ———— S ——

1., Q. How many times did Yamada shoot Smith?
| A4, Once.

35, Q. Where did he shoot him, if you know?
1. In the back of his neck, % wasn't looking and I do not know for sure
bat T believe he shot in the back of his neck.

1% was the mere opinion of the witness.

i M 1 "':11..‘_‘ k v -';f_‘:- 3 I e
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36, Q. Where is this Sergeant Yamada now?
|4, Right now he 48 in the witness room in the back of this court.

37. Q. Was Sergeant Yamada tried for this of fense?

This question was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that
4t was irrelevant and immaterial.

The accused made no reply.
The commission announced that the—tbjection was sustained.

38, Q. Is this the same execution, the same offense, for which yon were
tried by tiis commission and found guilty of murder?

4. Tes.
| 39. Q. Did Hakamura testify agalnst you at that trial?
| 4. He did.

|

|

| 40. Q. Tho was the senior officer at the scene of this axscution?
A. Captain Nakamura.

| 41. Q. Who tock Smith to the scene of the execution?
| 4  Captain Nakamurs. Dornunmdidhutuk-hhbythuhl.ndlndlmﬂl!'

Examined by the commission:

42. Q, Were there any guards? Who guarded him?
A. GCaptain Nakamura only directed and commanded and I believe somebody

else guarded him.

Neither the judge advocate, the accused, nor the commission desired to
| further examine this witness.

|
| The witness sald that he had nothing further to state.

The witness was duly warned and withdrew.

The judge advocate was called as a witness for the prosecution and was
duly sworn.

Examined by the judge advocate:
1, Q. State your name, rank and present duty. '
| A, James P. Kenny, lieutenant, U, §; Navy, Jw-mmnamwm
and member of the office of the War Crimes, Pacific Fleet.

2. Q. Do you have in your possession any papers dealing with the issues
d.ﬂmm




| counsel, and the interpreters,.

A, This is a report that was forwarded by the lialson office of the Directoy
War Crimes, Pacific Fleet, in Tokyo, Japan, to the office of the Director
War Crimes, Pacific Fleet, at Guam, I, being a member of the staff of the
Director War Crimes, Pacific Fleet, Guam, received this document. The second
document 1s a translation of the original which is in Japanese.

The doocuments produced by the witness were submitted to the accused and
to the commission, and by the judge advocate offered in evidence.

Commander Martin E. Carlson, U, S, Naval Reserve, a counsel for the
accused, made an objection to these documents being received in evidence, as
follows:

We object to this document, sald to be the statement of Hiral, Kyoshi,
translated by Lisutenant Tremayne, on the ground that it should not be ad-
mitted into evidence because it is clearly hearsay, therefore prohibited by
the rules of evidence, This witness, Lieutenant Kenny, has testified it is
true, that he is the legal custodian of this document. He further testified
that he received it in the mail, It wasn't, therefore, written in his
presence, He doesn't know under what circumstances the doocument was written,
He can't testify as to the truth of the document. He can't testify, there-
fore, that the document was made voluntarily. Because of these reascns we
object to this document being entered in evidence against these accused,

The judge advocate replied.

The commission announced that the cbjection was not sustained. There
being no further objection, the documents were so received in avidence, the
original Japanese appended marked "Exhibdt 2" and the English translation
appended marked "Exhibdt 3."

(Examination continued:)

B Q. Wll you nlease read "Exhibit 3"?

The witness read "Exhibit 3.7

The commission then, at 10:15 a.m,, took a recess until 10:30 a.m,, at
which time it reconvened.

Present: All the members, the judge advocates, the accused, their

Archie L, Haden, junior, yeoman first class, U. S, Navy, reporter.
No witnesses not otherwise connected with the trial were present,

James P, Kenny, the witness under examination when the recess was taken,
entered. He was warned that the oath previously taken was still binding and
continued his testimony.

An interpreter read "Exhibit 2."

n-muuddumhdnh_mmwﬂhlu.

| The commission did not desire to examine this witness.
L witness resumed his seat as judge advocate,

'\\
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; . A witneps for the prosecution entered and was duly sworn.

| | Bxamined by the judge advocate:

« Q. State your name, rank and present duty.
| Herbert L. Ogden, commander, U, S. Navy, attached to the office of the
" [Director War Crimes, Pacific Fleet.

-y = 12. Q. If you recognisze the accused, will you state their names and :ranks?
A, T recognize Nakamura and Kokubo but don't recognisze the other, \

I 13. Q. Do you have in your possession any papers dealing with this case?
A I have a statement of Nakamura dated 23 July 1947 and a statement of
(Kokubo dated 24 December 1947.

|
l4. Q. Are you the legal custodian of these papers?
A, I am,

o Q. Will you tell the commission how this statement of Nakamura's ceme
into your possessien?

lA. This statement of Nakamura's was delivered to cur office on Guam by a
IMarine courder from the Commander Marianss Liaison Office in Tokyo.

‘S8, Q. And what, if anything, did you do after you received this statement
of Nakamura?

fA., On the ninth of December, 1947, I interviewed Nakamura at the War Criminsl
IStockede. I presented him the Japanese of the statement that he had made in
|Tbkrh and asked him to certify that it was a trues and correct statement of
[this case, T alec had our interpreter, Mr, Frederick Savory, read Nakamura
th! English translation that had come through from Tokyo and asked Nakamura
|1 he would certify the translation as correct. Nakamura told me at that
'tima that the Japanese statement was true and correct and that the English
translation was correct but becanse he did not read English he did not want
tc sign the English translation.

17. Q. And on what date did you iaterview Nakanura?

« @« Did Hakamura certify to the Japanhese of that statement?
i, Hoga, h

(9. Q. And in your presence did Nakamura sign that statement in Japanese?
4, He did. '

10. Q. ltui?th-didrauuhllhnurlwprmhnteiﬂmmhﬂp
that statement ﬂt--

h_#lquﬂhnmebjnhdhbrthmuﬂmthmuﬂmtnm
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This question was objected to by the accused cn the ground that it was
;ln&dinz.

The judge advocate replied.
The commission anncunced that the cbjection was not sustained,
s I did not.

12. Q. Now, concerning the second statement made hy Koknbo, Will you tell
us how that came into your possession?

he After Kokubo arrived on Guam I interviewed him at the War Criminal Stoc-
kade regarding the execution of the three American aviators and after this I
asked him to write a statement telling me what he had told me verbally.

13. Q. And did you make Kokubo any promises to induce him to make this
istatement?
A, I did not.

14. Q. Did you at any time use force or thrests to make him sign that states
meant?

‘ This question was objected to by the accused on the ground that it was
leading.

The judge advocate made no reply.

|

| The commission announced that the objection was not sustalned.
i- I did ﬂ@'ta

The statements produced by the witness were submitted to the accused and
to the commission and by the judge advocate offered in svidence,

The accused :r*-.;Lnl:a:w;t.l:*;'1 a five-minute recess to allow inspection of the
statements,

| The commission then, at 10:55 a.m., tock a recess until 11:00 a.m., at
|which time it reconvened.

| Present: All the members, the judge advocates, the reporter, the accused,
| their counsel, and the interpreters.

Ne witnecses not otherwise connected with the trial were present.

Herbert L. Ogden, the witness under exanination when the recees was tlkni,
entered, le was warned that the cath previously taken was still binding and
continued his testimony,

Cross-examined by the accused: @

‘gmmm questioned Kokubo, m;mqulﬂnhhuh

nttumm




The acocused replied.

The commission announced that the objection was sustained,
16, . Before you msked Kokubo to glve you this statement didn't he
that he had not killed these aviators?
4. He stated that he had beheaded the third avlator and that he could hav
!done a better job if he had had an army asword instead of his own.
17. Q. Did he say that he was forced to do thilas act of execution?

This question was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that
it was irrelevant, immaterial and went beyond the scope of the direct exami-
nation,
| The acocnsed made no reply.

The commission announced that the objection was sustained,

18, Q. Are you a licensed attorney and an experienced investigator?
de 1 am,

19. Q. In your opinicn en't Kokubo and Nakamura under the excitement of
prosecution in a pending as described under Saldnn' "Prineiple of

Wental Agitation"?
A, They did not appear to me to be under any mental strain. They talked

very freely of these matters.

20. Q. Is the interpreter Frederick Savory available as a witnesa?
A. He is avallable,

21. Q. After you had received this statement from Kokubo, how long a time
after you received this so-called affidavit from him was he served with the

charges and specificaticns?
A. I do not know., I believe they might have been served the same day.

22. Q. Did you know that Nakamura did not understand English?

4. I know that.

23, Q. And that he couldn't read English?
A, That is correct,

| 24, Q. And yet, knowing that, you asked him to sign a paper that was
written in English?
A, T asked Nakamura if he was willing to eign the certification of the
English and he declined, I also told him that if he was not satisfied with
the interpreter that we would get ancther interpreter of his choice.
25, Q. Did you also offer him the benefit of counsel at that time?

This question was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that
it was irrelevant and immaterial,

The accused replied,

26. Q. lmompnmtntmunm
‘hbmﬂuhhumhnhmhtduﬂhmm
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3. Qq.

27. Q. 8o that when you received the original statement it
signed by Nakamura at Sugamo Prison. Is that correct?
1. That is true,

28. Q. 8o you don't know whether this statement was obtained by means of
guestions and answers that had been put to him while at Sugamo Prison?
A« I do not know,

29, Q. Did you ask Naksmura if the officers at Sugamo Prison had told him
that it would go easier with him if he made a statement?
A, I did not.

had already been

30. Q. Isn't it true that you didn't caution them before you questioned and
interviewed them? Both Kokubo and Nakamura.

This question was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that
it was wvague,

The accused withdrew the question,

31. Q. Isn't it true that you did not caution and warn the affiants before
you interviewed them that these statements that you asked them to sign may be
used against them at a subsequent trial?
A, They were not expressly so warned.

32. Q. JTen't it true that you didn't inform either one of them that they
were not obliged to say anything or that they were not obliged to sign any-

thing?

This question was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that
it was irrelevant and immaterial.

The accused replied.

The commission anmounced that the objection was sustained.
33. Q. Vhen Nakamura and EKokubo were guesticned here at the War Criminal
Stockade, were they held at the War Criminal Stockade here on Gnam ass elvil-
ians or as prisoners of war?

This question was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that
{1t was irrelevant and immaterial.

The accused made no reply.

The commission announced that the objection was sustained,

In the case of these two
from them M‘tithuthtm-lnﬂmdﬂuﬁmmww
unl them?

mwmm-ﬂuuwﬁ:ﬂpmﬂmmm
and immaterial.
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| Reexamined by the judge advoeate: : |
Il 35. Q. In relation to this certification which was in English -- did yon

' have it translated intoc Japanese before you asked him to sign the certifica-

| E“'It was all translated intc Japanese.

} Lo 1 36. Q. Do you know whether or not these statements were taken before the

e charges and specifications were served on the accused?

4. They were.
Recross-examined by the accused:
37. Q. The only reascn that chargos and specifications were not served on

Hakamura was that the prosecution decided to use him as a witness in the tris]l
of AjJicka and Yamada before they tried him, Isn't that true?

This question was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that
it was irrelevant and immatdérial,

The accused replied.
The commission announced that the cbjection was sustained.

Commander Martin E, Carlson, a counsel for the aceused, made an uhjuqtiuL
| to the introduction of these twe statements into evidence as followa:
|
I The accused objects tc the introdunetion of these statements intc evidencp
| because they were not obtained, nor has it becn shown that they were cobtained|
| by due process of law. We hcld that these two statements were not made
| freely. The prosecution has not shown that they were made freely., This wi nﬂ‘
J could only testify that he asked Nakamura to sign the statement as being t
{

and correct on 9 December 1947 and that on 9 December 1947 he questioned Ko-
kubo in the War Criminal Stockade. The original statement of Nakamura he
testified was signed by Nakamura while at Sugamo Prison and not im the
presence of this witmess, This witness knows nothing about what took place
up there, What the prosecution tried was to incorporate into the statement
which he had Naksmura sign, a certification that it was true and correct, The
original confession was made in Sugamo Prison. g?l\

The sccused waived the reading of this objection in Japanese.

Mr. Kuwata, liideo, a counsel for the acoused, waived the reading of an
objection to the introduction of these statements into evidence in Japanese, e
His original objection in Japanese appended marked "BB."

An interpreter read an English translation of Mr, Kuwata's objection, !
appended marked "CC."

= .
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' ﬁ-mvhmnt at 9130 a,m.
P:-u'tl N

Rear m Arthur G, Rﬂm‘; U. 8. II'I, I‘I' .u

w HlllbﬂiII‘ ﬂdlml M’ I. m. HIMJJ.I!‘J Bﬂ“. MH i‘llmur._ -'.'-;.

Lieutenant Colonel Victor J. Garbarino, Coast Artillery Corps, HH' L._’

States Army o
M:-nt Commander Bradner W, lLee, Junlnr, U, 8. Naval Reserve, : q
Najor Donald B, Cooley, junior, U, S, Marine Corps,

: nm-n: Commander }ﬂﬂl le ﬂ.ul.lln;: n::r-, and
m Commander ﬂ"ﬂ- s De avy oy
Lisutenant James P, Kenny, U. S oy, fodge ndge sdvocates.

Archie 1, Haden, junior, r_l s, U. 8. Navy, reporter.
The acoused, their ocounsel, and the interpreters.

The record of proceedings of the sixth day of the trial wes read and

approved, 3

No witnesses not otherwise connscted with the trial were present.
- Herbert L, , the witness under examination when “lhgi:ru
taken, entered, mmmmmm

ing and continued his testimony,
Reexamined by the judge advocate:

Q. Will you please read "Exhibit 4"?7

_The witness read "Exhibit 4.°

#;ﬁm read "Exhibit 5.%

38,




Mﬂrﬁl‘l.ﬂlﬂm m the accused, made #h
&l umufihmilmr;:m, and cited M:h'l
Evidence," page 411,

h:ﬂnmhnmmmmm'&nmmm,
oiting Section 404, lnnlmlnam

trial entered, The commission announced that the motion was

Copmander Martin E. Glrlnﬁn, a counsel for the accused, made a plea for
directed mcquittal on behalf of Nagatome, Yoshimori, on the ground that the
prosecution had falled to establish a prima facle case against Nagdatome,

The judge advocate replied.

The comm!ssion announced that the plea was denied,

'l."hu defense ‘hm

Mr, Earasawa, hkud., a counsel for the acoused, read a reguest for
judioial notice, appended marked "DD."

An interpreter read an English translation of the request of Kr, Kara-
as follows:

The defense respectfully requests the commission to take judiclal notice
pof the following:

1, Article 61, Articles for thtﬂﬂwtofthlﬂnihi States Navy:

"Limltation of trials: offenses in general,--No person shall be tried w o

b martial or otherwise punished for any offense, except as provided in the

ollﬂl.na article, which appears to have been committed moré than two years : *

before the lssulng of the order for such trial or punishme unless by

of having absented himself, or of some other manifest im he shall

: been amenable to justice within that period. (R.S., Sect. 1684, Art.
b, 25, 1895 ¢, 128, 28 Stat. 680)."

2. mrmm.tm.nm“mmtaJmumhm
mwm:mmm

3. mmmmmmxmummmm:

V~=CAPITAL CRIVES; DUE FROCESS. GRERTNET
shall be held to answer for a capital, or otherwise

oy o 13 tom KMl shun 10 sl

The commission was cleared. The commission was opened and all -. m "ﬂ




6. Seotion 454, Naval Courts and Boards:

"454, Limitation when a deposition 1s used, - In any case where g
deposition is used in evidence by the prosecution by reason of the fact that
oral testimony can not be obtained, as authoriszed by article 68, 4.G.N,, the

3 umﬂ-h-nt-ﬂuhmhhpommnmtmtuﬁuth,ﬂhh-
prisonment or confinement for more than one year,

"Also, as a matter of policy, where a deposition has been used by the
muﬂnnhthtrhlurnwlnimdurmuﬂ‘im, the maximum
punishment adjudged should not extend to dismissal,

'!h-uulihtimupplrtunuumn, whether or not the trial is for
n offense for which a limitation is otherwise prescribed, Where a depoeition
loes not enter into proof of all the specifications, the limitation applies
ly to those specifications into whiech it enters, "

e '!.t[ialé?tlunl Governing Military Life" - (November 8, 1943, Army
UTdnance h- 1

L

"5 Military diseipline is the life-blood of the military forces, there-
) mmmmm-mmhmumuuwfm-. The
f#ﬂtmummm&w“hdh“pmmumtthmhﬁ'
th-nhunﬂuh:luth-trupuﬂphufthnﬂihﬂm“lnm
-nnrdhnort:l-orpl.nu,'th.tuuhrydmhmm'ithm
nd that orders are carried out without fail. Obedience is an essential fact
ordnto:htdn military discipline; therefors it is
obeyed
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Chapter I Application of Law.

"Article 1, =- This law applies to every person who has committed a
within the Eampire.

'nﬂnmnmmmmmm-m“m-

"jirticle 85 -- Every person who has acted as a spy for an enemy power
or has aided a spy of an enemy power shall be condemned to death or punished
with penal servitude for life or not less than five years.

"The same (punishment) applies to every person who has disclosed a
ﬂlitur(umll)mthunww

"irticle 86 -~ Every person who by methods other than those of the pre= |

" Wirticle 87 -- Attempts of the crimes of the preceding six Articles
hm-
"Article 88 -- Every person who has made or has plotted for|

wnrthm-poﬂﬂdhmhhm.w shall be punished with penal
servitude for not less than one year nor more than ten ysars,”

9. Japanese Army Criminal Code, Chapter 4, Crimes of Resisting Orders:

"Article 57. One who resists the superior officer's orders or who is
not subordinate to them, shall be condemned to such penalties as follows:

", hm.:mdth_.hhuh“hmu-lm
tmﬂnhnin ' gonfinement.

l.'. . EEr i
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"“'{dhth-uiull-huurlwwluhuddﬂﬂtﬂdwm
mtlurpummnahnr:hndﬂnﬂmmntrmuuﬂmmaunu '
thnmi:onﬂhl

o !. Section 390, Naval Courts and Boards, 1937, which reads in part as
follows:

! - “"A challenge on any of the grounds set forth in the preceding section, y
! et if properly supported by the fantu, shall be sustained by the court.”

3. Section 391, Naval Comrts and Poards, 1937, which reads in part as
. follows:

¥ %It ie customary for a member objected to to withdraw when the court is
oleared to deliberate on the challenge, and he should always do so."

! 4. Article 74, United States Navy Regulations, 1920, which reads in
part as followa:

"3(g) Naval Courts and Boards: This shall include both the instructions
and the forms governing the procedure of nmaval courts and boards, The order
promulgating this publication and the order for all changes that may be made
therein shall be signed by the Secretary of the Navy and approved by the Presi-
dent of the United States,

(L) Orders or instructions contained in any of the publicaticns enumer-
ated in the two preceding paragraphs of this article shall have full force and
effect for the guidance of all persons in the Naval Establishment, HNo other

+ fgeneral regulations, general orders, or general instructions to the Naval Es-
tablishment ‘shall be aigned or issued by any burean or office under the contrdl
of the Navy Department.,.."

5, Court Martial Order 15-1917, particularly p, 9 which resds in part aq
follows:

"The authority to convene the above-mentioned exceptional military court
veats cnly in the military commander or military governor of an cocupled terr
tory, and all such courts may be ordered only in the name of such commander ox

governor, ---- .

I ) "Insofar as practicable, the employment of excepticnal militery courts
' shonld, as a general rule, be restricted to the trial of offenses in breach
. } dmmummuﬂmymﬂwmﬁim uMh
mdththmdunfﬂuw mthnﬂw.u.

6, thuﬂ.lﬂrdnrlﬂ-lﬂ'hﬂnhuﬁnhmﬁn%r




dlﬂ!hiﬂhﬂlﬁﬂﬂﬂdhﬂ“ﬂhlﬂthﬂﬂpﬂﬁm
wﬂ.l‘-

7. Court Martial Order 2-192, which reads in part as follows:

"In a recent case it was ncted that the accused cbjected to each and
every member of the general court martial on the ground that each member "has
perasonally investigated the charge upon which the accused was being tried and
had’ expressed an opinion thereon," they having been members of a court which
had tried another officer on charges growing out of the same cccurrence,..

"In view of the challenges as aforesaid, and the facts above stated,
the Department advised the accused that the question of a new trial in his
case would be considered if he made formal petition therefor" ...,

8. Court Martial Order 1-1934 which reads in part as fo’lowa:

"In each of the last two of these cases tried, the accused objected ‘I.'.n
the senior member of the court "on the grounds of untinn 623 E (now 382e),
Naval Courts and Boards" =- that 1z, that he sat as a member of a court which
tried another person upon charges hased on the same transaction mnuarhing
which the accused was on trial...

"is a matter of fact, the record of proceedings of the first trial dls-
ecloged that the main witness for the prosecuticn had referred to both of the
two men whose trials are now under consideration as having been present at
the time the alleged offense was committed, While a portion of this testimony
was stricken from the record, it nevertheless remains that the court was in-
formed that the acoused in each of the later cases was invelved in the trans-
aotion out of which the case being tried arose. From the foregoing, it would
appear that the challenged member's mind might be prejudiced to such an ex- |
tent as to prevent his exercise of the impartial judgment required of a
court, Since the members who voted on the challenge of the senior member
were both presumably cognisant of the testimony given in the first trial,-
referred to above, it would appear that they did not carefully weigh the
challenges and replies. Moreover, the challenge in each case should have
been sustained on the ground on which it was put by the acoused (citing sec.
623, N,C.&B., 1923, second sentence), now section 388, N,C..8,

'Itmrwthrrmhdthtﬁnﬂ.ntthnnnwuntmhurmtﬂﬂlhlwl '
under consideration, the accused challenged a seccnd member upon substantial-
ly the same grounds as those on which the senior member was challenged, f
These challenges were not sustained, apparently on the ground that the chal-
lenged member in each case testified con his voir dire to the effect that he
| had formed no opinion as to the guilt of the scoused.. . 3




"6, Q. Has there ever been a report of articles missing from the cem- |.

nissary department of your ship?" '
"This question was objected to by the accused on the ground that any

| report made to this witnesa, unless it could be shown that the accused was

present at the time the report was made, was hearsay and inadmissible., The
objection was not sustalned and the witness answered, in effect, that up to
the moment that he received the first report on September 23 he had no knowe
ledge that any articles were miseing from the commissary department of his shi

"The witness was next asked (Q. 7) what report was made to him on Septem:
ber 23, 1923, which question was likewlse objected to by the accused on the
ground that it called for hearsay evidemce, The objection was not sustained,
and the withess testified that on the evening of September 23, another offi-

telephoned him at his home and told him that he had excellent information
that accused was taking food ashore with him from the ship of which witness
was commanding officer. The accused moved to strike out this answer on the
ground that it was hearsay, but the objection was not sustained., Held that
the objection to the questions referred to above were proper and shculd have
been sustained by the court on the ground advanced by the accused, namely,
that any answers thereto must necessarily have called for hearsay evidence,

| The answer to guestion 7 indicated clearly that the witness was testifying

to matters reported to him by a third person, not in the presence of the -
« In other words, the witness was not testifying to matters within
knowledge; f so-called report made to this witness was

j

court.
to him in such a manner would amount to a denial of the accused's constituo-
tional rights to be confronted with the witnesses him., It consequents

testify to matters told, him
gation of the irregularity out of which grew the trial, the accused not being
present at such investigation; such testimony should have been excluded (ecit-
m C.u.0, u-#‘lm, P- &}- Hor did the ven

g

other persons during the course of his investi-
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"Germany rencunces in favor of the Principal Allied and Associated Powers|
her rights and titles over her overseas possessions.”

and Article 22, that "Under the Treaty of Versailles, 1919, the inhabi-
l::ulﬂhlongl.ndthlnlrtntowhm ':J:m“ﬁltnﬂtxwl "
+ choose eglance 1y ving|
ﬂdminthatmﬂmofthdruhm-. (See Articles 85 and 113 of the
Treaty of Versailles.)

11. The England Law Digest revised for 1941, edition by Messrs. William
Charles Groocker, Sclicltors of the S Court of Judicature, London, E.,
» 4 in Nartindale-Hubbell Law D‘h‘lﬂ:?.

The British Nationality and Status of Aliens Act 1914, particularly that
i which defines an alien, "As any person (1) who does not come within the

de tion of a British subject born within His Majesty's Dominions and Al-
legiance, or (5) to whom a certificate of naturalisation has been duly granted

Marriasge Laws - British Empire
Lawa pertaining to British nationality and

"The Secretary of State may grant a certifi of naturalization to an
lalien who makes an application for the purpose satisfies the Secretary of
State: (a) That he has either resided in his Majesty's Dominions for a peried
of not less than five years in the manner set ocut belew, or been in the ser-
of the Crown for not less than five mdthinthlutd:htm

fore the application (b) that he is of good character and has an adequate
owledge of the English language and (c¢) that he intends if his application
hpﬂhﬂtiﬁntﬁmmhhillq-ﬁr'l to

in the services of the Crown. The
the United Kingdom for not less than one year immediately preceding the appli-
eation and previous residence elther in

part of His Majesty's Dominions for a pericd of four years within the

eight years before the application."

And that a person who becomes a British subject by naturalization is
subject to all the obligations, duties, and liabilities

i
i
i

4
4
B
]
E

The wife of a British subject is a British subject
muwmuum.mmmmm.wum
an alien, ol

- hmﬂMwM¢mdm2ﬂ
has been obtained by false representation or fraund.

Reform (Married Women Tortfeasor b1 o
o I:ma, mumﬁmmm;,”;iu, -ur

particularly the subject Aliens: and | %




mmwdhmwuuﬂﬂ
mu}mmmmugo{ﬂmmrmﬂnm k
| dafective.”

13, The American Banana Co. v United Fruit Co. (1909) 213 U.5. M7, 29
S. Ot, 511, 53 L. Ed, 826 16 Am. Cas. 1047, which stated the accepted primeci-
ple lex loei, lex fori, "the general and almost universal rule is that the

! 14, The treaty relating to their Insular Possessions and Dominions in
the Region of the Pacific Ocean by the United States, British Empire, France
and Japan., (See Wilson on International Law, Hornbook Series, Third Edition,
m-mmmh,mu,mmmmmuu.s.mt.

15, United States Navy Military Government of The Caroline Islands Pro-
clamation No, 1, partiocularly the following:

'ﬁthpﬂﬂlﬂhmm"u-_-
in order to preserve law and order and to provide for the I
and both of my forces and of yourselves, it is necessary to
establish Military Govermment over the Caroline Islands.
"Now therefore, I, C. W. Nimits, Fleet Admiral, United States Navy, Com-
mander in Chief, ;United States Pacific Fleet and Pacific Ocean Areas, and /X
| Military Govermor of the Caroline Islands, do hereby proclaim as follows: o

"I == All powers of govermment and jurisdiction in the Carcline Is-
lands and adjacent waters, and over the inhabitants thereof, and final ad-
w"mmmuwmmn-umm.mum
Navy, Commanding the forces of occupation and as Military Govermor, and will
be exercised through subordinate commanders by my directicn,

AL h Hm“ Y iaﬁﬂ:::ﬂnrl..‘ i.ﬁrmm-.'- O R o wan tadte Lnlle sl 0




R o

'mm-nu.hunmmummu-tm. 1945.

/e/ C. W, Nimits
Fleet Admiral, United States Navy, Commander in Chief,
mmmmunm-unmo-:-w.

16, Proclamation No, 2, United States Navy Militery Government of Truk
umwm:-m,mumtm

. "Now, Mm,hmnh-hm1ﬂruthufﬂ;urthm
tmiﬂﬁqa“udfwthﬂnhnm&ufﬂumﬂuuﬂnﬂ#h
the area so ocoupled, I, Chester W. Nimits, Fleet Admiral, United States
m,mumamrm.uuthmnrmhnmﬁnmm

"Article X =~ Effective Date,

- mmtmmmmnuuumm“m
thereof within the occupled territory on the date of its first proclamation.

"Given under my hand at Moen Island this 25th day of November, 1945,

C. W. Nimits,
Fleet Admiral, U, S. Navy,
Militery Govermor of Truk and the Cemtral
Caroline Islands.

Robert Blake, Brig. Gemeral; U.S.K.C.,
Comuander Occupation Forces, By direction.®

17. United States Navy Military Government of Truk and the Central Carod

line Islands Proclamation No. 3, particularly the following:
"Exceptional Military Courts.

'hﬁ-mpl-urhuklﬂthmtrﬂﬂuulimlm,

"Whereas, by Proclamation No. 1, T assumed all powers of govermment over
mmmmumﬂmmmmnnmnuwwm
armed forces of the United States

= i --m.rj-u-rym i
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"irticle X.

of were done pursuant to order of a supericr or
or in mitigation of punishment."

time of alhnd 8.

C, V. Fimits,
Fleet Admiral, U, S. Havy,
Military Governor of Truk & the Central Caroline Islands,

.
e i ST o
"Section 1. y Juriediction of every Exceptional Military
Court shall extend to the dhﬁﬂﬁ-h&ﬂ%ﬂu:ﬂﬂ;“
ococupie@ by the armed forees of the United States of imerica, and with regard

each part of the area, from the time at which that part was first occcupledl)

firticle ITI, Constitution of Exceptional Military Courts.

"Section 1. mu:gm A military commission shall ecnsist
of not less than three cers of the armed forces of the United States of
Amerdica or its Allies convened by or on behalf of the military governor, at
Imtmﬁr“lhlllhuuﬁrﬂmufumumw.

Effective Date.
"This proclamation will become cperative in each island or part thereof
within the occupled area on the date of its first publication,
"Given under ny hand this 25th day of November 1945.

Robert Blake
[ 'Bl'l.l. m‘l, U-B-.actp Commander ﬂﬂmﬁibﬂ Forces
By direction."
18, Paragraph 347, War Department Basic Field Manual Rules of Land War-
fare, FM 27-10 (1940), particularly 1, ™ 27-10, paragraph 345.1 =
*Indi and organisations who yplate the accepted laws and customs

of war may be pinished therefore. However, the fact that the acts complained

sanction may be

taken into consideration in determining culpability, either by way of defense

The judge advocate objected to the commission taking judiclal notice of
items 7, 8 and 9 of Mr, Karasawa's request, Item 7 was objected to because
the commission was not furnished with an offieial or otherwise trustworthy
copy of the regulations referred to, in accordance with the provisiocns of
Section 309 Haval Courts and Boards. Ttems 8 and 9 in Mr, Karasawa's
and items 11 muhmmmumuﬂuﬂﬁjuuhdhm
they were foreign laws » in acecordance with Seetion 309 of Naval
um-mmn hhnhuinmmdrutlnntm"
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No witnesses not otherwise connected with the trial were present.
A witness for the defense entered and was duly sworn.
Examined by the judge advocate:

1. Q. ﬁhpumﬂfmrmk.
4. PFirst Lieutenant Kiyomine, Kasuo, Imperial Japanese Army.

2. Q. If you recognime these accused, tell us their names and former ranks|

As Captain Nekamura. Warrant Officer EKokubo, That is all.
Examined by the accused:
3. Q. Were you ever stationed in the Palau Islands with the Imperial

Japanese Army?
A, I wab.
F Q. When?

A, From 26 April 1944 to December 26, 1945.

5. Q. That was your doty while youn were stationed in the Palau Ialands?
A. I was an officer attached to the intelligence section of the staff of
the Fourteenth Division Headquarters.

6, Q. Were you present at an execution of three persons alleged to have
been imerican flyers on September 4, 1944 in the Palau Islands? ;
A: I d4d not go. If there i1z a person who said I went, that is false.

The judge advoca'e moved that the words "If there is a perscn who sald
I went, that is false" be stricken out on the ground they were not responsi
responalve to the question.

The accused replied.
The commission directed that the words be stricken cut.
7. Q. TWere you ever ordered to go to this execution?
A. No,
witness.
The witness said that he had nothing further to state, :
_The witness was duly warned and withdrew.

'lh comission M at 11:15 a.n., hpk Im until 2 r.l.. !‘
felly. CF .-.. I : 5

Neither the judge advocate nor the commission desired to examine this

"Ia:;‘




A, Yes, I aid.

1A. They were attached to division headquarters. - y

-

drchie L. Haden, junicr, yeoman first class, U. S, Navy, reporter,
No witnesses not otherwise connected with the trial were F‘-““;

Nagatome, Yoshimori, an accused, was, at his own roqunt, duly sworn as
witness in his own behalf,

Examined by the judge advocate:

+ Q. Are you an accused in this case?
L g Iﬂﬂ-

Examined by the accused: .
2. Q. During what period of time did you have duty with the Japanese army?
I was conseripted in March of 1941 and stayed in the army until February,
1946, when I was demobilized,

« @« Did you ever have duty on Palau during this time?
As Yes,

o " Qv During what period of time did you have duty on Palau?
A, From September 1943 until February 1946.

5., Q. TWhat unit were you attached to on Palau?
A+ T was attached tc the First Detachment of the South Seas Kempeltai.

6. Q. While serving at Palau did you ever see a prisoner of war?

7. Q. Then was it?
A. About September of 1944. ]

8. Q. There did you see the prisoners?

A. I saw them on the road in front of the administration building of the
Eempeital at Otaka, Gasupan, Babelthtap, Palau Islands.

9. Q. What was the condition of the prisoners when you saw them?

A. I saw these three priscners on the truck, All of them were tled by theis
hands, Three Japanese enlisted men were guarding them, each holding the end
of a rope of a prisoner, Illmuinuqemtnjhrum.

10, Q. This sergeant major and guards == -hntunitmm;nthnhdhf

1L, . Q. mmhmm-mmmmwmmm
nmtu-zm-mm.:mnummm
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13. Q. mmum.qommmam oy B ol
A, lﬂ. Imm; ; . . 1

L. Q. !ouhnnjuttutiﬂdthutmuntﬂthllhlmhmlm
That happened then?

4. I got on the truck with the prisoners. In the meantime the truck started :
and 1t soon arrived in front of the jungle. All of us went into the jungle ‘
and there the prisoners were execoted.

15. Q. You have testified that there was one guard to each prilnnli'. There|
were some ehlisted men from Divislon Headguarters guarding each priscmer.
That did these guards do when ycu went to the jungle? \
A, They were on the end of the rope and guarding these prisoners they went
to the scene.

16, Q. When you went to the scene did you do n.qy‘hhiug*at the scene?
A. I did not do enything.

17. Q. Did you not receive something from someone at the scene?

A, No, I did not. Then I was questicned by the interpreter at Sugamo Prisoh
I was tcld, "You were handed by Sergeant llajor Kokubo the remains of Sergeant
Tkushima." I replied I was not because I was never handed such a thing,

gurthmnre, I have testified to this effect in my statement which I made in
ugamo,

18, Q. Yoéu just testified as to the ashes of Sergeant Tkushima, p1d you
ever see Sergeant Ikushima's ashes?
d. Yon.

19. Q. There? ¢
A. I saw Sergeant Najor Kokubo bring them to the scene.

20. Q. Flease show us how large the ashes were.
A. They were about the size of the imerican clgarette puukusc Only it 1s
about three inches high and three inches wide,

21. Q. Then do you know why Kokubo twrought these to the scene?
A. No, I do not. ol

22, Qe When you were told by First Lieutenant l.h-wlnlﬂuhﬁnmlm
hﬂitﬂd!ﬂpummtthtnpa'm!ﬂﬂ‘hh

4., No. Ijmrmmwlmm-hmumm:
taking a walk, s _
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* e
The judge‘advocate withdrew the question, o S d
25, Q.‘ On the day that these aviators were executed approximately how many :
:nnninthannitmmﬂndhrﬂlptunlhknw == the unit te which you
longed? :

« The Kempel was elght including Nakamura and T recall that there were
about twelve or thirteen assistant Kempels also.

26, *Q., THen there were approximately tmtr-unu people in this unit -~ Is
that correct?
A, I recall it to be so.

27. Q. Now, why out of these twenty people did Rakamura tul]. you to come
with him on this duty about these aviatora?

This question was objected to by the accused on the grnu;ul that 1t called
for an opinion of the witness,

The judge advecate withdrew the question,

28, Q. Do you know why out of the twenty men in that unit you were chosen
by Captain Nakamura to accompany him that day? :

A, That day the othere were out on patrol and other work and as I was walk-
ing in the yard I believe he called me,

29. Q.. And what exactly did Nakamura gay to you? h
A. "Hey, Nagatome, put on a coat and come right awayl”

Sy

30. Q. 4nd when you went with Nakamura you got intoc this truck -- ia that
correct?
A, - Yes,

31, Q. Was Eokubo on board the truck when you got there?
A, Yes,

32, Q. Did you notice the ashes of Tkushima et this time?
A. Ho.

33. §. mmnrnugotnnthatmnkdidﬂlhlﬂ'lnrmnluhm? .
4. No. T don't recall anything in particular, -’

M. Q. In-tit.rmtmumumwummmmn R
. I seem to recall that he said, "Guard them," § R

35, Q. Iln'tthuﬂuunmud-thutﬂpm vere a gu
were going or what for, but as I was told to guard T went along with the

feeling that I was a guard. : . ' *
When'X went o the soens I was just mabeh Ay TR R

- # -
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8, Q. Did Nekamura ever tell you that your duties as a guard had ceased?
koW I'ni

39, Q;' Then you were guarding these prlscners right up to the time they wersq
i« T was guarding them up until T got off the truck,

40. Q. What changed when you got off the truck? Why did ruu think you aﬁu11
quit guarding them?

oot of f the truck?
e !‘ﬂl

42, Qs When you went inte the jungle were the division men sent out as
lookouta?

li. They held on to the ropes that were tled to the nrisnnaru until they were
swecuted,

3. Q. Desocribe this exeoution for us.

e T recall that the first priscner was beheaded by lieutenant Nakamura,

gave the third prisoner a cigarette and while he tock two or three puffs he
shot him through the back of his head,

tbe Q. These three prisoners., TWere they all tled together?
A. No. BEach of them was tied separate.

5« Q» Was there a grave already prepared at the scene?

0o 6 O

xecuted, weren't you?

« I don't have any reccllection as to what reason or why.

1. Q. But you tell us how that you felt you were no longer a guard when you

This question was objected tc by the accused on the ground that it was
pyond the scope of the direct examination.

The judge advocate replied.

The commission announced that the objection was not sustained.

he second priscner was beheaded by Kokubo, and Iieutenant Colonel Miyazakl

The accused moved that this answer be stricken on the ground that the
itness was teatifying against his co-defendants.

The judge advocate replied. L

;hn-uunnisuiuu announced that the motion was not sustalned.

s Yes.

Q. How many people were present at the scene of this execution?

r, I recall that there were five from the Kempeitai including Iie
onel Miyasaki.

i ln-lf.:t -l::l-.'l‘,,-!lr _l.i_‘i:.l.r#

I i S B
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I recall that there were five from Division Headquarters 1nnludin¢ thn 'j v




The judge advocate replied.
The commission announced that the cbjection was not sustained.
4, The five from Division Headquarters seemed to have come prepared, for
after the execution was over they had brought shovels and they covered up
the hole,
J‘.B. Q. TWeren't these five ren sent by Lieutenant Colonel I!i;nnh:!. to act as
lookouts while the execution took place?
4d: I do not recall,

49. Q. Who led the first aviator up to the hole to be executed?
A. The guard who came from the Division Headquarters brooght him there,

50, Q. Whé led the second man up to be executed?
i That was the same,

51. Q. These ashes that you have testified about =-- were they in some sort
of container?

A. They were in a small box covered with white cloth and it was suspended
from the neck I recall,

£2. Q. And did Kckubo continue wearing thies box around his neck when he
swung his sword on the other prlaocner?

This question was objected tc by the accused on the ground that there
was no testimony to show that Kolubo hed beheaded the prisoner,

The judge advocate withdrew the question,
53, Q. How did Kokubo execute this prisoner?

This question was objected to by the accused on the ground that the
witness would be testifying against a co-defendant.

The judge advocate made no reply.
The commission annocunced that the objection was not sustained.
A. T recall that Eokubo had the ashes around his neck and executed the

yprisoner.,

ﬂ. Q.. The question is how did Kokubo execute the priscner?
A. He beheaded the prisoner with a Japanese sword,

hmuudmthtm.mhntﬂuhnunthmwthﬁh

|| vitness was testifying against a co-defendant.
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| A ; m down in ﬂp h{:’ of the truok facing the prisoners.
i ' . I : X ]

o B . .

157. Q. Then the only part that you had in this entire execution was to guard
three prisoners on this truck?

Thie question was objected to by the accused on the ground that it was

L]

The judge advocate replied.
The commission anncunced that the objection was not sustained, 11
4, TYes. 1

58. Q« When did you first find out the priscners were going to be executed?
A. After I got on the truck and went to the scene.

59. Q. What was it at the scene that adffybed you that the prisoners were to| F%.
be executed?
4, I saw the hole so I found out,

| 60. Q. What were you using to guard these prisoners?
A. The prisoners were sitting down on the truck and I just sat on the body l
of the truck and did not have anything.

61. Q. And the only thing you were wearing was a sword belt?
A, t.l-

62. Q. And that is the only thing you had with which to guard the priscner
Is that correct? '
A. Yes.

I

Reexamined by the accused:
63, Q. So that you weren't really guarding them, They were guarded by be
blindfolded, being tied, and each prisoner had a man from Divislon Headq 8
holding on to a line, JIsn't that so?

This question was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that AW
it was leading.

The accused replied.
The commission announced that the objection was sustained.
64, Q. Will you tell the comrission again Just how these priscners were whepy

saw them in the truck when you sat down, hﬂnzh-uurﬁu-dhrm
Mlnthlm

.I.. three prisoners were sitt uththq:lr tt.h-“hqr Wi
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| 65. And where were
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8. Q. He was in charge of the execution?
I recall it to be so.

The judge advocate did not desire to recross-examine this witness.

The commission did not desire to examine this witneas.

The witness sald that he had nothing further to state.

The witness resumed his status as an accused.

The defense rested.

Commander Martin E. Carlson, a counsel for the accused, requested that
he commission adjourn until 9 a.m,, Monday, January 26, in order to allow for
he preparation and translation of statements for each of the accused and for
| counsel to prepare final arguments.

The commission announced that the request was granted.

ﬁ commission then, at 3 p.m., adjourned until 9 a.m., Monday, January
26, 1 ‘ Y
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United States Pacific Fleet,
Commander Marianas,

Guam, Marianas Islands.
Monday, January 26, 1948.

The commission met at 9:10 a.m,

Present:

Rear Admiral Arthur G, Robinson, U. 5. Navy,
Iieutenant Colonel Henry K. Roscoe, Coast Artillery Corps, United States

Army,

Lieutenant Colonel Victor J. Garbarino, Coast Artillery Corpe, United
States irmy,

Lieutenant Commander Bradner W, Lee, junior, U. 5. Naval Reserve,

Major Donald B. Cooley, junior, U, S. Marine Corps,

Lieutenant Commander Bdwin M. Ecos, U, 5. Navy, members, and

Lieutenant Commander Joseph A. Regan, U, 3, Navy, and

Lieutenant James P. Kenny, U. S. Navy, judge advocates. I
: Stewart R, Smith, yeoman first class, U. 5. Navy, reporter.
! The accused, their counsel, and the interpreters.

Thinmrdafpouoding:brthnmnthmafthtrm:urmm
‘ approved, ;
No witnesses mot otherwise connected with the trial were present.

The accused Naksmura, Kasuo, read a written statement, in Japanese, in ﬁ y
his defense, appended marked "EE," _

| An interpreter read an English translation of the statement of the e
accused Naksmura, Kasuo, appended marked FF."

The sccused Kokubo, Chihirc, resd a written statement, in Japanese, in -
his defense, appended marked "GG."

An interpreter read an English translation of the statement of the
accused Kokubo, Chihiro, appended marked "HH. "

The acoused Nagatome, Yoshimori, read a written statement, in Japanese, "
in his defense, appended marked "II."

hwmm-nluu-hmhuonofﬂum#-uﬂorth
accused Nagatome, Yoshimori, appended marked "JJ."

The commission then, at 10115 a.m., took a recess ontil 10:30 a.m., at {
which time it reconvened.

Present: All the members, the juige advocates, the acoused, their
counsel, and the interpreters.

mn.g_m:m.p-nmunm,t.l.m,m. PR
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No witneases not otharwlise connected with the trial were present.

The judge advocate read his written opening argument, appended marked
ln‘I

An interpreter read a Japanese translation of the judge advocate's
argument.

Mr, Sanagi, Sadamu, a counsel for the accused, read a written argument
in Japanese, appended marked "LL."

The commission then, at 11:30 a.m., took a recess until 2 p.m., at whieh
time it reconvened.

Present: All the members, the judge advocates, the accused, their
counsel, and the interpreters.

Archie L, Haden, junior, yeoman first class, U. 8. Navy, reporter.

No witnesses not otherwise connected with the trial were present.

An interpreter read an English translaticn of Mr. Sanagi's argument,
appended marked "MM,"

Mr, Karasawa, Takami, a counsel for the accused, read a written argument
in Japanese, appended marked "NN." -

An interpreter read an English translation of Mr. Karasawa's argument, 1?"C
appended marked "00," ,

i The commission then, at 3:10 p.m., took a recess until 3:25 p.m., at
which time it reconvened.

| Present: All the members, the judge advocates, the accused, their
gounsel, and the interpreters.

Stewart R, Smith, yeoman first class, U, 5. Navy, reporter.
No witnesses not otherwise connected with the trial were preseat,

Mr, Kuwata, Hideo, a counsel for the accused, read a written argument
in Japanese, appended marked "FP.®

An interpreter read an English translation of Mr, Euwata's argument,
appended marked "QQ."

The commisaion thﬁ, at 4110 p.m., adjourned until 9 a.m., tomorrow,
Tuesday, January 27, 1948.




United States Paeific Fleet,
Commander Marianas,

Guam, Marianas Islands.
Tuesday, January 27, 1948,

The commission met at 9:20 a.m.

Fresent:

Rear Admiral Arthur G. Robinson, U. S. Navy,
Lieutenant Colonel Henry K. Roscoe, Coast Artillery Corps, United States|

¥

Lieutenant Colonel Victor J. Garbarino, Coast Artillery Corps, United
States Army,

Lisutenant Commander Bradner W. Lee, junior, U. S, Naval Reserve,

Major Donald B, Cooley, junior, U, S, Marine Corps,

Lieutenant Commander Edwin M. Koocs, U. 8. Navy, members, and

Lieutenant Commander Joseph A, Regan, U, S. Navy, and

Lieutenant James P, Kenny, U, S. Navy, judge advocates.

Archie L, Haden, junior, yeoman first class, U, S. Navy, reporter.

The accused, their counsel, and the interpreters.

The record of proceedings of the eighth day of the trial was read and
approved.

No witnesses not otherwise connected with the trial were present.

Commander Martin E. Carlson, a counsel for the accused, read his written
argument, appended marked "RR."

The accused waived the reading of Commander Carlson's argument in Japa-
nese.,

The commission then, at 10:15 a.m,, took a recess until 10:30 a.m,, at
which time it reconvened.

Fresent: All the members, the judge advocates, the reporter, the
accased, their counsel, and the interpreters.

No witnesses not otherwlse connected with the trial were present.

The judge advocate read his written closing argument, appended marked
ngg,»

An interpreter read a Japanese translation of the judge advocate's clos-
ing argument,

The trial was finiashed.
The commisalon was cleared.




The judge advocate was recalled and directed to record the findings of
the commission as follows:

As to the accused Nakamura, Kasuo:

The first specification of the first charge proved in part, proved ex-
cept the words "NACATONE, Yoshimori, then a corporal, IJA," which words are
not proved,
| The second specification of the firat charge proved,

And that the accused Nakamura, Kaszuo, 1s of the firat charge, guilty.

I The first specification of the second charge not proved.

The second specification of the second charge not proved.

The third specification of the seccnd charge proved,
h The fourth specification of the gecond charge proved.

And that the accused Nakamura, Kasuoc, is of the second charge, gullty.

As to the accused Kokubo, Chihiro:

The firat specification of the first charge proved in part, préved (s
cept the words "NAGATOME, Yoshimori, then a corporal, IJA," which words are
not proved.

And that the accused Kckubo, Chihire, is of the first charge, gullty.

| ds to the accused Nagatome, Yoshimori:

The first specification of the first charge not prowved.

And that the accused Negatome, Yoshimori, 1s of th&-firat charge, not
guilty; and the commission does therefore acqult the said Nagatome, Yosghi-
|mari, of the first charge.

The commission was opened and all parties to the trial entered.

The commission announced its findings.

The commission anncunced that Nagatome, Yoshimori, was excused from
further attendance at this trial.

The mccused stated that they had no further evidence in mitigation to
offer, but pointed ocut to the commission that much of the evidence of the 1
prosecution's witnesses was matter in mitigation in that it related to
superior orders, and atated that they wished the commissien to take notice
! of this evidence in considering their sentences.

The ecommission was cleared. ag




! The judge advocate was recalled and directed to record the sentences of
the commission as follows:

Q‘#W’W’MM'W'
o - Warsls
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Rear Admiral, 5/ Havy, Fresident,

\ﬂ.(?v‘t_--_.

HENRY €.) ROSCCE,
Lieutenant Colonel, Coast J'-I‘tillﬂrf Corps, U, S. Army, Member.

: |
I
| ﬂéﬁéz:rﬂl
1 s J' ﬂ .
! Lieutenant Colonel, Coast i1lery Corps, U, S. Army, Member.

BRADNER W, E, !.Tr., s

' Lieutenant Commander, U, S, Haval Reserve, Member.

uu% %I.J E&Eﬁf’i:fm‘hf.

EDWIN M. K003,
Lieutenant Commander, U, 5. Havy, Member.

. a fgpan

JosfPH A, REGAN,

Lieutenant ‘;:::E}?S. Navy, Judge Advocate. N
i L] i-
JAMES P. KENNTY, : 1

l Lieutenant, U, 5. Navy, Judge Advocate.




The commission was cpened and all parties to the trial entered.
The commission then read and promounced the sentences to the accused.
Commander Martin E, Carlscn, a counsel for the accused, made a rotion

for arrest of judgment and for a new trial on the ground that there had been
irregularities in this trial and that the evidence did not support the sen-

The judge advocate replied.
The commission announced that the motion was not sustained,

The commission, having no more cases before it, adjourned to await the
action of the convening authority.

C mﬁ BINSCN,

Rear Admiral, Havy, Presldent.

< :szru'f: m% ,;’

Lieutenant ander, U, S. Navy, Judge Advocate.

¢/ JaMES P. XENNY,
Lieutenant, U, S, Navy, Judge Advoecate,
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OBJECTIONS TO JUDGE ADVOCATE'S REQUEST FOR JUDICIAL NOTICE
Delivered by

Mr, Takami Karasawa, a Couns2l for the Acoused

The judge advocate recuested the cormission to take judicial notice|
of certain facts, Defense counsel object to tiwose parts of his reouest
enunerated below for the following reasons.

1, We object to the"Geneva Priscners of War Convention of July 27, 1c29,
and the fact that Japan agreed through the Swiss Government to apnly the
provisions thereof to prisoners of war under its control and as far as
practiceble to interned civilians." In order to maintain that Japan
agreed through the Swiss Government to apply the provisions of this o
vention to prisoners of war under its control and as far as practicable
to interned civilians, the judge advocate must clearly nrove that there
gich a faect, Of course we have no objection that the commission take ju-
dieial notice of Geneva Priscners of Wur Convention of 1727, but we hold
that the fact that Japan agreed through the Swiss Government to apply the
provision... ia not a fact which the court knows to be true without any
evidence, We believe that the judge advocate wants to apply this conven-
tion to the killing of the Englishman, Smith, alleged in Specification 2
of Charge I, However, the Englishman, Smith, was not an interned civiliap
to whom Japan agreed to apply the convention. Regarding this point, I
shall argue at another time. Therefore, we object to the reguest for
judicial notice of the judge advocate that the conventionm be applied in
the case of the Fnglishman, Smith, who was not an interned ¢ivilias,

2, We further object to Article 23(c) of the Hague Conmention of

18, 1507, Article 2 of the eomvention reads: "The provisions contained
in the regulations referred to in Article 1, as well as in the present
é¢rnvention, do not apply except between Contracting FPowera, end them only
if all belligerents are parties to the Convention.,” Therefore, in order
that this comvention be binding, all belligerents should be parties of
convention., Howeéver, both Italy and Bulgaris, which were belligerents
World War II, did not ratify the convention, So in accordance with
Artiele 2, Japan is not bound by this convention and this convention has
no bearing on this case. Article 23(c) of the convention reads: "It is
especially forbidden to kill or wound an enemy who, having laid down his
arms, or having no longer means of defense, has surrendered at discretion.®
This is the provision for an enmemy who surrendered, In other words,
provision applies to a person who had once been hostile and been compel
to give up active hostility, However, the Englishman, Smith, was only
inhabitant of the Palau Islands, not an enemy who surrendered., It is
therefore clearly improper to apply this provision in this case, and
provision has no bearing on this case, so we object to the commission
taking judicial notice of this prowision.

This court is an international court and internatiomal law should
applied in this court. So it is utterly impermissible to apply a custom
which is recognised by only some countries to the trial of the accused
this case,

-
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3. We furthermore object to Chanter 4 of the "Law of Land Warfare.” W
thirk that the reason why the judpge advocate nsked the commission to ta
judicial notice of this chapter iu tiint he is intending to make useof it
in regard to the inoident in whizh the Iregifshrman, Smith, was killed, e
paragraph on Civilian Intewneza of Chopine 17 ¢f the Law of Land Warfare
reada: "Civilian allens f>md ia a bel'lgmeni's territory at the out-
Ereck of the war may »e intrrned, Such pe~sons ~12, uirder the American
Epglish practice as well as by th: welight of aulhority under internationgl
lew, treated as prisoners o wer, The Jaited States and the enemy govern-
ments, namely, Germany, Itiyy and Japan have agreed through the Swiss
Government to treat interm2d civilian aiien ememics, on a reciprocal basis,
at least as favorably as rrisoncra of war," However, the Englishman,
Smith, was never interned at the outbreak of the war, From December 8,
1741 to about December 20. 1944 when he was arrested for the first time,
he iived like a Japanese civilian and was in the same status as a Japanege
cirilian, Therefore, he can not be colled an interned civilian., The
rerson why he was arrested and detained several days before the emecution
j= tnat his family deserted and that he either committed or might have
¢zuritted an act of spying. So he wns interned purely as a criminal susw
pect, No country in the world will admit that a eriminal suspect should |be
reated as a prisoner of war, Generally speaking, the internment of
civilian aliena is based upon strategic purposrs., As it is possible that
these internces and the wmemy either directly or indirectly are interned [in
orler to remove any possibility of aid to the fighting capability of the
enuny,. A4m~e they are thus interned for strategic necessity it is admitted
4hnt they should be treated as prisoners of war, The Englishman, Smith,
might have been a civilian alien enemy, but he was not interned at the
outbreak of the war, because he had been living on Palan for many years
end hc had been treated as a civilian who brre no hostilityagainst Japan,
It can be easily understood that he would have been living as freely as
the Jupanese, if his family had not deserted and if he had not committed
an acl of spying.

Jt is clearly inconsistent and improper to ap'plg- the provisions for
prisomers of war to such a civilian,

' Since this provision (of the Law of Land Warfare) has no bearing om .
this case we horeby object to it, I

Respectfully, |
/a/ Takami Karasawa,

I certify the foregoing, consisting of two typewritten pages, to be
a true and complete translation of the original document in Japanese,

the best of my ability. 2
E. ICK,
tenant, U, 8. h‘!‘li Reseyye,

Jr.
Iﬂtwl’tﬂ' .
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OBJECTION TO THE REQUEST OF THE PROSECUTION FOR JUDICIAL NOTICE
By
Commander Martin E, Carlson, U. S. N. R,
May it please the Commission:

J We move the recuest of the judge advocate be denied and we object tb
the commission taking judicial notice of the textbook, "Law of Land War-
fare," Chapter IV, Prisoneras of War, page 47, because judicial notice
cannot be taken of such writings as are found in textbooks.

In CMO 267=1°10, it was held that, "It is a well recognized rule of
pleading that the essential elements of an offense must be affirmatively
and specifically set forth in the pleading and a court is not warranted fn
taking judieial notice of the existence of any essential elements unless
they are so affirma’ively and specifically set forth,"

"This rule is fully supported by the case of Pettibome v U.S. (148
U.S. 202) as follows: "The general rule in reference to an indictment
is that all the material facts and eircumstences embraced in *he definitiom
of the offense must ‘e stated, and that, if any essential element of th
crime 1s omitted, such omission camnmot be supplied by intendment or impli-
cation., The charge must be made direetly and not inferentially or by wa
of recital.”

The J.A.G,, Navy Department, held the proceedings, findings and s
tence are illegal and recommended that the same be set aside,

CMO 36~1€20 lays down the same rule and cites the same case, the cape .
of Pettibone v U.8., 148 U.S, 202, The proceedings, findings and sent E
in that case were also held illegal and the same were set aside. |

In CMO 5-1°23khe following rule was published by the Judge Advoca
General, "The judge advocate requested the court to take judicial neoti
of certain sections of Clark & Marshall's, "Law of Crimes,"™ but the rec
failed to show whether or not the court did in fact accede to such recuest,

While it is altogether proper for the judge advocate in his advice
to the court or in “is argument to call attention to and ocuote from !H
dard textbooks, it is improper for him to ask the court to take judic
notice of such publicaticns (Sec, 530, N,.C.4B,, 1923,)

We object to the commissission taking judicial notice of the faot t
the Palau Islands are within the area of Commander Marisnas area. We
of no judicial ruling which defines what is meant by the ohrase, "C er
Marianas Area,” It is fzmaterial and irrelevant, It is without defini .
We wish to point out again the law regarding military ocoupastion., Pa
graph 273 of the "Rules of Land Warfare" of the War Department of the
United States provides:




"es.Being an incident of war, military ccoupation confers upon the
| invading foroe the right to exercise control for the period of oecupatien.
It does not tranafer the sovereignty to the occupant, but simply the
aythority or power to exercise some of the rights of sovereignty., The
exercise of these rights results from the established power of the oc t
and from the necessity for maintaining law and order, indispensable to poth
the inhabitants and to the ocoupying foree." - Basic Field Manual (FM 2¥-
lﬂ, 19"0} H-?"I-

In the Ottman Debt ArBitration it was held that mere military ccou
petion did not operate as a trenafer of sovereigmty.

L

Repartition des anmites de la dette publique cttomane (article 47| du
traite duﬁunmu}, sentencearbitrate, 40, 41; Anmual Digest, 1025-26,
Case No. .

So "in the case of Alexandre Kemeny e Ftat serbe-croate-slovene th
Hungarian-Yugoslav Mixed Arbitral Tribune in 1928 stated that the armistice
agreement, by virtue of which certain Hungarian territory was oeccupled
Yugoslav forces, did not have the effect of trensferring sovereignty
the occupled territory te the Yugoslav Government and that the Bungari
Department of Mines in Budapest comtimued to exerclse the relevant r
of sovereignty over this territory until the entry into force of the
of Trianon transferring the territory to Yugoslavia,”

VIII Recueil des decissiomns des Tribunaux Arbitraux Mixtes 588;
Digest, 1c27-28, Case No, 374 eited in Digest of Internatiomal Law, Ha
worth Vol, VI, Chapter IX, Section 587, Military Ocoupatiom, p. 387.

In the case of Naoum et autres c, Min, public et Colonie de 1'Africue
occldentale francaise, the defendants, having attempted to export Fr
| currency to the German colony of Togoland, then under French military
! pation, were condemned under a Fremch law of August 17, 1915 prohibit

the export to foreign countries of Fremch silver currency. The Fremch
Court of Cassation, Criminal Chamber, in 1919 dismissed an appeal from|the
judgment saying that territory under military occupation cannot be held to
be part of the nrtional territory."

Amual Digest, 1¢1°0-22, Case No, 312; -
Gazette du Palais, 1020, I, 62, .

In a cese decided on November 17, 1924, the German Reishsgericht in
oivi] matters held valid a marriage contract by a Cerman subject, a
of the army of escwpation in Russian Poland im 1217, The mapriage wos val:
according to Russian law, The German subjeet had petitioned for a dec
tion that the marriage was mull since it had not been concluded in
dance with German law, The court stated that the ocoupled territory
be regarded as foreign territory where German marriage law did not a

* Anmual Digest, 1923-24, Case No. 237; Fontes Juris Gemtium (dec
of the German Supreme Court relating to international law) 746, cited
Hackworth, Vol, VI, page 388, Ibid,




=&

"In the easme a&‘ Galatiolo e, Senes the Court of Cassation of Rome,
on November 3, 1922, held that, for the purposes of a eivil action for |
damages for failure to deliver certain merdhandise, Trieste, in the inter- '
val between the Armistice and the law Annexing it to the Kingdom of Italy, |
could not be regsrded as foreign territory."

Anmal Digest, 1°10-22, Case No. 319; II Foro delle move provincie
(1923) 185-1°0,

In the case of Del Veochio ¢, Connio the Court of Appeal of Milan
held that a decree of divorce in the Court of Trieste during the period
between the Armistice ahd the annexation was a foreign ope reouiring an
execuatur in order to be ibuog!iiud %n taly. Anngal Digest, 1°19-22;
Case No. 320; 46 Foro italieno (1921), pt. I p. . (eited in HaokwortH
Vol, VI, Ibid, p: 388.)

Whether Palau Islands is within the area of Commander Marianas at
' thie time 48 immateriel and irrelevant, What is important and to the
' foint is whether it was within the Commander Marianas Area on December 2,
944, and on September 4, 1944.

We object to the commission taking judicial notice of the Geneva
Prisoner of War Convention of July 27, 1929 unless the prosecution can show
that Japan ratified this convention and that these three accused are

by it.

We move that the court take judicial notice that Japan did not rati-
fy or formally ever adhere to this convention, We call the commission'
attention to the Forward to the War Department Technical Mamual TM 27=2
War Dept. 7 Jan. 1944, which contains the statement, "Japan has not rat
or formally adhered to the Priscners of War Convention."” Legally, ther
fore, Japan as a nation 1is not bound by the conventiom,

We challenge the judge advocate to show how and by what provision of
| this convention these three accused are bound,

We object to the Geneves Prisoners of War Convention as being :l-nt.z-
ial and irrelevant and that these three accused are not bound by this o
vention.

By our plea to the jurisdiction and our plea in bar we put in issue
the ruestion whether Palau is under the command of Commander Meriunas. (We
hold it is not common knowledge but that it is a legal and military
question which the judge advocate musat prove,

that

We ask/the commission take judicial notice that Palau Island was not
under the commend of Commander Marianas om December 29, 194) and on Sep-
tember 4, 1044, at the time the offenses were committed,

Before the commission take judicial notice that Palau Islands are
now within the area of Commander Marianas, we move that the judge advocqte
be required to offer proof that it is,
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We also objeot to the court taking judicial notice of the Hague C
vention of October 18, 1007, particularly article 23(4), becsuse the Ha
Convention provided that it shall be binding upch any of the bellicerenis
in a war enly if all the belligerents in that war are partics to it,
guithu- Italy nor Bulgaria has ratified the Hague 1907 Convention and

apan is therefore not bound by this Hague Convention of 1907,

Even the United States took advantage of this provision and under
section. 1, Circular No, 136, War Department, May 7, 1942, stated in pary,
"“The Hague Declaration Mumber XIV, October 18, 107, prohibiting the dig-
charge of nrojectiles and explosives from balloons (H:D XIV) ia not bind
and will not be observed,"

Isn't it strange that the judge advocates, in order to prove their
case, now agk that the commission take judicial notice of a convention
which the United States War Department, in a written circulppe, mmber 1
dated May 7, 1942, said was not binding upon the United States,

We move that the judge advocates be required to prove this comvention
and that it was in force, that Japan is bound by it, and that these thrde
accused are bound by it, particularly article 23(c¢), show how it is appli-
cable in this case, and relevant to the issues in questien.

Section 309, Naval Courts and Boards reads, "A court may not take
judicial notice of a foreign lew, or of a law of another state, etc., than
that within which the court is sitting, the existence of such lsw being |a
ruestion of fact which must be proved by commetent evidence the same as
any other fact - i.e,, the purport or the actual wording of the law mus
be introduced into the evidence = and it must be further shown that the
or regulation was in force at the time when the alleged act in violati
thereof took nlace.”

We move that the vrosecution be bound strietly by this section of
Naval Courts and Boards,

1t is common knowledge that all laws such as federal s‘atutes, the
United States Comstitution, Navy Regulatiora, Court-martial orders, and
such matters as the commission may toke judicial notice of are in the

English language,

And what of the Hague Comvention which the judge advocate asks thaJm
commission to take judioial notice of? We call the commission's attent
as the judge advoeate should to the Foreword to War Department Technieal
Marmal 27-251, War Department, 7 Jamuary 144, which reads in part as
follows: "It will be noted that the French text ia the only official
text so far as the international relations of states are concerned; and
accordingly, in case of dispute as to the meanine of any rrovision, it
is the French text which must be accepted as controlling. Though the
English translation is, in general, believed to be correct, no translatiom
can always give the meaning of the originel with entire acouracy."

Is the judge advocate to be allowed to introduce into evidence simply




by way of a request for the commission to take judicial notice of a
convention the text of which is in a foreign language, French, and th

Judge advocete put into evidence an English translation, the cmi;:ﬂn
‘nowing that no trenslation cen always give the meaning of the ori 1
with entire accuracy.

We cbject to the Hagre Convention of October 18, 1907 as immaterial
and irrelevant,

We move that the commission not take judiclal notlce of it.

What is more important, however, is what legal and judicial, and
police powers did the United States of America or Commander Marianas
have in the Palsu Islands on December 20, 1°44 and on September 4, 1944,
becavse jurisdidtion over erimes is not retroactive. The Constitution
of the United States of America prohibits expost facto laws.

We object to the commission taking judicial notice of the Potsdam
Declaratibn of July 26, 1945 snd particularly paragraph 10.

The Fotsdam Declaration in and of iteelf i1s neither legal evidence
material to the issues here being tried or is it a fact of which this
militerv commission c-n legally take judicial notice In accordance with
Section 309 of Maval Courts and Boards.

Look carefully at this Potsdam Declaration, Paragraph (1) reads: 'We
===«the President of the United States, the President of the Nationmal
Government of the Republie of China, and the Prime Minister of Great
Britain, representing the hundreds of millions of our countrysden, have
conferred and agreed that Javan shall be given an opportunity to end
this war,”

! This was on July 26, 1945 and on August 14, 1945 the Emperor of Ja
f through the Swiss Government informed the United States Govermnment that
i Japan was prepared to surremder and thus end the war,

The surrender by Japan is a fact which the commission can well take
judicial notice of but certainly not of the Potsdam Declaration, It
can have no legal standing in any court, federal or internaticnal,

It is immaterial and irrelevant from a legal point,

The Potadam Declaration did not make any new laws, federal, or intern-
national, or create a valid and binding custom that day. Japan was
} given a chance to surrender,

Why then does the judge advocate ask the commission to take judicia

l notice of this Potsdam Declaration? The judge advocate doesn't say w
he wants the commission which is trying these accused for violatien

l law and customs of war to take notice of this Potadam Declaration,

| Instead he says we want you members of the commission to take parti

heed of this one sentence: "We do not intend that the Japanese shall

be englaved as a race or destroyed as a mation, but stern justice shall

“ _ "MA(5)"
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be méted out to all war ériminals, inecluding those who have visited
cruelties upon our prisoners."

Knowing that international law rrovides nbither dcurts mor puni s
for violations of the Hague Convention or the Oenbva Réd Cross Convent'
tion, realizing full well that these demobiliséd perséns; now Japanes
civilians, are not subject to the jurisdiction of the commission, the
Judge advocate attempts to confuse the isstie by abking the commission|to
. accept as law and thereby relieve him of any vroof as to the jurisdic
| tion of this commission over these accused and that the offenses alleged
are crimes punishable By thids commission|

Such a procedure as this will not stand up under judicial review,
Should the judges in this case start the trial of these acoused with the
idea that they the judges are to mete out sterd justice to all wer
criminals including those who have visited eérvelties upon our prisoners?

Each member of the pommission said he would"truly try witheut prejut
dice or partiality, the cases now depending, aceordiing to the evidenc
which shall come before the commission, the rules of evidence p:-uar!.;ed
for this trial, the customs of war in like casts, and his own con-
gscience."” Now to ask the members of the commission to mete out stern
Justice to all war criminals including all persons who have visited
eruelties upon pridoners is hardly justified at law,

The government of the United States of America has eonvened a legal
court to try Japanese for crimes. What was said at Petsdam on July 24,
1945, while the war wad still raging is not calm judicial judgment,
International law I am sure will not recognize such a declaration as
material and relevant and appliénble in the present sase,

To acoept this paragraph 1© of the Potadam Declaratiom would compel
! the commission to punish these acoused not because they had committed [the
orimes with which they are charged but becsuse they may have visited
druelties upon prisoners.

Not only does the jwdge advoecte rely upon vague and indefinite
references in certain of the Hague Conventions and Geneva Red Cross Er-
vention as authority to punish these accused but he mow asks that th
be punished because of the Potedam Deelaration en July 26, 1945,

These three accused should be pumished only if the evidemce shows that
they committed a crime, a crime for whidh the law imposes a pemalty.

To take judicial notice of these things so recuested by the judge
advocate is most prejudicial to the substantive rights of the accused

For these reasuns we object to the commission taking {udicial
of these recuests made by the judge advocate,

| ]
b :ZHMWK
Commander, U, 8, Naval Reserve,

m, Jamuary 16, 1948,

AA(6)"
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OBJECTION TO THE ADMISSION OF THE STATEMENTS OF THE ACCUSED INTO EVIDENCE
|!JELI?ER!D BY ¥R, KUWATA, HIDEO, COUNSEL FOR THE ACCUSED.

I

}hy it please the commission:

|

' The defense objects to the commission admitting into evidence the docu=
ents purporting to be the statements of the accused Kokubo, Chihiro on the
ground that these statements contain not only the confessions of the accused
ho made the statements, but also declarations concorning the acts of the
ther oecused than the declorant,

I The acoused Kokubo in his statement tostified by dopoeition to the

I ollowing effect: Lt, Col, Miyasoki shot onoc of tho flyers by pistol first,

pbnd then Capt. Nekamura behanded the next flyer with a sword. Then Capt.

{Hokomaira ordored Kokubo to behoad the last one. This statement is highly
ejudlieinl to the oecused Nokomura,

Section 186, Navnl Courts ond Boards providos: "Admissions of one joint
nspirator are available ocgainst others, ...Foundation must be loid by
lpither direct or circumstantial cvidence suficliont to establish prima facie
[ fact of conspiracy betwecn the parties, unless the Judge advocate states
1 t conspiraney will later appoar from ovidence to be adduced."

American Jurisprudenco Vol, 26 Homieido, Sceticn 381 reads: "@learly,

n admission by one person is not evidence ngainst cnother just bocause it
pocna thot thoy are eco-defondants., The mere fact thrt two defondants are
ing tricd for an offense is not sufficient to render stotementsa in o con-
casion nade by one of them odmisside rgninst the other. When a conspiracy
e established, overything said, rritten, or donme by any of the conspirators
uring the progrees of tho econspirancy end in execution or furtherance of the
sc thereof is deecmed to have becn said, dono, or written by overyone of
hem and may be proved sgeinst ench other, The foregoing general prineiples
vo been appliod many tincs in prosocution for homieldo. The oxistence of
onspiracy to comnit rurder oporates to render the declarations of one of the
nspirntors adnissiblc against another charged with murder, oven though the
cclarant is not on trianl, but only sc far as thoy ore statements mado in

therance of the econspiraey. Proof of the existonce of 2 conspirncy and
he participation therein of the nccused is requisite to the admissibility
goinst the necused of a doclaration as one made by o conspirator.®

lII As clearly provided in the preceding references, = declaration made by

ne of the defendants is adnissible against the othor only when they are
conapirators.

Article V of tho anmendnent of the Canstitution of tho United States of
erica provides that "no person shall be compelled in any criminal case to
a vitness ngainst hinself.® Who ean change and take avay tho safeguards
tecd by your great Constitution? I am sure this can only be done legel-
« It can not be changed to sult the whim of sone person,

However, the Judge Advocate doos not allege that this offense vas comit-
by these Adefendants in execution of their comspiracy, Speeification 1 of
e I reads: "Nakarnura, Kaswo, ,..Kokubo, Chihdro, ,..N:gatone, Yoshimord,
«+0nd other nonbors of the crmed forces of JM'I-'II. lllam with .ia'lﬂﬂ.
tesune, ,.,.d1d, cach and together, ...mssault, stiike, kill and cause to be
6d, .e." and 4t doos not allege that thaese nceused “1d4 the aect in pur-
of o cormon unlawful imtent,

B (1)

e S
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The offense in this case wos not cdone by conspiracy. It ia, thorefore,
violation of the cbove cited principles to 2dait tho declaration of an
ccused against another one,

The statencnts were not nmade at the time cf inecldent and in furtherance
f it, but three years later while those affiants were being held, without
rrant of arrest, in solitary confinemont at Sugnno Frisonm, Tokyo. They
re without eounsel. They were foreces to make statements,

These stetemonts, Af admitted into evidence, will, in neeordance with
oction 454 of Nawval Courte and Brards linit the punishnont which nmay be
nposed to not more then ono year of eonfinement., Changes in Naval Courts

Boards, ns we undeorstand Ameriean law, eannot be nade by 2 convoning
uthority, the Judge Advecate Genornl of the Nevy or even tho Secrotary of

Nnvy, U, 8. Navy regulations provide that Naval Courts and Boards shall
ve full force nnd effeet for the guidance of nll persons in the Navel sere

e, This is tho low as we roocd it.

Il No bureau or office under the control of the Navy Departmont shall issue
other regulrtions, general orders or general instructicns to the U.S,
avy. SCAP has no authority, even if he is the Suprerme Commander for the
led Povers, tc change U.,S. Navnl Courts and Boards nnd U, 8, Nawnl Regu-
tiona.

Since docunentary evidence should genernlly be adnittcd inte evidence
n its entirety, (when the court finds it adnissible), I believe that the
tatement of the accused Kokube should nmot be adnitted into evidence in this

Os
Therefore, the defense hereby objects to the adgission of these state-
nents into evidence,
Respectfully,

KURATA, Hideo

|
|
|
|

' I certify that the foregoing document is a true and complete copy of
ho originnl in Jepanese, to the best of rmy ability.

+ 8, Neval Reserve,
Interpreter,
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The personal declaration of Nakssmra, Kasue.

From that |

Just before the
the rank of Ceptain because of my leng service.
I‘l‘llﬂ_iﬂ.il*

Kempel (military poliece).
served as a Kempei.

a
&
to
any partioular training to be an offiocer.

to live with my family as a private citisea.

world war,
promoted

I was
mdn
and

Inl?ﬂ,lmmiptodin‘buth-w;udhlm,“
or private, I became

end of
-lnu
nnt
Captain

m “ Im

I replied
There—

ot the lawyers.
them everything about

Then I was perved with char-
ashamed, I confessed

and specifications scoused of the same offense, murder of an Englishman,
to
me and
sease
i1l
other
ears

I testified againat Ajioka and Yamada.

l—.tt

hm“mumw

I believe, it was

be in a normal econditionm.
muulmntmttm,mx

"rr(1)"



P

or write very well, so if you do mot understand me it is all my femlt, I
iwas never good at school, and my mind mow is very weak and unsettled.

It seems to me that I am being held for all the respomsibility which
commanding officer Miyasaki should bear, perhaps because the higher officers
of the lith division headquarters, the originators of
exeoution, are mot being brought to justice for their responsibility wi
!ﬂaruw,mmu—mmnnmnﬁtmmm-
|There is too great a disparity between the responsibility with which I am
|charged, and the actusl situation and respomsibility which I should bear.
Therefore, I should like to desoribe a little about the actual eircumstances
\at that time., (1) I was relustant to take part im either
dents with which I am charged. But what could I do? When commandimg officer |
(Miyasaki ordered the eaxscution of thes aviators I the
iright way to treat them, so I expressed my opposition to him. Maybe I should
;mmt-tm,mm-mmmmmmwhit. But
I was an officer so I expressed myself. Why should it be doms? Why should
: was

sten to me., He finally rese
his chair and scolded me and reprimanded me severely. I think, I stated this |
faot in my affidavit submitted at Sugemo, but which was not introduced in
it-h:l.lwm.

|

, Commanding Officer Miyasaki did mot indulge in drinking. He was &
|fine man, But he stressed the cbservance of military diseipline om the
battlefield to the extreme. 8o if we opposed his intentions, he would scold

of him becanse I thought he would kill me when he was mad at me, Om the
occasion which I have stated, he was in an exoited rage, and striking his
sword against the floor violemtly, he berated me. I still cannot forget
|mlﬁrﬂmltﬂtﬂlﬂthlmmn'ltmm-

| In the execution of Smith, I was relustent to earry out the order as
'I have stated in my affidavit which was introduced in this eourt as I

(testified in the Ajioka case. So I hesitated and did not depart immediately. |
'But as the commanding officer violently scolded me the second time, I was so |
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_ |

. hope
|to revive memtally and physiecally
'to atone for my weakness of mind.
|
Members of the Commission, I ask your special consideration for my in-

most feelings and supplicate your lenient judgment.

IV. There is my familyl My family consists ay wife and four childrean,
I am the head of the branch femily, but I have mo resources. At present the

family is living together in one room rented for five yen a month, They
|are sxpsrisncing great diffieulties since thers are no means of insome.

2,

My eldest son, fifteen years old, is a feeble minded child, so he
had to leave primary school without finishing it. My second son stammers.
My eldest daughter is presently attending school. My second danghter is
being brought up by her mother alons. Neither my pareat's nor wy wife's

ible for my family to make a living.

Even if I didn't want to execute prisoners I still though
:mldiu'. But I am far more miserable than any one I know,

was a good
| I sm charged with two surders. If I ocould only think this thing out
'olsarly. How ean I explain to you members of the Commission who are
'we that when I say I did nothing oriminal that you should believe me
|do you believe I am a oriminal just becsuse I say I did nothing eriminal, I
jam so distracted., I do not know what to was in
miserable condition of any person.

ey .
| In elosing, I wish to state & few words in behalf of co-defendant
together with me. I thought back sbout what Nagatome did that day, At that
time Nagatome was sick and weak, I ordered him to come along because there

you

'il'll"l no other mon-commissioned offieers present.

I pray you will understand me. Ihn‘_tmrn“'
give me a fair trial. With your great understanding I kmow you will temper
stern justice with meray.

Respectfully,
Jamary 26, 1948

/8/ HNakamara, Kasuo

1 eertify the foregoing isting of three (3) typewritten pages
be & true and reslaticn of the eriginal docummt in Jepeness,

to
to the best of my abilityl

family are sufficiently well-to=do to look after my family, so it is imposs~ |

Why has all this misery happened to me? I tried to be a good soldier, |
1 |
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I who am sn acoused in this case desire to make a statement.

Ny personal history.
The name of the family im whieh I
helr for my graadmother's
when I was a child.
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My state of mind concerning the incident.
; (1) My preseat feelings about the
|with regrets for the air-men who are dead.

3.

A
n

ons had to do his best for its defense, I beli

superiors were justified.

Palan was isolated and facing the erisis of

lg

i1 E30s .
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|6th of Jamuary. I realiszed for the first time that it was not
had

-

STATIMENT
To Your Homor, the Fresident and NMembers of the Commission.

1. While being held at Sugamo Prison, as a witness I thought, I was
suddenly served with the charges and specifications on the Ilst of December,
1947. When I read them I was amased and hurt to kmow that T was not a wit-
ness but I was alleged to have participated in the killing of American pris-
oners, I lmew that I had done nothing te be charged with wurder, ss I was ia
mwﬁuum,lmmtnpuuuipmtinthunu;ufﬁtpﬂm.
Everything was like a dream. The Americans were wrong. 1 was not the one to
be charged with murder,

However, I was ordered out of Sugamo on the 2nd of Jamary, 1948 and

(& reality that I was going to be tried for murder. I, who
(with the execution, a murderer! No, it couldn't be. I never touched th
'body of the prisoner mor did I help in any way in the execution.

| It is true that I went to the scene of the execution on that day,
but I was ordered to do so. When I left the military police unit, I did not
kmow why and where I was to go. I was told to "come along®. I was ordered
to get on & truck by my Company Commander Nakamura. He sald, "Nagatome,

At the soene of the execution, I was mot ordered to do any job, and I
'did not do amything. I was only looking at my superiors who were executing
‘the prisoners. Why they executed them, I do not kmow. I didn't even want
to look at the execution. I shuddered. I looked away.

I

t is hard for me to understand that a mere loocker-om of the execon-
as & eriminal with murder, when I did mothing direct-

al;r or indirectly to aid an execution performed by my superior officers.




”

walking around, just wp from bed, that Lieutenant Nakamura happened to see
me and ordered me to come along,

: I returned to my quarters after the execution. After that, my illness
|:rnwr|l. Around the middle of September, I became feverish with bronehi-
| tis. Around the beginning of October, it was complicated by pleurisy. It
' was not until the end of December that I regained my health and I could re-
| sume my dalily duties.

| As I have mentioned, I was very weak at the time of the ineident, so
| I was reluctant to go with Lieutenant Naksmura. However, I had been taught
| that the orders of superiors should absolutely be obeyed. That is why I
obayed the orders of First Lieutenant Nakesura and went with him. We weat
an execution of prisomers and for that I was charged with murder., Does that |
make me & murderer? I kmow enough to feel sure I did nothing whieh anyone |
| can say was mmrder. .

E The charges and specification allege, "with premeditation and malice
aforethought®, but I had mo premeditation toward the prisomers, still less
did I have any malice toward them. I pray that you do believe me as to
these points. I did not aid in any way in the execution,

You cannot understand why I was ordered to go to the scene of the !
execution because I was then very weak from my illness. It was becanse most
of the members of the unit were out patrollimg or om other duties on that
dey. Why First Lieutenant Nakamura, when he happemed to see me taking a walk,

|3. I only graduated from the grammar ‘school in my native place. My

| family consiste of nine persons, namely, my old parents, wife, child and five

| young brothers and sisters. I left them and my farm and came to this island.
hawv




Believe me when I say I am not guilty of murder or any other erime.

Jamuary 26, 1948

/s/ MNAGATOME, Yoshimori.,

I certify the foregoing, consisting of two and one half (2} type-
written pages; to be a true and complete translatiom of the original docu-
ment in Japamese, to the best of my ability.

E. KERRICK

Fay

Interpreter.
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OPENING ARGUMENT FOR THE PROSECUTION
Deliversd by

Lieutenant James P, Kenny, U,3.N,

If it please the comnission:

Naval Courta and Boards, Section 53, defines murder as: "The un- |
lawful lkilling of a human being with malice aforethonght." The kdlling|
is unlawful if there existano legal justification or ercuae for it,
"Malice aforethought" is present if at the time of the %i'lin~ there J
existed the intention to kill. There has Been no evidence or contentio
in this trial that there existed any legal justification or excuse for
the execution of either Charlie Smith, the Englishman, or the three
American priscners of war. There is no question that the accused inte
ded to kil the three fliers or that Nakamura intended to kill Charlie
Smith, They were taken to the place of execution for the express puore
pose of killing them.

The prosecution's evidence that the accused Nakamura and Kokubo, ‘
together with the now deceased Miyazaki, killed the three aviators is
uncontradicted, Their guilt has been proved beyond any resacnabls dou
The third aceused, Nagatome, took the stand in his own behalf and denied
the testimony given by the nrosecution witness, Sano, that he assisted
in the execution ceremony by hclding the ashes of Ikushima while Eokubo |
vielded his sword on one of the Americans, However, while under cross- |
examination he admitted that he had scted as a guard over these three
priscners, -It is true he was of the opinion that this role of his
ceased upon the arrival of the trueck at the scene of the execution, hut
it is evident that Nakamura never released him from that assigmment and |,
the only logical conclusion is that he continued to perform the duty of
guarding the prisoners unti) their final disposal. So now we not only
have Nagatome participating at the scene but we have him, by his own
admission, becoming an active member of the execution party as it left
the Kempeltal en route to the scone of the execution, It is true that
Nagatome testified that he was not aware that the prisoners were to be
executed until he arrived at the execution site and saw the grave which
had been prepared for their bodies, Whether or not this is to be be-
lieved rests in the nrovince of you members, You will recall that Naga-
tome testified that the three prisoners weré bound, accommanied by armed |
guard and men from headquarters =with shovels, Vhat did Nagatome think - |
these people were going to do? The answer is obvious,

But let us assume that we were to believe that Nagatome did not
know the purpose of the trip until he saw the grave., He definitely knew
then by his own admission. Thereafter he continued tc guard the priso-
ners and a member of his own Japanese army, albeit a prosecution witness,
testified that he sam him holding the ashes of Ikushima while Kokubo cut
the neck of an Amerdican prisoner. In additiom to his duty as a guard,
Nagatome had assumed a role in this ceremony to avenge the death of |
Tkushima, Nagatome would have us believe that Kokubo allowed himself to
be enoumbered with the ashes about his neck while he performed the diffi-
cult task of boheading, Knowing the degroe of eare that must be exere




e ————

cised in this act in order that the wielder of the sword may not injure
himself; it is doubtful if any Japanese would have attempted to do it
while so encumbered. The only reascning by which Nagatome can be ab-
golved of guilt is for this commisaion to believe that he was a mere
spectator at the scene of the execution of those three unfortunate
Americans., He definitelv was not a spectator. Nakamura ordered him
along as a guard., Clark & Marshall in Crimes - Fourth Editien - Seec, |
167, states that 'if one is present in concert with the actual perpe=
trator of the offense for the purpose of assisting, if necessary, or of)
natching and preventing interforence or detection, or for the purnese
of encouragement' he is a prinecipal. Nagatome mas present with the !
actual perpetrators of these murders, Heo guarded and watched the 1
l
|

prisoners., He was present for the purpose of assisting in any other
way that was necessary, One of those other ways of assisting turned
out to be the holding of ashes. He was not a spectator. Ho was a
participant. The degree of his participation is imraterial,

In specification 2 of Charge I the accused Nakamura is charged
with the murder of the Englishman, Charlie Smith, alias James. The !
murder of Charlie Smith and the prineipal part played in conneetion '
mith it by the accused Nakamura has been proved heyond any reasonable
doubt. Wo have also established, as alleged, that Charlie Smith was
an Englishman, It should be noted that doctrine of recasona“le doubt |
does not extend to each particular fact advanced by the prosecution,

e have established that the individual ki'led at that time was Charlie
Smith and that hc was an English liational. The defense in preliminary
nrm&uiaad the point of whether or not this individual =as a priac
ner of war, We refer the commission to Paragravh 70 of the Rules of
land ¥arfare, "Except as otherwise hereinafter indicated, every person
captured or interned by a belligerent power because of the war is,
during the perjod of such captivity or intermment, a prisoner of war,
and is entitled to be recogniszed and treated as such under the laws of
war.," It has been a well recognized nrinciple of law, reco~nized by
the weight of authority on International Law, that eivilian aliens
found in a belligerent's own territory at the outbreak of the war may
be interned but are entitled to be treated as prisoners of war, Japan
recognized this when she agreed through the Swiss Government to treat
interned civilian alien encmies at least as faverably as prisoners of
mar., The evidence shoms that Charlic Smith was intorned because he
vas a civilian alien who it mwas susnected had “een of nssistance to

the enemy.

The proseceution!s evi‘ence has proved that all three accused
ancted as the result of superior orders. It is nov 2 mell settled
prineiple of law that superior orders are not a defensc to crime,

The SCAP Regulations (Basic ltr. SCAP 000,.5, § Dec. 45) vhich this
commission 1s authoriged to use, provide: "The official pesition of
the accusod shall not abselve him from responsibdlity.,. Further,
action pursuant to order of the aeccuscd's superior, or His government,
shall not constitutc n defense, but may be considered in mitigation of
punipghment if the comrmission determines that justice so requires.”




ll

o =

The Internctional Tribunal at Nuremberg, in tho summary of the judgment
relessed at Nuremberg, Sept. 30, 1946, stated: "The defense of 'Supericn
Orders' has never been rocognized as o defense to a crime, hut is con-
sidered in mitigation as the charter here provides,"

In four spocifications under Charge II Nakamura is charged with o
vioclation of the lav and customa of war, The evidence establishes that |
Nakamura was the commanding officer of the First Detachment in September
vhen the three Americans were executed and clso in December when Charli
Smith was executed, In reoviewing the case of the late General Yamashita,
the Supreme Court of tha United States recognized the duty which inter-
national law places upon comranders of troops in the following words:
"It is evident that the comduct of military operations by troops nhose
excesses are unrestrained by the orders of their commanders would almost
certeinly result in violations which it is the ourpose of the lam to
prevont. Its purpeose to proteet eivilian nopulations and prisoners of
war from brutality would largely be defeated if the commander of an ine
wading army could with impunity neglect to take reasonable measures for
their protection. Hence the law of v:r presupposcs that its vioclation
is to be avoided through the centrol of the operations of war by com=
manders who are to some extent responsible for their subordinates." e==-
(Matter of Yamashita, 14 U.5.L, Weekly, Feb., 4, 1946). Nokamura was
the commanding officer of Kokubo, Nagatomc and others at the scene of |
the execution of the three americons, In Specification 1 of Charge II
he is charged with failins to control their operations in that he pere |
mitted them to kill one of the American vriscners, This was the priannaL
whom Kokube beheaded, The evidence shona and Kokube's confession veri-
fies that Nakamura gave him the order to cut thie prisoner, HNagatome
was assisting at the time as a guard and the holder of the ashes of Ikue
shima .whose death mas being avenged.

In Spocification 2 of Charge II Nakamura is charged with negleect
of duty in that he did not discharge his duty to protect the three
Ameriecan prisoners by vermitting their unlawful killing by Kokubo, Naga-
tome and other members of the Japanesc armed forces, The evidence shows
that Nokamura did not perform his duty to protect the nrisoners but
orderqd Kokubo and Napatome to participate. At the ‘sceme he, the com=
monding officer cf the First Detachment, did not protect t.hese harinnnl
or take any measurcs to protect them, ; 3

Specifications 3 and 4 of Charge II charge Nakamurs with negiuat
of duty in connection with the murder of Charlie Smith, The cvidence
shomws that at this exoecution ho, the commandins officer of the First -
Dotachment, did not control the operations of Ajioka, Yamada and othors,
members of his command == and persons subject to his control =- in that
he permitted them to kil Charlie Smith, He took no measurcs to protect
Charlie Smith from theso individuals, In fact he ordered them to parti-
eipate, _ r

Finally, gentlemon, let me stato that tho murder of unarmed prison-
ars of mar or civilian aliagn onemics has always been rocognised as a
crime under international law, The Hague Convontion of 1907 merely -
formulated and redoced this law to writing when it stated: . "It is es=
peclally forbidden to kill or wound an onemy who, having laid down his

x(3)"




arms, or having no longer any moans of defense, has surrendercd at dis<
eretion.” Thesc three ncecused were charged with a knovwledge of that i
law., They violated it ond nov justice demands that thoy be punished |
for their ecrimes, |
1
l

;Zﬁnnpectfullr,

{ JANES P, KENNY,
Licuscrant, U. S. Navy,
Julg. Advecate,
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In this trial 3 persons, the accused NAKAMURA, Kasuo, KOKUBO, Chihiro,
nd NAGATOME, Yoshimori are charged, but for the convenience of defending
hese accused I will argue in behalf of Nakamura, Kasuo and with regard to
he accused Neghtome and Kokubo they will be defended by my associates Mr, |
wata and Mr, Karasawa respectively.

Before going into my discourse in behalf of the accused, I wuld like to
ess my conviction concerning the prineciple of punishment against war '
as my introduction. !

| Introduction I, On individual responsibility.

Concerning the individual responsibility in war crimes there is an inter-
ting paragraph under a clause, "The law of individual responsibility® of a
ok called, "Nurnberg Case™ written by Mr, Justiee Robert Jackson, chief of
unsel for the United States in the Nurnberg Intermational Tribunal; so I
uld like to quote it at this time,

*The Charter recognises that one who has committed criminal acts may not
o refuge in supericr orders nor in the doetrine that his erimes were ncts
states, Those twin prineciples vorking together hawvo heretofore resulted
immunity for practienlly everyone concerned in the really great orimes
qgainat peace and mankind, Those in lower ranks were protected against lia-
Mlity by the orders of their superiors. The superiors were protected because
fheir orders were ealled acte of state. Under tho Charter no defense based

dn eithor of these dootrine ean be entertained., Of course, we do not argue
that the eireumstances under vhich one commits an nct should be disregarded in
d its legal eoffect., =====The Charter implies common sense linits to
fability just as it places common sense limits uvon immunity. But none of

these men before you acted in minor parts. Each of them was entrusted =ith
iroad diseretion and exercised great power. Their responsibility is corres-
ndingly great and may not be shifted to that fictional being, 'The State,'®

In order not to have war crimes rooccur in the future, I believe it 1s a
idea to ndopt a poliey in which individual responsiblity is asked of a

rson committing & erime notwithstanding his rank or whether or mot it vas
r superior orders,

In the past the Japanese armed forces emacted absolute obediensce to super-
ipr orders and werc tought that subordinatos had no responsibllity for erinmes
mmitted by superior orders, but it is inevitable that they are being severely
shed bocouse of this policy at nresent.

But in trying this, I think therc is & necessity of considering deeply the
itions ond ecircunstances in the cases of minor military persons.

If wo put these accused of this trial in place of the German dictators'
eition showm in the lotter part of Mr, Jackson's opinioh, it can be rewritten
follows: ™Each of them was entrusted with narrow diseretion and exeroised

1ittle po~er. Their respomsibility is correspondingly- small,"
In trying these sccused, *The little pecple®, who are sitting before you at
mhﬁthpn‘tml&-nﬂmh given to their position and eir-

- (1)
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Introduetion II, Concorning criminal rcesponsibility of superiors.

In order mot to hnve mar crimos rececur in the future I think it is noc-
essary not only to irroce indlvidual responsiblity on the person cormitting |
the erinecs but aleo c pursus the criminal responal*iiity of the superiors
who ™ere in the positiosn %o control and supervisc che rcin of their uuburﬂim%

But upon whem ghovld this criminal responsibility be imposed? In other
words, rvhen thore arc tro or throe ranks of suporicrs abtove you vho are in
the position to control m gaid crimdnal, upen vhich rank of superior should
this eriminal responsiblity be imposed, or whether it will We sufificient to
|inposo the reunonsibility on the commending officor of an organization alone
|to whon the eriminal 1s a sub rdinate? in regard to this deep considoration
i'nmat ba glven.
|

I recognize the fact that in military life, each superior, eccording to
his renk and position, has a certain rusponsibility tc comtrol the acts of
hls subcrdinates. But looking at it from the fundonental =rineciple of com-
nand end leadership in rdlitary life, in genernl, I think it oroper end suf-
ficient that one person of each unit should take tho crininal responsibility
Ifor the duty of sunervising the subordinates who conrdttod wvar erines.

Most of the accused in the Internationnl Var Crine Tribunnls of Jaman
and Cermany upon vhon were imposed the grent responsibllitics of crimes
agcinst peace or beginning illeg-l var are ministers or Generals and
Afrircls of the army or mavy. Their subcrdimates who setually planned the
wrr, tho so-called brain trusts or the right-hand nen are not held for their
rcaponaibilities.

e tids tire I wish to be allowed to refer to the Rebuzl War Crime Tribunal
i2 wideh I had the privilege of participating, held by the Australion Armed
Forsus for your reference, Among some 230 persons who were tried in this
triyual there were only 3 Army Gencrals who were charged with --"failed to
d.lscharge their duties to control the operations of their subordinated®,=-

T the precedents at the tribumal here, other than a fevr excevtions, =
alroet all commanding officers of independent units have had imposed upon
them the responsibility for controlling their subordinates' operations,

h2 far as 1 know, my associate Mr., Kuwata has submitted objections to
Charge II and its smecifications at the beginning of this cose, Ajioka's case,
and Captain Koichi's case. His argument is meinly base? upon legal grounds
but in tho fundamental idea there is a common interest rith my conviction,

What I have stated above is my conviction concerning the principle of
punishment ageinst war erimes, but there might be different opinions on this, |

I think there are only a very few judieinl precodonts in var erimes in gon=
eral, especially vhere oriminal responsibility is imposed on superiors. The
uty of making fair end just judicial precedents lies solely with tho mermbers

idﬂ;iﬁ; cormission. In judging this I preay that my argument be deeply eon~
ered,

I will proceed with my argument on each charge and specifieation,

“a(2)"
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Argument in regard to Charge One,

The accused Nakanura is charged in specification one of Charge I that on |
about 4 September 1944 at Babelthuan Island, Palau Islands with Kokubo,
hire, and Negatome, Yoshinord, did each nnd togother kill 3 Ameriean Pri-
ners of Yar then nnd there held ecaptive by the armed forces of Janan, and
specification 2 that on or about 29 Decenber 1944 at Babelthuap Island he
d with other members of the armed foroos of Javan end killod a British
tionnl, Charlie Smith,

I will not deny the faectt that there wns the netion on the part of the

ed Nakanmurn as charged in specification 1 and 2 as shorn by variocus
dence subnitted to this commission., But T hold that the reason Nekermura
indicod into these tyo oxecution incidents was that ho ecould nbdt help but

ql:ml:iput-a by various unavoidable circunstances of that tine,

i I would like to examine the cireunstances surrounding them as follows:
i

| 1« The nilitary situation,
Fhat was the military situation in the Palau Islands in September 1944
en the 3 prisoners of war, nll Amorican aviators, were executed?

The Lllied cttacks on Babelthuan Island were furious., Following the fall
Peleliu Island the Allied Forces landing on Babelthuap Island or Koror
land was expected, It was under a nost pressing military situation.

The fact that there mas a furious raid by an imerican Task Forece on the day
the indident, that is ~n 4 September has been testified to by the prosecu-
on witnesses, Yajima, Toshihiko and Sano, Giichi. In the Japanese service
a military lesson we were nll taught that the usual fllied strategy was tc
start o new landing operantion following e task foree attack. ind it was usual |
at strictest precnutions were taken when attacked by a Task Foree. "itness
Yaiirn in direct exnmination testified that on 4September the members of the
division headquarters were at thejr cormand post. From this we can clearly
nprehend that the Japanese armed forces on Babelthuap Island were on the
ert ond were under vpressing eonditions.

Under such a nilitary situation an order to execute the priscners was
igsued by the supreme headquarters. We rnust naintain that a low ranking off-
iger such as Nakamura under such pressed military situation could not help

obey the order of the supreme headquarters which seer to have beon decided

a basis of military necessity. A smiliar military situation prevailed in

conbor 1944 at the time of Smith's execution, that is, o group of natives
denly escoped to the enemy from ome village on Babelthuap Island; so it

only proper to judge this as an grave ememy plot, an advance notice of an

ion, At this time an Englishman, Smith, was held under suspiedon of
ng and was told by commanding officer Lieutenant Colonel Miyasaki that he
sentenced to death by division headquarters. Under such military situation
ign't it too severe to condenn the failure on the part of a low ranking off-
iger even though he did not doubt the legal merits of tho orders of the
headquarters and did not try to prevent it.

2, Personal history, ability, and schooling of the accused,
The accused Nakamura only finished primary school and was eonscripted
the army. He served as an NCO for such a long time under the strict
eipline of the Japanese atmy that he formed e habit of obeying orders.
m;:tmufmmmnmmumm,lmumm
ﬂmﬂr.




At the beginning of this trial Nakamura's mental condition wae made an

sue, Comcerning this a detniled examination wos made by an American nawal
trist, and it was proved that he was sane. Therefere, I do not wish at
8 tine to make an issue of it ngnin, but even a layman by conversing with
many times in Jananese, his native tongue, ecan juige to a certain degree
nental ability or intellectunl faculties of o Japanese, Not only I but

realise that his nmental ablility and intellectunl faculties are quite low
an officer,

3+ Environnents,

The rcouscd Nakarmura at the time of the ineldent was a First Lieutenant
head of the First Dotachment, but actually rhat position did he hold with-
the Kempeitai? In other words, vhat was his correlative status in relntion
j CO, Lt. Col, Miynsaki? In the statement which Nakamurn read in this court

ity, choraectcr, and rank, and that ho was greated only as an NCO by Miya

There is no evidential ¥alue in this statement, but I think we can sufficient
infer its possibility from the following statement, becouse in the report
cerning Lt. Col. Miynsaki which was submitted to this Commission by Condr,
en, it statos the following fnet cs the words of FHiyosaki: "“As a subor-

to of Tojo (Note: Genmeral Tojo, the prime minister curing the war) I

ed & very active part," From this one phrose nlone I believe we can under='
thet Miyasnkl vas a very nctive and positive man and displayed dietntor-
power in the Kempeital nnd that Nakamura ras weak and inconspicucus rnd was
plees before Miyasaki.

In suming up what I have said above, in the tw inclidents charged in
sppcifications one and tmo the eccused Nokamurn, no matter how reluctant he

ht have been, had to obey his superior orders becausc in addition to the
pobssing military situation there existed the coercion of CO Miyagakl, and
Naknoura's own low ability. This I think there were extenuating circumstances.

|
iil‘ven though the Commission does not ndopt this end find the accused gullty
nq"! Charge One, I pray thot the Commission will consider the fact that there

ny assogintes through mumerous conversations with Nakemura can not help |

stated that there was a great disparity between him and Miyasgaki in laarn:lngi]

mﬂ:a circunstances for mitigation and judge hin with synpathy and understanding,
I
I]M. Argument in regard to Charge II,

{| In Charge 1I, Violation of the Lews and Customs of War, the accused Nakn-
is charge? with the resnmonsibility of disregarding his duty as Cormanding
Officer of the First Detachment and ns Chief of the Police Seetion South Scas

itary Poliee, to control the actions of his subordin tes, and to protect
american prisoners of var and Smith, in that he permitted his subordinates
kill the seid priscners and Smith, In other vords, the accused Nakerura is

rgod with thoe criminal rcsmonsibility of a superior officer, which I hawve

cussed at the outeet of my argunent.

| Based upon my argument in the boginning, I meintain that it is unreasonable
impose the alleged responsibility upon Nakamura who was only & chief of o
tain section and under the command of Commanding Officer Miyasaki, et the
h Seas Kenpel Unit, thet such responsibility should be imposed upon Miyae
alone and that Nokesura is not guilty. I believe, however, that the mem=
of the cormission may not accept the basis of my argument with regard to
principle of the criminal responsibility of the superior officer, end I
you might not fully understand immedintely that the mecoused is not guilty
of|{Charge II, Therefore, I an constrained to examine the true sitmation of the
cution of tho American prisoners and Smith, in order to indicate to you that
acoused Nekanura is not gullty of Charge II.

" (4)"
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I shall exrnine snd deronstrate this point with regard to cach specifieaticn

Specification 1.

The neceused Nakarmura is charged in this spocifiention, in that he up=
disr¢garded his duty ns Cormonding Officer of the First Detachment,
h Seas Militory Polico, to eontrol the op rations of morbers of his
dptachment, and persons suhject to his control and supervision, namely ser=
t Kokuho, Corporal Nrngatome, and other —embers of the arned forees of Ja-
rmitting then to kill one Aimerican prisoner of war, It is true that Kokubo
Nagatone were renbers of Naknmura's detachment. It was Cormanding Officer '.
gekd, hinself, however, vho direetly cormandod and supervised the execu~ .
on ot the scene of the executiocn. This fnet is clear fron the testinony
of witness Scnc produced by the prosscution,

At that tine, the accused Nakarmura, ~oe under the control and supervision
of Miyasoki, as were Kolkubr and Nagatone.

The net of Kokubo cutting a orisoner is not in any vay a matter vhich
disnrsed of by Nakamura's ovn intention under his nuthority ns the Commanding
0fficer of the First Detachrent, South Scas Military Police., lssuning that
vas not present at the scene, Kokubo wruld have still beheaded the
soner =inee it vas the order of Miynsaki, and Nakarmura being proscnt, oven .
ifl he had tried to pravent the beheading, he would have heon prevented by the

o ' er of Eiyosaki,

Since Kokubo was directly ordered by Viyasrki to hehend the prisoner, Kcku-
's net was antirely heyond the ruthority of Nakamure to permit or nrevent
it. Therefore, this responsibility should be imposed upon Miyngaki alone and
it is errencous and unreascnable to charge Nakarura with it.

| Specifieation 2,

In this Specification, the accused Nakamura is held responsible Becouse he
refully disregerded his duty os CommAnding Officer of the First Detachment,
8 Seas 'ilitary Police, to take such moasures as vere within his power and
arpropriate in the circunatances to protect three fmerican priscners, in that
hg| pormitted the unlawful killing of these prisoners by Sergeant Major Kokubo,
Carporal Nogatone nnd other members of the armed forces of Jnpan, [t that time,
hapever, Nakanura, vho was the Commanding Officer of the First Detachment, d4id
nat in any voy have such an alleged duty.

Let us exaninec this by ovidonce.

(a) Lcoording to witnesses Yajima and Sano, the 3 American FOW's were under
cuptody of Chief of Administration of the division headquarters up until the
e they were executed and were not eonfinod and under protecti-n of the First
chment Kempeital,
(b) Aecording tow itnesses Seno and Nagatome, on the day of the execution
3 Lmerican POMs werc directly guarded by the guards of the division hcad-
rters, ~nd this state of affairs continued until just before the execution,
it was proved that just before the execution the priscncrs were led to the
@ onoe at a timo by the guards of division headquarters by orders of Eiyasaki.

g'h.ﬂ

In other words, the duty to take such measures as were within his ~ower and

[ priate in the eiroumstances to protect the prisoncrs was absclutely in the
hafids of division headquarters until just bofore the execution. When
ordered an’ the priscners come to the hole one by one, this responsiblity fell

tly upon Miyasaki himsclf, From the time the 3 imeriean nrisoners were
eaptive by the Japanese Armed Forees up until the time of the execution,
is obeclutely no fact to show that the responsibdlity of protecting these

" (5)"

|




-

| o¢ 5 D

pﬂuun-rl lay within the vower of Nakamurn, the head of the lat Detachment
of the South Seas Kempei-tai, and the prosecution has not so proved,

I believe it has heen made clear that the responsibility of the superior
officer conderning the execution of ) American prisoners alleged in both
fications one and tro is in both cases the respopsibility of CO, Miyaszaki,

Even though CO Miyagaki is dead and not present, the responsibility whieh
d be borne by Miyasaki should be borme by him and him alone, and to shift
s respongihbility on a lower ranking officer because he is not preeent, is
ntrary to all econcepts of justice.

Specification 3,
- The acoused Nakamura is alleged in specificotion 3 to have umlawfully |
sregnrded and failed to discharge his duty as CO of the lst Detachment, |
Sguth Seas Military P~liee, and as Chief of the Police Section, Hendquarters,
Squth Seas Military Police and permitted Ajioka nond Yomada to kill an English=-
y Smith, nnd he i1s asked for this responsibility. :

A1]1 actions on the part of Nakamurn in the Smith execution ineldent as -
tten in his svorn affidavit submitted to this court are that he merely
rried out as ordered the minute instructions including having Yamada, Kiyoshi
slooct which he received from CO Miyosaki. Ordering Yamada to shoot ros ~ithin
the scope of the orders of CO Miyasokl, and it was not an act carried out by
's ovn initiotive or his own cognisance based upon his duty as the
ng officer of the lst Detachmont or as Chief of the Police Section,

In order to meke this point clear, let us presume in place of Nakanura
st Lieutenant Sano, the Chief of the Speecinl Higher Seetion received the
ofders from Miyasaki concerning Smith's execution and porformed the identical
agtions rhieh Nakamura performed,

I In this case, Seno has no duty as the commanding officer of the lat Detach-
nént to command Yamada, but since it was Miyasaki's ordera, he would have order-|
Yamada to shoot, In the present case, any superior officer of the Kemped- !

if he had been orderad by Commanding Officer Miyasaki could have permitted

to shoot. Therefore Nakarmura's act of ordering Yamadn to shoot has no |

ction with his duty as the Commanding Officer of the First Detachment, i

equently we eannot conclude that Nokamura unlawfully diereparded and fniled |
discharge his duty. i

3 lies upon Miyasaki and not upon Nokarura.

= ————————

|
L It is obvious, therefore, thrt the responsibility alleged in Specification

Specifiecation 4.

It is true that the Gasupan Dotachment where Smith was held in custody
under the command of Nakamurn, Commanding Officer of the First Detachment,
thot Nakamurn wos senior person at the scene, The aeta rhich Nakamura

forned that day, however, were the same acts vhich could have been done by o.lq
offficor of the Kempeital who had been given orders by Comnmanding Officer

soki, In other vords, the duty alleged in this specification has no con-

ion with that of the Commanding Officer of the First Detachment and The
Chiaf of the Police Section, and it does not follor that he did not discharge

:ut;r.. Nakamura is not responsible; Miyasaki alone should be held liable
t.

mmm.mn-muntymwuuhupnuumtwm.-
upon Miyasaki the Commanding Officer of the unit, Thereforas, I hold
thmmhmtﬂIWnﬂfﬂhnmﬂ.

- ()"




s+ Conelusion,

I wish to oxprese oy sincere reogret that tho three Aneriean aviators, who
iently fought for their ecountry and honorably discharged their duties, were
cuted in the hands of the Japanese foroes anfter being unfortumately cap=
s prisoners, and that S3mith, on aged man, was executed, I wish to
nmy deepest compassion to their bereaved families. Alsc, I regret that
accused Nakermura vas involved in these exocutions;

But, I believe, I have gnined your full understanding that the accused
mura participated in these executions becnuse of the wvarious unavoidable
reunstances, and that he vas just anothor of the so-called little people and
s rosponsibility correspondingly little, as I hava stated at the outset of
argument,

Mr, Presidont nnd the Membors of the Commission. In judging the accused
kanura, I ask your merciful decision, I requost you take into eonsidoration
battle conditions and othor circumetnnces prowmiling ot that timo,

Rospectfully,

SANAGI, Sadamu,

I hereby certify the above to bhe , true and complete translation, to the
bpst of ay ability, of the original document in Ja=nnese,

E, KERRICK, Jr.

L » U- B. Navnl Res »
Intorpreter,
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Bl FUR THE DEFENSE 1K I :
| TARAWT KARAS mﬁ?,—*, rOTREE
it please the cbrmission:

I would like to deliver this argument in bohalf of Kokubo, Chihiro who
one of the three accused in this cose.

The accused Kokubo is charged with ourder in Spoeification 1 of Charge I,
he Judge Ldvocate maintained that the accused Kokubo beheaded an American
yrisonor of war with & sword on or about 4 September 1944, and introduced into
videnoce the testinonmy of witness Sano, Giichi and the affidavit of the
iceused hinmself in order to prowve hies allegntion,

Nor I would like to examine the evidence and make a detailed inquiry
goncerning the eriminal rospofieibility of the accused.

Is it sufficliently certain that the aecused Kokubo beheaded the prisoner
ind committed rmurder? The evidence introduced into this eourt will give a l
lefinite rmnswer to this question

I S8ano wvas the only prosecution witneess who vme at the scene of the exe-
tion and wvhe testified to ~lmost the entire procedure at thip ineident, I
hnll quote his tostinony as follows:

To the direct exnmination of the Judge Adwocate, Q. 41, he testifleds
omnanding Officer Miynsaki ordered Sergeant Major Kokubo vho was ot the scen
orgeant Mojor Kokubo, cut,' I rceall at this time Captain Nakamura also EI"
layed the orders of Cormanding Officer Miyasaki to Kokubo by saying, 'Kokubo,
t.! Sergeant Mnjor Kckubo, with his type 95 sword vhich he had, ecut at the
ek but it didn't cut vell, Fronm what I sew he cut o about the vidth of
8 svord, therefore, Commonding Officer Miynsaki said, 'Kokubo, it hasn't been
t.' And then Cormanding “fficer Miyngaki with his pistol shot this third
isoner tro or three tines and killed him, as I reerll, "

Let us see the affidnvit ~f the acoused Kokubo ccncerning this point. He
tes in Paragraophs 9 and 10 thereof as follora:

| "9, Captain Nakemurn ord red me directly in regard to the laat aviator,
NEy 'Iﬂh'l.hn. m.l.t--'

*10, Because tho blood rushed to my head, I 4id not cin and the eword
95) only hit the collar of the aviator's coet and did not eut hinm *

Only the above mentioned two items nf evidence were introduced in order
prove the allegation in tho charge agninst the accused Kokubo in this case,

]I The evidence nroved the following faots:

(1) In secordance with the orders of Commanding Offieor Miyasaki and
ptain Nalmmura, the sscused Kokubo tried to behoad the priscner,

(2) A though Kckubo tried to behead the priscncr he ecould mot cut the
soner with his Type 95 sword,

(3) Then Comnanding Vfficer Miyascki, with a pistol, shot hin to death,

These three points were proved beyond reasonable doubt, and mo ecounter-
vas introduged to disprove them,

-~
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In nocordance with these clearly esteblished faots, I would like fo gx-
pnine this ense in more detail,

. |

That homicide is r orime of killing a human being is so elear legal pan-
ption that it is deemed common kmowledge. In order to charge & persol
» it should be proved that the death of another person is ecused h!.lr

licious assnult, In this case, however, was this fundementsl element 1
« The evidence proved that the assault of Kokubo did not eouse the gdeath of
e priscner,

Then, hov was the third Amerigan prisoner killed. The prisoner was de=
tely nlive when Kokubc ranised his Type 95 sword overhead, ros the
soner :live immediately after Kokubo struck with this Type 95 4, or was
already dead? Neodless to say, this is the nost mport-ant 1ll'lln for the
cused Kokubo in this case,

Rogarding thies point, Prosecution witnees Sano testified:s "Sergecnt
jor Kokubo, with his Type 95 svord which he had, cut at the neck but it
idn't eut well, PFrom rhat I sav, he cut cnly about the width of his svord,* |
n Kokubo's affidavit thich the prosecution intrcduced into evidence, it ls
tated: "Becouse the blood rushed to my head, I Aid not nin and the agord
Type 95) only hit the collar of the aviator's coat and I did not cut him,"

Ascording to this evidence (os o matter of faect thet is all the Judge
ldvoeate proved), it is clear thet the sword vhich Kokubo struck did not ecut
he prisoncrs neck, As the noek ras not cut, the Commanding Officer Miyasaki

nid, "Kokubo, it hasn't been cut®, and then he shot hinm with a pistol two or
hreo times and killed him,

ds T have mentioned, it is suffichontly cloar that the death of the third
risoncr wne eczused by the shots fired by Commanding Ufficer Miyasaki, :

After all, tho third prisonor was executed by the pistel of Commanding
fficer Miynsaki, The accused Kokubo struck with his sword beforec these shots

|
| Now I would like to exemine the tro faots, nanely the act of the accused
pkubo and the death of the third prisoner,

26 Anprican Jurisprudence, Honicide, Section 45, reads: ™A person is pot

. r responsible for a homiedde unloss his rcet ern be sadd to be the
gouse of dooth,” In crder to burden a porson with eriminal résponsibility of
lonicide, it is essontial that the death of another beecaused by the act of tho
person, himself, In other words, therc must be 2 gasual relation between hip

Then, is there any causel relation between the act of the accused Kokubo
nd the death of the prisoner? In order to understond the inevitable relaticon
potwoen o cnuse nnd its result, we should ascourately know the act vhich is
Jeenod to be tho cawse. 8o we come back to the evidence of this cose,

Both the testinmcny of Sanc and the affidavit of the secwused himgolf state
he neck of tho priscner was not severed, It is clear that the gword out the |
oek to such an extend that the prisoper 41d mot Aie of the vound inflioted YWy
he cut, Ifthammmdﬁlmﬂﬁﬁmﬂwm,
ng Officer Miyusaki would not hnmd,m,ltWihm'.
wﬂ.ﬂmltﬁmm#hﬂ.ﬁ pdatol.,

Thege pletol shots fired by Command Ufticer Miyosakd eut off the cawsal|
ntdon Betweon the cot of the nooused and the death of the prisoner,
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' 26 American Jurisprudence, Homicide Sceticn 50 rea?s: "In the absence of
nspiracy, one eannct be lewfully convieted of hormielde if tho deceonscod dics
n another and distinet wound inflieted by a differomb .porscn,..If it apooars
t the net of the ncousod wons not the proximnte couse of the death for which
is being vprosececuted, bHut that another eause intervoned, vith which ho was
no moy ccnnectod, and but for which derth would not have occurred, such
upervening couse is a good dofense to the charge of honiclde."

Let us oprly this to this cose. This parugroph gives us n elear s~lutlion
which to determine the relation between the acts of the nccused Kokubo and
ormanding Officer Miyosaki, ond the “eath cf the priscner.

However, we should motice that the above cited maragraph says: "In tho
beence of eonspiracy, «.." Thie limitation night cause misunderst-ondinzs in
s cnse so I would like to explain it. For the exletonce of conspirocy, it
8 nocessary thet two or more porsons plotted before the cormission of their
ote, In this ecase, however, the judge ndvoeate did neither maintain nor pmv#
nt there wns such a plot between the accused Koku and Commending Officer
svki. Besides, the spocification states, ",...did, each ~nd together,..."
it does not ellege that there vwes o ¢onapirancy.

Tro acts were done in execution of this prisoner in this ecase. These two
ects, although they ammeared two in their externsl appearance were derived
nc origin == the will of Commanding Officer Miyasaki vho ordered the acoused
kubo to beheed, Miyasaki's will continued te exist throughout the tro nets, |
owever, the accused Eckubo, slthoush he had villed his orn aet, did not will |
he shots of Commanding Officer Miyasaki vhe firod then after Kokubo 4id his |
g¥n act, If Kokubc had asked Commanding Officer liyasaki by saying, "Fill you
xcoute hin beeause I f21led", his mill weould have eontimued to exist through-
ut the act of the commanding officor. 8o in that ease, he ought to be crim=
rosponsible for Miyasaki's nct which mas done after his own aot. But
evidence introduced in this court 2id mot proved that Kokuho asked Miya
uch o thing., Therefore the accused Kokubo had nothing to do with the act cf |
shooting of Commending Officer Miyasoki,

Acorrding to the testinmony of Snno, Miyasaki shot the prisoner to death
I’ch a pistol irmmedintely after Kokubo failed to but, but it is clear that the
jphots of Miyazaki were fired without any comnection with the will of Kokubo,

I

|

' Therefore, the net of the accused did mot result in the death of the
riscner but death wos caused by the nct of Miynsaki which followed Kokubo's
ot. So it is clearly impossible to charge the eriminal responeibility of the

cused for the death of the priscner which was causod by Miyasaki's net which
dntirely independent from the act of the accused,

| Now let us change their pcsitions, and assume that Commanding Officer
saki cut firet failling tc kill the orisoner and ordered the accused Kokubo
shoot Iim with a platol,

In this instance, the act of Miynsaki is not the cause of the death but t}
eath is the result of Kokubo's shcoting, yet Miynsaki is responsihble for the
th cnused hy the shooting of Kokubo, Beesuse there continuously exists the
of Miyansoki fron the former to the latter. Miyasaki eould contimuo the wi

by giving on order to Kokubo,

However, in the pending cnse, it is not proved thot Eokubo asked Miyasaki
offectucte his will, os I have already mentioned,

"0 (3)"
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In short, the mct of the mccused Kokubo in this case was completed when
he was ordered by Miyasaki and Nakamura dnd struck with his sword in order

| to execute the prisoner, Then the stage turned, And the overbearing vill

of Uiyasaki continusd on and the acts were independed of Kokubo, and then

the prisoner was killed,

As I have explained, the met of the sccused Kokubo did not result in
tho death of the prisoner, Then, the eriminal responsibility of the accused
| Kokubo 4n this caso is limited to his act which he did beforc Fiyazaki shot
| the prisoner, beeause vhere there is no intent therec is no criminal respon=
libﬂity-

Now, me arc confronted with o problem, how should we interpret the
eriminal rosponsibility of tho accused Kokube? It is true that the accused
Kokubo did not attain the purpose of his killing the prisonor, but, anyway,
he assaulted and struck the prisoner with a sword. If we observe this fact
from o legal view-point, the following conclusion is possible: _
I First, the neccused assesulted and struck the prisoner vith intent to !
| commit murder, but the death was not caused by his nsseult. Thorefore, he
should be charged with attempt to murder, With the theory of criminal law
of Japan and the countries in Europe, this conelusion is at least the most
proper one, However, in tho United Statcs, neme such an attemptat murder
is tormed "Assault with intent to commit murder,®

Section 457, Noval Courts end Boards, Schedule of Offenses and Limit-
ations, emmerates such a crime ns "Aspgault with intent to commit murder.,”
The rccused Eokubo in this case struck the prisoner with a sword, but the
prisoner did not dic, In this instonee, I think that his act falls under
"Assault with intent to commit murder" emumerated in that schedule, Hovevor,
the eriminal theory of any country of the rorl will admit that an aet which
did not bear » ropult eanmot be charged as a complete erime, Section 212
of Wharton's Criminal Lav resds: "...It (an attempt) must be unfinished,
as othoerrisc the indictment would be for the complete orime, but there must
be some avureciable fragment of the erimo conmittod, and it must be in such
progress that it will bo comswmated unless interrupted by circunstances
| indooendednt of the will of the attempter.” As you see in this stipulation,
|an net rhich did not bear a result cannot be cherged as a conplete crine.

I believe, therefore, that the accused Kokubo in this cose is erimimnlly
responsible for the crime of "assault with intent to cormit murder®, I
:t-hink that the sccused Kokubo should be found "not gullty™ for the nlleged
erime of murder,

Evon if the accused be found guilty with "assault with intent to commit f
murder,” in spitc of his being charged with murder, the punishnent for his |
erimo ennnot exceed 20 years cccording to Section 457, Nawval Courte and
Boards, namoly, Schedule of Offenscs and Limitations, Besides, it should be
further noted that the accused Kokubo acted in accordnnee with the orders of
(| Miyagaki and Nakemura both of whom were his superiors. So there should be a
reasonoble ground for the ritigotion of his punishment.

Lastly, I would like to explain about the ashes of Segeamnt Tkushinmn
which the acocusod Kokubo ocarried vith him, Why 4id4 the accused Kokube earry
tho ashes of Sgt. Ikushina to the scene? In regard to this question ve have
the affidnvit of the accused Kokubo which the judge advocate introduced into
evidonce in this court., Paragroph 4 of the affidavit reads: "4. At the sane
tine as that, I felt afrnid somehow or other, I suddenly thought of taking
tho nshos of Sergeant Ikushima in order to rid myself of this fear," Vo
understand frorm the shove-mentioned statement thot the accused fenred even
to go to the scene of tho execution and that he took the ashes of Sgt. Iku-
shina in order_to conpose himself,

-
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Even if the commanding officer, Miyasaki, happened to say at the scene
of tho cxeeution, "Avonge Ijushima on him! Cutl®, that +1ll not draw a
conclusion that the ncoused Kokubo brought tho ashes to avenge Ikushina on |
the prisoncr and cut, The accused Kokubo brought the ashes in ordor to ecn=
posc hinself and to ri¥ himself of fear, not for the revengc of Ikushima,
It is nothing but n momentery feeling of Cormanding Officer Miynscki nt tho
seene that the execution vms done for the revonge of Ikushima, To inten-
tionally like the fmot thot Kokubo had the ashes rith the exocution and toke
this as having been for the rovunge of Ikushina is definitely o misteke and
a prejudice, It is true thot tho prosecution witnoss, 8ano, testified, "
Cormanding Offieor Miyasaki ordered Kokubo to ecut, Commanding Officer Miyn- |
sakl shouted in a loud volce, 'Sergeant, tnke rovengo for Sgt. Ikushimal' |
Therefore vhen Sgt. Mejor Kokubo stung his sword I roerll hin saying that 1it|
vas for the revenmge of Ikushima.,® T ocan not think that his testimony cone=
coring this point is tho truth, Even if it be the truth, this gestirony
expresscs only the feeling of Commanding Officer Miynsaki an® it neither has
anything to 4o with Kokubo nor shows that Kokubo is a man of evil charancter.

The judge adwocote took the question of vho had the nshes of Ikushima
vhen the cccused Kokubo cut the prisoner in this court, Horover, rhother

the sccused Kcokubo hed them hanging around his neck or handed then to another

person has nothing to do rith the killing of the prisonors in this corse.

How cap we think that tho ashes thonselves could aid or assist the perfornd "

ance of the execution?

If there had been o conspiraey im this esse betveen !'iyaseki and the
accused, the acmuscd would have had the same will as Miyasaki, But ns I
stated before nc one maintained nor proved that this offense is in eonspir-
acy of theso porsons. Then rhatover 4id Miyazaki think of theose nshes is not
but the thought or feeling of lidyasaki and is quite irrclevant to the issue
of the ecase of these defondants. Besides, Kokubo tock the ashes in order to
rid hinmself of his fear. Even if there had been n fealing of revenge in the
mind of Miyasaki, Kokubo eould not have knovn that, Theo scoused Kokuho
tried to bohead the nrisoner in aeccordanec with the ordurs of Hiyasaki and
Nakarurs, but he ailed, ind the nrisoner ras killed by an rntirely “ifferen

jhi

t

cause, the shots fired hy Commanding Officer Fiynsaki.

|
I believe that linit of his eririnsl responsibility has beon nade ulunr.ii

T vould 1like to finieh this argurent by pleading with you to find the
accused Kokubo not gullty of the crine of murder,

Respectfully,
KARABAWA, Takanmi,

I hereby certify the above tc he a true and complete trandlation, to
the best of my ability, of the original do t in Jancnese,

pnant, U, 8, Naval Reserve,
Interpreter,
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A FINAL ARGUMENT FOR THF DEFFNSE
delivered by
Mr, Kuwata, Hideo
May it please thc Commission:

I wish to make this argument in behalf of the accused NAGATOME,
Toshimori.

It is a fundamental rule of ériminal law that a person is eriminally
rerporaible on’y for the acts comuitted direotly and immedintely by him- |
e:'f. [he Law, however, modifiel o~ relaxes this rule under certain ecir-
custenzus, Oue of the exceptions to this rule is conspiracy. In cases
wier? there I1s 2 conspiracy, a corspirator will be held liable, not omly
waor, ac acts together with the perpetrator at the scexs of the offense,

* ag'ja*e hir by somc meams or oiher, but even whea he 1s not present at
t. ascent, for the acts commitied bv h 8 assoclates in furtherance or
reseution of a common unlawful design for which thev are combined., Since
i1 the vreaent case, no contention or proof has been made that there was
* conapireer amone the accused, the foregoing nrincirle that 2 merson is
c*iminally resronsible only for the acts committed directly and immedir
r.%ely by himself, 1s apprlicable. This prineiple does not mean, however,
Lant e peraon ia guilty unly when he himself directly and immediately coms
mitted a eriminal aect. There are cases where he is condemmed for parti-
cipating in a sxrimipal act of another person, Then, what conatitutes
participction in a erime? 1In order that a2 person may be regarded as a
particivant in 2 homicidal act, he must hawe aided, abetted, assisated,
enccurazed or edvised the killing with the intention of encouragine and
atetting the commission thereof, ’

The facts under which the accused Nagatome is alleged to have rarti-
eipatad in the killing of the three American prisoners nare (1) that he
escorted these prisoners from the Kempeitai to the viecinity of the scene
of the excoution (2) that he was present at the scene of the executiom,
and (3) that he held the ahses of Sergeant Ikushima at the scene of the
execution, In the following portion of my argument, I shall discuss
whether these alleged facts existed, and if they did, whether these facts
contitute his participation in the killing of the said rrisomers and if
they nare sufficient cauvsesfor which he can be hald criminally responsible,

First of all, that the accused Nagatomc escorted the three prigeners
from the Kempeital to the vicinity of the scene of the execution, was
testified to by the accused himself on the witness stand, when re replied,
on cross-cvamination, "When I got on the truck, I was ordered by Firgt

Lieutensnt Makamura to guard the nrisomers." 8o, there is no denying that

this is true. The accused, however, also testified that he abasclutely &
not mow where and why he was going, when he got on the truek end left
Eempeitai, and that he did not know about the execution until he arrived
at the scene and saw the hole, In other words, he did not know that the
prisoners would be executed when he was ordered to escort them, He would
be held responsible as an aider, if he had mown about the execution of
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the prisoners and escorted them to the scene of the execution, becmuse
he would be niding, by the means of eseort, the killing of the -~risoners.
But sinee he had no kmorledge of thc execution of the rrisoners, there
cannot be recognized any existence of eriminal intent in him,

Then, can his testimony thet he did mot ¥mow thot the »risoncrs would
e executed when he left the Kemepital be truel In order to determine
this, it is neccessary that we examine how he came to go to the scetie of
the execution. As regards this point, the sccused Nagatome testified,
At the time of the inecident, I was guffering from jaundice and was ex~
cused from duty., Thet day I was feeling better, so I was taking a walk
around the unit with my coat off. Just at that time, around 4 o'cleck in |
the afternoon, I was ordered by First Lieutenant Jdakamura, *Nagatome! Get
your coat and come iddediately”, so I gdt my coat and went out," A person
who was sick and excused from duty covld not have known what w-a going on
at his unit, and there has been ho proof that the accused Nagatome wes
told that he wos going td the execution of the priscners when Nalamura
ordered him, “Get your cdat and com¢ immediately.” Therefore, judging
from these circumstances,; it can be safely concluded that the testimony of
Nagatome stating that he did not know about the killines of the ~risoners
until he saw a hole at the scene of the execution is true,

In the fmgcinl, i Have examined the fact of escorting the prisoners
from the subjective viewpoint of the accused Nagntome's paychological
state, Next, I shall analyse objectively the substance of this escortinf
iteelf, Th the accused Nagatome was ordered by First Lieutenant Nakas

mura to esc the prisoners, he did not earry with him any ~eapon whatso-
ever, Of course, he had a swoerd belt atrapped around him, but there was
no sword attached to it, He has clearly testified that he did not carry
a rifle, or pistol, or any other kind of weapon. Furthermore, when these
three prisoners were brought to the Kemepitai on a truck from the division
headruarters their hands were tied and each prisonerswas guarded by a
guard from divisicn headruarters who was holding the rope. These guards
from the division headquarters did not return to headruarters =s having
been relieved by the acoused Nagatome whem he got on the trueck, but still
holding the ropes and guarding the prisoners, they went as far as the
scene of the execution., Moreover, it was these guards who delivered the
prisoners to Commanding Officer Miyasaki at the scene of the execution.

In view of this, it is quite obvious that the prisoners vere escorted by
the guarde of division headruarters up to the time when they were handed
over to Commanding Officer Miyesaki just before the execution, In gther
words, dvision headcuarters was solely in charge of escorting the nriso-
ners., Therefore, the conclusion is thot the ncoused Nagatome finally did
not do anything in relation te the escorting of priscners, though he had
been ordered to escort them by First Lieutenant Nakamura, Here, he escor-
ted prisoners exists in name but not in substanee looking at it either
subjeotively or objectively, Consecuently, I am convinped that the fact
that the accused Nagatome went to the scene, having been ordered by Naka-
mura to cscort the prisoners, does not constitute his particivation in
the killing of the prisoners, apd cannot be a reason for holding him c
eriminally responsible,

"q(2)*




Next, let us study the fact that he was pres nt at the scene of the eve
cution, There is no heed of citing other t:stimonmy as regrrds this -oint,
because Nagatome himself admitted that he wcs there, The mere fact that
a person was present at the scene, unless bosed uporn conspiracy, does not
in itgelf constitute a crime. I shall cite, in the followingz, American
references supporting this view: Wharton's Criminal Law: Vol, 1, section
246 stntes, "Merely witnessing a crime, without intervention, does not
make a persen a party to its commisslion, unleses his interference was n
duty, and his non-interference was ene of the conditioms of the comission
of the crime; or unless his non-interference was designed by Him and |
operated as an encouragement to or rrotection of the -ervetrator.”

Again, American Jurisprudenee: Vol, 26, Homicide Seotien 60, states, "One
who 1s merely rresment and sees that a homicide is about to be committed,
snd yet in no magmer interferes, is net thereby deemed to participate in
the commission of the offense. Failure to prevent the homieide, or tacit
assent to, silence acruiesence in, sedret approval of or consent to the
act, by one preacnt, generally deces not make him guilty, where there is ng
previous understanding, although as to the consent there are some stote-
ments to the coentrary.”

As it i1s stated in the above citotions, participation in en offense
may be oomstituted agoinst a p-rson for merely being present at the seene
when it is the duty of that -erson to rrevent the offense., The accused
Nag-tome, howcwer, was, at the time of the incident, only a lowly corporal
and the killing of the mriscners was performed under the eommand and supen
vision of Licutenant Colonel Miyazaki, who wae the accused's muperier off
cer. The law, in some cases, imposes the duty of preventing an umlawful
act of a subordinate upon his superior officer, but, I believe we wil)
not be ablc to find any law in any country of the world whieh sets forth
the duty of subordinates to prevent the unlawful act of his superior offi+
cer, Consequently, the faet that the acoused Nagatome did not prerent
the killine of the ~risomers doca not mean that he —articirated in the
crime,

As stoted in the abovre e¢ited references, it can he considered t et non
interference of & person in an offénse operates in view of his rank cr
status as an encouragement to or protection of the perpetrntor., For in-
stance in the rre=ent ense, the mere fact that Commanding Officer Miyazaki
wos present at the scenc operates as an encouragemert to or nrotection of
the -erpetrator, even if he did not do eny of such acts as to rive orders,
insticete, encourage, abet, aid, counsel, ete,, and eonseruently he would
be considered as a participant in the offense to sveh e~tent, It oean be
readily coneeived, by sheer comm~n sense, that the mcre preacnce of the
acoused Nagatome at the scenc of the execution performed under the direct
command of Miyazakl, rendered nothing to thc encouragement to or proteet
tion of the perpetrator, Thus, the fact that the accused Nagntome was
preszent at the scene, by itself, does not mean his participation in the
crime,

The judge advocate, however, will rrobably rebut my foregoing argu-
ment, by asserting that they, of course, would not indiet him 4f he was
enly present at the seene., Didn't he hold thc ashes of Sergeant Thushima
at the secne of the erime? This 4s none other than aiding the commission
of Kokubo's offense,
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It was witness Sano, Gidchi, whe testificd that he reealled the aec-
cused Nagetome holding the ashes, while co-dcfendnnt Kekubo assaulted the
prisoner. There are, howcver, many ineconsistenciecs in the testimony of
witness Sanoj and we cannot say that his recollcetion is always correct,
For example, Sano tcstified that intelligenece staff officer Yajima had
interrogated the prisoners at the Kempeitai, but witness Yajima, Toshihiko
definitely stated that, as fir as the rrisoners in ruestion are concerned,|
he did not investigate therm at the Kempeital, Again, Sano testificd that
he recalled Second Liecutenant Kiyomine was present at the sceme, but
Kiyomine, Kazuo, the witness for the defense, tcatified that he did not go
to the scene of the erime, It cannot be concedved that Sano who gave such
an erroneous testimony with regard to such sallent facts as whether a cer-
tain person Investigeted the rriscners at the Kempeitai, or whether a cer-
tain person, particularly an officer, was preasent at the scene, could pos-
gcss a precise recollection on such a transient and inconspicuous fact as |
whether Nogatome was holding the ashes of Sergeant Ikushima, a tiny thing
about three or five inches cubed, when Kokubo assanlted the prisoner,

And since the accused lagatome has clearly denicd this fact, and since
Kokubo did not state that he gave the ashes to Nagatome, the testimony

of Sano stating that he recalled Nagatome holding Sergeant Ikushima's
ashes while Kokubo assaulted the rrisoner, must be a mistake in Sano's
recollcetion, and should not be given any credibility. In view of this,

1 do not hesit te to state definitely that there was no fact that the ac-
cused Nagatome wos holding the ashes of Sergcant Ikushime when Kokubo com-
mitted his offense,

Conoeding this point, and assuming thot the accused Nagatome wns
holding the ashes while Kokubo committed the offense, it does not follow
in any way that Nagatome aided in Kokube's offense., Now, what was the

significapce of Sergeant Ikushima's ahses being at the scene of the exe-

cution of the vrrisoners? With regard to this point, witness Sano testi- |

fied that Commanding Officer shouted, "Take revenge for Ceorporal Ikushis-

ma" when he ordered Kokubo to cut, In other words, the aghes of Ikushima |

were nothing but a symbol of revenge secreted in the mind of commanding
officer Miyasaki. If Sano's testimony 1s true, the revenge ngainst the
prisoners may have been secuestered in the mind of Miyasaki, This,
however, was solely Miyazeki's personal problem, and had no conne¢tion
in any way with the accused Nokamura and thc rest of the accused, Furthers
more, revenge merely constituted the motive for the ~rime which Miyazaki
committed, It hes been repeatedly taught in lectures on jurisprudence
that between motive and eriminal intent a rigid distinction =hevld be
made., Motive is a factor which incites a person to a definite determi-
nation, while it does not constitute the substance of intention., Ameri-
een Jurisprudence, Vol, 26, Homicide, Section 36, states as regards this
point as follows:

"Motive may be defined ms the impulse or purpose which leads or moves
the mind to perpetrate s criminal aet, whether it is murder or some other
erime, Motive must not be confused with intent.... While it is true,
however, that maliee 1a of the essence of the crime and must be proved,
it by no means it is true thet proof of motive is essent to the con=
viction of one who is charged with murder. Motive is not €a~ential
element of the crime of murder, or of any other crime, excent to the ex-
tent that it is made so by statute,”
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As it is clearly stated in the above citation, motive is not a eon-
stituent element of the erime of murder. In order to charge a person with|
aiding a erime, he must do an act which facilitates the commission of an
act effective to the consumation of the offense, such as teaching the per-
petrator the method of the offense, or rroviding him with instruments %o
be used in the offense, or leading him to the scene of the crime, That !
is, it is essential that the person should do an act to facilitete the
perpetration of an act fulfilling the constitubnt re~uirements, and to aid |
or abet the motive whieh does not belong to the constituent element cammot |
te dechmed as nbetting or aiding a crime, If the sald sshes, horever, were|
80 voluninous that Kolubo who was carrying them with him found it impos-
sible or considerably difficult to assault the rrigsoner, we may cay that
holding the ashes for him would have constituted an aid to the rerpetration
of his erime, But Ikushima's ashes, according to Nagatome's testimony,
were only three inches cubed, and even according to Sano, merely five .
inches cubed, a vcry small thing. 8¢, the ashes were not of a sisze to
render the perpetration of Kokubo's offense impossible or diff'icult even
though he held them himself. From this view also, we cannot say that
Nagatome facilitated the perpetration of Kokubo's offense,

There is, however, other eyidence with regard to the ashes of Iku-
shima, which cennet be overlocked, That is, the fret that the accused
Kolmbo admitted in his statement introduced by the judge advocate and
accepted by the commission, that es soon as he Leard about the aviators, |
he felt a sort of fear, and that it suddenly occured to him to crrry the |
ashes of Sergeant Ikushima in order to remove the fear. According to this|
statement made by Kokubo, Ikushima's asheés were the means by which Keokubo |
removed this fear, To remove fear from the commission of erime, implies, |
in a way, that criminal intent was strengthened; in this sense Ikushima's |
ashes merved as a mental aid te Kokube in his commission of the offense, |
The fact that the ashes of Ikushima were the means to remove Kokubo's fear |
was secreted in Kokubo's mind until the end, and this intention was not |
disclosed to any other person, There 1s not a single bit of evidence |
showing Kokubo had told this to someone else. When the accused Nagatome I

|
|

was asked on the stand, "Do you kmowm why Kokubo had taken the ashes of
Ikushima?" he c¢learly answered, "I haven't the slightest idea." Accord-
ing to this testimony of Nagatome, he did not know whet these ashes meant
to Kokubo., Even though Nagatome was entrusted with the ashes by Kokubo,
he did not have the slightest cognisance that he was faciliteting the com= ‘

mission of Kokubo's offensc¢ by his act, It is possible, of course, to
infer the inbtent of aiding from the acts themselves, if they ere o~dinary
ways of aiding, such as tesrhing the method of committing an offense, or |
providing one with instruments for committing an offense, But in such an |
extracrdinary case as the rresent one, where an act had significance only |
to Kolubo himself, no person is able to comprehend his intention, unless |
Kokubo diseloses it himself. Thus, it is only natural that the accused
Nagatome should say that he did not know why Kokubo tock the ashes with
him, All in all, Nagatome did not have the slightest intent to aid Kokubo
in his commission of the erime, Where there is no criminal intent, there
is no room for the constitution of a crime. In closing my argument, I
would Jike to eite again from American Jurisprudence:
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"In order that a person may be reghrded as a participant inm a homicide
he must have alded, abetted, nssisted, encouraged, or adrised the killing
with %mm of encouraging end abetting the cofmission thercof," (Ibid
Vol. 26, Homicide Section 60).

I maintain that the accused Nagatome is absolu'ely not puilty of
Specifiertion 1 of Charge I.

Respectfully,
KUWATA, Hideo

I hereby certify the foregoing, conslatihg of five and one-ruarter
(54) typewritten pages, to be a true and complete translation of the
original document in Japanese, to the best rg my ability,

Lieﬁt-ennnt, U.S. Naval Reserve)
o e e
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FINAL ARGUMFNT FOR THF DEFENSE
IN RE MAKAMURA, ET AL
Delivered by
Commander Martin E, Carlson, USHR,
Jampary 27, 1048

May it please the Commission:

In accordance with Section 421, Nawal Courts and Boards, the ascoused
(counsel) ih every ease is afforded an opportunity to presert an argument
before submitting his case to the court: This same section of Naval Courts
and Boards alsc rcads: "Neither the probecution nor the defense is
required to make an argument; however) tHe proper presentation of the case,
as well for the benefit of the court al of the reviewing authority, would
suggest that both prosecution and defchse avail themselves of their respec=
tive rights to make argument,."

In summing up the case for these three accused we shall point out cere
tain irregularities which according te court-martial orders are prejus
dieial to these accused,

On the first day of the trial the accused challenged three of the five
members. of the commission, nemely: Lieutenant Colonel Victor J. Garbarino,
Coast Artillery Corps, U, S, Army; Lieutenant Colonel Fenry K. Roscoe,
Cbast Artillery Corpe, U. 8., Army, and Rear Admirsl Arthur G. Robinaon,

U, S. Navy, President, Lieutenant Colonel Garberino was challenged firat
and the court was cleared, The challenged member withdrawing., However,
when Lt, Colonel Roscoe was challenged the court was not eleared, neither
did Lt. Colonel Roscoe withdraw as he should do but the president of the
court simply "annomced that in view of the fact that the reasons for this
challenge were practically identieal with the first ocbjection, the o-fee-
tion was likewise not sustained." When the president of the commission was
challenged the court was not cleared, neither did the challenged member,
Rear Admiral Robinson, withdraw, Lieutenant Colonel Roscoe ¥amnounced that
the objeection was not sustained.,”

We asked that the court take judicial notice of C.M.®, 51929 and they
did do so. This court martial order although criticizing the court and
the judge advocate for lack of knowledne of correct court martial proce-
dure, held that the errors and irregularities were not prejvdiciel to the
interests of the accused because the accused waas acruitted, How it would
have been had the accused been found guilty we ean be sure by the remsgks
of the judge advocate in the C.,M,0, 6=1°21 in which he said, "Such proce-
dure was wholly illegal,”

In C.M,0; 5<1929, case of Benjamin Katz, U, S, Navy, the convening
anwthority placed the following remerks on the record: "A review of the
reoord of procecdings of the general court martial in the foregoine ecase
of Ensign Benjamin Kats, U, S, Navy, discloses a number of errors and ir-
regularitics which indieatc unfomiliarity on the part of bdth the court and
the juige advocate, with preseribed court martial procedure.

"It 48 noted (p,1) that the acoused objected to a member of the court
Ilt. ﬂnlh'- Oliver Iu 'm.'ﬂ. ul Ea m. ﬂlﬂ r‘m ﬂ!ﬂ. that the OW“
was cleared buk fails to show that the challenged member withdrew,

L]
L

“mR(1)"




Py

"In this conncetion, uutlm 626, Navnl Cowrts and Boards states, 'It
is omary for a member objeéted to to withdraw when the court is cleared
to deliverate on the challenge, ond he should always do so.'

The Chief of the Bureau of Novie tion fully soncurred in the vemarks
of the convening authérity and the Secretary of the Navy n-proved the
remarks of the convening authority and the recommendation of the Chief of
the Bureau of Novigation." |

In this present trial the three members of the commission were chal- |
lenged beenuse they sat as mehbers of the commission which tried Ajicka, |
Misao and Yamada, Kiyoshd charges boaed on the same transactlion con-
¢I:ni.ng which t.hs acoused Nokhmura is on trial. The followinm court mar=

1 orders seem to set forth rulings to this effect: first that a chal- |
lenge in a Base where 2 medber "gat as a member of a court whick tpied
ano‘her person upon charges brsed om the same transaction concerning which
the accused is on trial® should be sustained and second, if the challence
is not sustained the proceedings, findines, and sentence will be set asidd.

We call the commisaion's attention to this C.M.0. 5=1972¢ and to the n
following C.M.0. relating to challenges. C.M.0. 151=1°19 resulted in the
J.A G, disaprroving the findings in revision,

C.M.0, 2-1¢2/ was another ocase of challenge of members for valid
cause and again the J.A.G, advised the accused that the cuestion of a new
trial in »is case would be comsidered if he made formal petition there-
fore,

In C.M.0, 1-1°34, pp 7-8, the Secretary of the Navy set aside the
rrocerdings, findings, and sentences in the cases of these two men in the
last two of three cases where "all three trials were based on rroctically
identical testimony elicited from a certain witness who wns the only one
called by the vrosecution in each of the three cnses. The accused cb=
jected to the ssmior member of the court "om the grounds of Section 623(e)
Naval Courts and Boards"=- that is, that he sat as ~» member of a court
which tried another person upon charges based on the same transaction con=

cernins which the accused was on trial." I

" sshn-a mtiter of fact, the record of rroceedings of the first -
trial ~isclosed that the main witness for the prosecution had referred ta
both of the two men whose trials are now under conmsideration as having E
been vresent at the time the alleged offense was committed, While a por-|
tion of this testimony was stricken from the record, it nevertheleas !
remains that the court was informed that the n-:r.'.'un'd in each of the late'rl
capes was involved in the transaction out of which the case beins tried
arose, |

A

From the foregoingz, it would appeer that the challenzed members mind
might be prejudiced to such an extent as to prevent his exercise of the
impartial judgment required of a court, Sinoce the members who woted on
the challenge of the senicr member were both presumebly cognisant of the
testimony given in the first trial, referred to above, it would appear °
that they did not carefully weight the challenges and replies. Moreover,
the challenge in each case should have been sustained on the ground on
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which it was m h the accused {'ﬂltin' Sea, 62’. H.ﬂ.ﬂ-. sz, secend
dentence,)"

It was further noted that fduring the course of ench of the trials here
under consideration, the accuse’ ghallenged a seetnd member upen substan-
tially the same grounds as those on which the senior member wap challenged|
These challenges were not sustained, apperently om the ground thet the
challenged member in each sase testified on his voir dire to the effect
that he had formed no opinion as to the guilt of the accused.

(2) 1In view of the foregoing, the Secretary of the Navy set aside the
proceedings, findings, and sentences in the cases of these two men.® |
In C.M,0, 4=192% p, 5, the convening authority stated, "It is noted
that the court failéd to sustain the objectio~ of the aceused to 2 member;
the convening authotity is of the opinien that courts should be 1liberal in
passing upon challbrges and that the court in the present case should as o

matter of rolicy have subtained the objection of the accused,”

In G,Mi0, 61921, the J.A.G. of the Navy Department said: "In a recent
case ea¢h member of the court was challerged by the accused, and the chal-
lenge in each case was sustained. The record shows, however, thht nome of
the challenged members withdrew, but continued to sit on the court and
determine the remainine challemges. Such procedure mas wholly illegal,”

In C.M,0, 7=1231, p. 10, the J, A.G, of the Navy Derartment held:
"From the record of proceedinzs in this case, it apresred that the conven-|
ing authority knew that the accused had valid grounds for objecting to :!"_i'"la
of the six officers comprising the membership of the court, In thls con-
nection attention was invited to the provisions of section 578, Navel
Courts and Boards, as follows: "No officer shoul” be named as a member
against whom,,..the acoused can reasonably cbjeet when called upon to exer!
eise the privilege of challenge.”

L

In accordance with Navy Regulations, court martial orders have full
force and effect for the guidance of all recrsons in the naval establish-
ment.

United Statcs Navy Regulations, 1920, Article Ti4:

"(1) A1l general rules and regulctions for the guidange of, and all
other general orders and general instructions to, persoms in the *
Feval Eatoblishment shall be contained in the following publisations
(a) Reguletions for the Government of the Navy of the United States ( Navy

ot ik Qomrmed o |
b D enerh ers.,
¢) Changes in Nevy Regulations eirculars,

(4) Court-Martial Orders.

(e) Signal books and drill books,

Uniform R ':iugl.
Naval C oards.
Marnuals or cireulars of instruetions issued by any buresu or offiee

and wules for genery exercises and engineering pe-formances,
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"3.(g) Naval Courts and Boarde: This shall include both the instructions
end the forms goverhing the procedure of naval courts and boards. The
order promilgating this cation and the order for all chahges that may
be made therein shall he signed by the Secretery of the Navy and anproved
by the President of the United States.

"(4) Orders or instruotions demtained in any of the nublications enu-
metated in the two preceding varagravhs of this article shall heve full
forece and effect for the guidance of all rerscns in the Navr]l I'stablishmen
No other general regulations, general orders, or ceneral instructions to
the Naval Istablishment shall be signed or issied by any bureau or office
under the eentrel of the Navy Department...”

T

Court Martial Order No. 4-1¢31 laid down the rule: "As court martial
orders have full foree and effeect for guldance of all verscns in the
pav-l estoblishment (Art, 74, par, 4, Navy Regulations, 1920) held, that
where such cowrt martial orders rrwide precedents in point with cases
unfer consideration by courts martial, members of such courte should ree
frain from disregarding such precedents, To so disrepard estnblished
precedents, as was done in this ecase, not only indicates a dereliction of
duty on the nart of members of the court but alsc results in a pross mis-
enrriage of justice," '

So in #eccordance with Navy Regulations, Article 74(4), no bureau of
office upder the control of the Navy Cepartment can issue penerel instruc-
tions to the Naval Fstablishment and all changes to Naval Courts and Boords
shall be signed by the Seéretary of the Navy and approved by the President
of the United Stateas,

Section 388(e) Navdl Courts and Boapds cannot therefore be changed by 4
dispateh orizinating in some office of the Navy Department,

But Nekamura, Kasuo, the chief prosecution witness in the Ajicka trial
has been tried for the same offense that he witnessed against Ajicke and
in order to prove the casc against him the -rosecution had ajicka testify

AJioka testified on the sixth day of the trial, He said that the com~ |
manding officer of the South Seas Kempeitai was Lt, Colonel Miyazaki. i

There was only one Kempeitai organization in the Palau Islands and
there was only one commanding officer and that was Lieutenant Colonel M
saki,

Where is he? The judge advocatesnaively bring in a slip of paper
8igmed he says by srme Japanese policeman to the effect that Lieutenant
Colonel Miyazaki comvitted suicide while beins arrested. .\nd the eourt
are suoposed to acoept this pieee of paper as the best evidence rf the
death of Miyasaki. The writer isn't even identified,

A1l three of these accused arc charged with'scting with Miyasaki, Avi-
%sune, deceased, then a lieutenant cclonel, IJi, did, each end together,
&t Babelthuap Island, Palau Islands, on or about Eep{nher 4, I%4..."
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Ofe of the judge advocates testified as tc this plece of paper.
But all he could spay was that it was received in the mail one day.

Miyasaki, the dommanding officer of all the Kemmeitai in the Palau J
Islands, and who mccorfiing to the testimony supervised and also executed |
by shooting one of moxé of the three prisoners (at leabt two of them)
and who ordered Nakamura to order Yamada to shoot an alleged Englishman,
isn't to be punished for thése alleged crimes because some Japanese
who signs his name Hikai, Kyoshi, writes a statement that while arres-
ting Yiyasalki he committed suicide.

No doétor's hitihon: is offered} no testimony by anyone who ewven

| knew Miyssaki is offered; only a ritten statement by ah unkmown pblice-
' man who went out to arrest Miyasaki, There is no showing he ever ar-

I rested the right man let alone that the man he arrested did commit
suicide; only his weitten evplanation why he didn't bring in Miyazald,
No one testified they knew the policeman or knew Miyasaki,

If the Japanese can go to all the trcuble they did to hide the |
identity of Katsuyama, Tetsuji, by trying to fale a sulcide in his uu'
. how much easier isn't it to hide the whereabouts of Miyasaki who was a |
colonel and ap important person, Kats:yama was only a second lieuten~ |
ant. You members of the codmission remember the story of Katsuyama }
well because you tried him in the Koichi trial. It is common knowledge |
among all Japanese that death can be proved in this war crimes court ’b'.r|
a plece of paper which has what looks to be a signature on it., It is

. too easy to prove death in this manner. How can anyone resist the
i tation to at least try to get away with it. This court has accepted |
. proof of death by what 1s contained on a plece of paper before, so why |
not try it again, There is nothing to lose, Of the many cases of |
death that have been proved by a plece of paper in this court none have :
ever been questioned by the commission.

But is Miyazaki dead? Speeification 1 of Charge I alleges,
"acting with Miyazaki,6 Aritsune, deceased, ....., on or about September
4, 1944." y

I Witnesses have testified he was alive on September 4, 1944, and the
! plece of paper introduced into evidence says he was dead on July 27,
1947. Who are we to beliava?

Many people say Hitler is still alive. The only »erson who says
Miyazaki is dead is the judge advocate and he says he knows because he :
has a plece of peper on which it is written in Japanese that Miyasaki '
committed suicide. '

But the judge advocate says it isn't important anyvay so why be
concerned with it., But if it isn't important whether Miyasaki is dead
“or alive why bring him inte the speeification of the charges at all?

Could it be that Af the court accepts as proof of the death of
Miyaszaki a piece of paper, that proof of death of the three Americans
and the Englishman can alsc be proved by a plece of paper?
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There can be no cross~examination when a plece of paper is sub-
mitted by a witness who kmows only that he recoived the -~iece of paper
in the maill one day.

To prove that Nakamura kdilled three unarmed Americans "by beheading
with swords and by shooting with firearms" the prosecution called as a
witness Sano, Giichi, a former first lieutemant im the Japanese Kempeitai.
He was there he sald, He aléo $aid that Colonel Miyasalkd was the dom=
manding officer of the Kempeital in the Palau Islands.

Before he testified abolt the executdon he testified under cath
when asked question 18: "Tell the commission hom you hapren to know I
the maticnality of these men?" !

Answer under oath by Sanos "I recall that it was around the end of |
August 1944, At this time these prisoners were landed on the caocst of
Migzuho, They were pilots of the B=24, On the way to division head-
quarters they stopped over at the Kempeital headquarters and Staff Offi-
crr Yajima came to question them; at this questioning I was present, so
I know this."

We moved that part of this ansmer he stricken on the ground of
hearsay but our motion was denied,

The judge advoeate asked their witness Sano, Q. 24: "Going back
for a moment to the interrogation of these nrisoners by Yajima, 4id the
priscners say vhat their natiocnality was?" ,

We objected to the question but were overruled., And Sano testified:
"I recall that I heard them say that their nationality was American." |

And so the court should believe that these three persons were
Americans because Sanc testifies under oath that he heard them say so
when Yajima was questioning them et the Kemepitail headquarters.

the

Sano saw these prisoners again he said in front of spommanding
officer's quarters in a truck; they were blindfolded and yet he was
allowed to testify they were the same nrisoners he sam Yajima inter-
roante at Kompeital headquarters about a week previous,

Q. 37: '"Nere the prisoners that you saw in that truck the same
priscners that you had seen Colonel Yajiman interrogating?™ ;

We cbjected to the questicn becesuse it was leading but were over-
ruled,

Under oath Sano testifies:

"I felt that they were, for the first time I saw them it was only
for a short while, but I thought that they were tho same prisoners."

A el
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!| We shall show hor this vwitnoss Sano tostifies, not alonr to what
he sees and hears, but largely vhat he imagines., Although an officer,
he was never given any orders to do anything ns far as orisoners mere
concerned, He would have the eommission believe he just went along so
he could witness against his compatriots.

You saw him on theo witness stand, hard, cold, and ruthleas, with-
out a trace cf emtolon, or feeling of syppethy as he told of the oxecus
yion: (Answer to Q 41:)

"Commanding Officer Miyazaki ordered Captain Nakamura, who wds i
at the secene, to cut the next one by saying, "Captain Nakamura, cut,"
(He had a'ready testified how Colonel Miyasaki had shot the first one,)

I "Therefore, Captain Nakamura vith his smord beheaded him, Com=
manding Officer Miyasaki ordered Sergeant M.:%or Kokubo who was at the
scene, 'Sergeant Major Kokubo, cut,.',...

|' "Sergeant Major Kokubo, with his type 95 sword which he had, out
. at the neck but it did not eut well, From what I sav he eut only a

iI the width of the sword, therefore, Comramnding Officer Miyasakdi said,

i ‘Eokubo, it hasn't becn cut.' And then Commanding Officer Miyazald wi

I hip pistol shct this third grisoner two or three times and killed him,
| as I recall,"

Sano continues in answer to Q. 42 he adds for good measure, "At
this time Ikushima's ashes were brought to the scene and when 5;
hajor Kokubo cut, I reeall that Sergcant Nagatome was holding them,"

Now this is the prosecution's case, This is the only witne a
will testify against all three accused, He sav mrrt.hiln: and w;:tﬂ::
didn't see he imagined and will testify to that also, How much of wha
he testified to can be believed is a very serious question, Although 1
he took an oath to tell the truth by our Christian God, it evidently |
didn't impress him because on cross-examination he again testified !
about the prisoners coming down in a parachute but admitted it mas m]ﬂ
hearsay and he wasn't there. He also admitted that when he said they |
I mwere pilots cf the B-24 that that was also hearsay, '

. I
I To question 88 he answered as follows: "They werc on the way to |
| the division headquarters when they stopred at 1'.1‘111.5r Kempeitad anda{har |
| stayed there for one or trmo hours and Staff Officer Yayima came and

F questioned them and then they mere again put on the truck and sent to
l. division headquarters, so I know about it,"

l To question 89 he answered: "I recall that Staff Offieer Yafima

nas already at the Kempeitail and these prisoners were taken from the
truck and questioned at the Kempeital for a while and then wemt off to
division headquarters and Staff Officer Yajima was at the Kempeitai be-
fore the priscners came,"

To question 92: "Then when you said that they were Americans that |
is hearsay, too? - Licutenant Sano answered, "I heard it bocause I was
presant when Staff Officer Yajima was questioning them,"
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the Kempeitai, This was performed."

So &t vas. Sacno kept relteratifig that he was presont when Colon
Yajima quostioned those three persons at the Kempeitai headquarters.
|
Sano bad to admit he never got mearer than six meters from the J
truck and that he just thought that these mere the same three prisoner
he had scen and heard Yajima intcrrogaté at Kesmpedtai hehdquarters,

When Colonel Yajima came to tho witness stanfi as a prosecution t‘ritll-
ness he tcstifled that thero vere tem ofiscners, seven from Yap and '
three from Palau., The three nrisoners Colonel Yajima said ho first |
saw at Dvision Headquarters and not at tho Kempoitad, :
Colonel Yajima stated voery clearly on his eross-e-amination that |
he interrogated them for three days and then sent them to tho Kempei
on orders of Coloncl Tada., Colonel Yajima was asked: "Did you over |
investigate these prisoners at tho Kempeitai?" He answered: "No,
I did not."

Cclonel Yajima was adked another question in order to completely
discredit Sano, He was asked: "Did you ever investigate priscners at
the Eempeltai?™ ,

He ansmered, "I 444."- but thd judge advoeante objected to the
question "When ras this?" so we tried again and this time asked Colonel
Yajima: ""hen you asked if they vere Americans of dot did thia quese
tioning take place at the Kempeitai?" He answered: "No,"

Question: "lLieutepnnt Sanc —asn't present at that time was he?"
Anster by Colanel Yajima: "He was not there,"

How ean the commission believe anything Sano testified to?

Sano even testiffed that Lieutenant Kyomine was present at the
execution and we brought in Lt, Kyomine who teatified that he wasn't ut1
this exeoution,

Sano teatified regarding a diary which was an official publicati
of the Kempeital, But although he said he made the entry in the
about the exeeutdon he sald he wrote the entry on instructions of
Colonel Miyazaki what Miynzaki told him to write and not from what he
sam, He further testifled he burned this official document on ordera
of Colonel Miyaszald,

He says he remembers =riting in this diary: "Three American
aviators were ordered by the Division Headquarters to be executed by

Remember it was only what Colonel Miyasaki ordered him to ~rite
and not what he saw, However the prosecution haven't proved it was a
Kempeitad exccution sc their chief witness Sano testifying as to whatag.
other person told him can net be a credikable "ITtunees, He testifies
100 “mwak. Drem uhod o imagincs,




However, this tostimony relating to the ontry in the diary about |

the oxocution is most important, It proves it was an official functi
ordered by Division Headquarters, If the cowrt findsthat there was an
execution, that execution according tc the tcstimony of both Licutenan
Sano and Colonel Yajima was an official exceution, It eannot thercfo
be murder any more than a hanging which a hangman is ordered to do is |
murder, i

Only threec persona are accused of this crime of kKilling three
Americans, All throe of these acecused were ordered to be present at ¢
execution. One of the accused, Nagatome, did absclutely nothing at t
sceno of the executiecn yet he is singled out of at least ten perscns
charge” with the murder, Why?

In order tc gain a conviection it is necessary for scmecne to
testify against the accused, 8o although Nagatome did ahsclutely
nothing, he testified he didn't even hold the ashes of Ikushina. which
Kokubo had brought with him to the seene of the exeeution, he must of
necessity go on tho witness stand tc refute the testimony cf I.j.uutamnil
Sanc. Onee cn tho witness stand the judge advocate insists that Naga-
tome answer his questicns as te what Nakamura and Kokubo did at the
scene,

We objocted to the charges and specifiecations on the ground of
misjcinder. Then when we found cut that the judge advecate intended ta
use affjdavits of theasc accused not only to prove the case against the
affiant but against tho other twc accused we made an attempt to get a
severance, e tried to move for a severance cn the fourth day of the
trial, However,"thc judge advcoeate interrupted the ~otion of the
defense counsel and made an objoction te the metion for severance of
the accused, citing scetion 4LO4 of Naval Courts and Boards in support
of his objection,”

The gommission rejected cur motion for a soverance,

In 14 American Jurisprudense Criminal Law, Seec. 253, p. 944, we
read: "Not only must the opportunity of pleading be afforded tec the
defendant, but the faet that he did plead, cr at least was furnished an
opportunity to plead, must appear affirmatively in the record. (eciting
Hill v State, 1 Yerg.(Temn,) 76, 24 Am, Dec, 44l). This requirement
as to the rocord is not a matter merely of form, but of substance;
(citing Statc v Walton, 50 Or. 142, 91P. 490, 13 L.R.A. (U,8.) 811,)
and tho presumption of regularity aa to procedure will not avail where
the record does not affirmatively show such fact, (citing Appeal and
Error Vol, 3, p. 518, Seetion 956, Am, Jur,). Seec, 260, American Jurisp
pruodence, Ibid, states the law: "The defendant has an ahsculte right
to an opportunity to plead (See, 13 L.R.A, (U,S, B11) Without it, due
process of law is ssible (eciting State v Talton, 50 Or 142, 95.1’,
490, 13 L.R.A,. (U.8,) Bl11,) In a nomber of jurisdictions it is held
that the absence of an cpportunity to plead is fatal te a conviction
(eiting Hoskins v People 84 I11, 87, 25 Am,Rep. 433) State v Walton,
50 Or 142, 91 P, 490, 13 L.R.A. (U,8.) 811; Hill v State, 1 Yerg (Tenn)|
76, 24 Am, Dec. 441.
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Annotation: 45 L.R.A. (Us8.) 644; Am. Cas, 1917 D, 830,)=es i
We cannot but cite these cases cited in American Jurisprudence
because there are not any reports available here cn Guam, |
1
We maintain thete was misjcindsr of the acoused in this case to
the prejudice of onch of the ascused and that there was no reascn for
the joinder of these persons. There ate twe sharges but Nakamura is ;
the only person charged in Charge II, Kokubo and Nagatome aren't even |
! charged in Specificatien 2 of Charge 1.

1

I The real perpetrator of these Alloged orimes is oither Colonel .
| Miyasald or Genmeral Incue or Cclonel Tada. The evidence is conflieting
| 28 to who the principal in the first degree was, Instead cf charging
| the real criminal the judge advcecate charges Nakamura, Kokubo and

| Nagatomo as "acting with Miyasaki, Aritsune, doceased, «-- did, on or
* about, September 4, 1944" and in Sepeification 2, Nakamura "acting with
other members of the armed forces of Japan, === on er about Decomber 29,1
144" .

"The distinction between principals and acgossories apnlies to

it statutory felonies, as mell ns to felonies at ecmmon law unless the
statute shcwe a contrary intemt," Marshall & §ldck, A Trontise gng_tm

Lav of Crimeg 4th Edition, 1940, Sec, 157, eiting Reg. v. Tracy,

Mod, 30, Com v. Carter, % Ky. 527, 23 S,W.344, 15 Ky Law Rep. 253,

We would like tc h ve the views cf the judge advocate as to whether
there 1s any distinction between pricipals and accesscries in the "law
and customs of war" which he has in mind whon he charges thess accused
with killing the three Americans and Charlie Smith alias James. What

does the judge advocate say is tho intent of article 23(c) of the Hague
Conventicn of 19077

Thcugh the English tramslation of the Hague Ccnvention is in zene-
ral believed to be correct no translation can always give the meaning
of the original with entire accuracy, so in case of a dispute as to the
meaning of article 23 the French text must be accepted as ccntrelling,
We hcld that Article 23, Hague Convention never intended to punish
individuals and certainly mere aiders and a“ettors were not deemed to
be within the artiels,

"In sractice, however, the distinetion between the principal and
the accessory is important, except where the law has been changed by
statute, Thus, at common izm, an indietment must charre a person cor-
rectly as princival or accessory, acecrding te the facts, On an ine
dictment charging ome as nrineipal there ean he no sonvicticn on evis .
| dence showing that he was merely an accessory (citing People v Legon, ;

99 N.Y, 210, I.N.E, 673, . See Also Com v Di Stasio, Mass, 8 N,E,, (2d) I
923,) and vice versa." citing Rec v. "inifred, 1 Leach C.C. 515; Reg. v '
Srown, 14 Cox C.C, 144."

The judge advocates speak much of the common law of intermational
crimes, Do they know and have they infcrmed the commission that:




"At eommcn lavw an accesscry cannct be t#led, without his consent,
until the guilt cf the prineipa) has been legally ascertained by a cons
vietion or cutlavry, unless they are tried together, and then the jury

if they are satisified of his guilt, then as to the accessory." = eiti
Fost, C.". 361; Com V. Phillips, 16 Mass. 423; 422; Cor V Knapp, 10
Pick (Mass,) 477, 30 An, Dec. 534; Starin v People, 45 NiY. 333,

must be charged to inquire just as to the guilt of the rrinecipal, arﬂ,+‘

If a man 18 indiéted as accessory tc twe of mote, Ald only cne hap
been convioted, he may be arraigned, tried, and convicted as accessory
to that cne, but not as accessory tc al', Stoops v Corn, 7 Serg. # R
(Pa.) 41, 10 Am. Dec. 4B2,

Where the principal was ccnvieted by verdicet or confessed and had
his clergy before judgment, the accessory mas discharged because it did
not appear judicially that there wns a prineipal, Bibithe's Case, 4

Coke 43b)

If thoe principa) is dead, cr if he is acquitted on his trial, the
accesscry cannct be tried, - eiting Cem ¥. Phillips, 15 Mass. 423.) |

I
Reversal of a judgment against the prineipal operates as a dis- |
charge of the accessory. Marshe's Cnse, 1 Leon 325."

Clark & Marshall, Ibid, Section 158,
So in this present trial the evidence clearly shora that these

three accused vere not nrineinals in soceification 1 of Charge I or
that Hakarura was tho prinecipal in specification 2 of Charge I.

Specification 1 cf Charge I even allegos that these three nccusai,
"acting with Wiyazakl, Aritsune, decensed, then a lieutenant cclenel, |
I.JuAs,"

The prosecution allege Miyazakl is dead. They brought in a
plece cf paper saying heis dead, All the evidence which they intree
duced proved that it was cither lolonel Miyasaki, Genoral Inoue, cy
Colonel Tada whc was the principal in the e#ime allejjed in specifica-
tion 1 of Charge I.

Clark and Marshall, Ibid, define a prineipal as: "A pringipal in
the first dogree is the one whe actually ecmmits the drime, eijther by
his own hand, or by an inanimate nzeney, or by an innccent human agent™
--giting 4 Blackstone Comm, 34; 1 East P,C, 228; 1 Hale P.C. 617,

Nakamura and Kckubo were imnccent human agonts 60 General Incue
and Colonel Miyasaki acecordins to all the ovidenco., An innccent human
agent is a person who 1s not guilty beeause of ignorance of faect,
youth or insanity. See Seetion 161, Ibid, and the following cases
cited in footnote 32, page 208: Reg, V Bannen, 2 Mood. C.C, 309; Pe
v McMurray, 4 Parker Cr, R, (N.Y,) 234; Smith v State, 21 Tex, Appl
107, 130, 17 S.W, 552,

Sano, Giichi, the chief prosecuticn witness testified that Lt,

Colonel Mi was the commanding officer of the South Seas Kempeitall,
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' (Sec answer to Q; 6) and Gotoral Inoue was the commahding offiser of
‘ the Fourteenth Diviuian (answer to Q. 10) and that {:hiar cf Staff to
Goneral Incuo was Colenel Tada (answor te Q. 12)

To Question 30 he answered that Go!l.onul Hlﬂmﬂ told him that
Chief of Staff ordered him tc execute the three priscners cf var at
the division headquarters by the Kempeitdd.

To question 41 he tostified that Commanding Officer Miynzald stood
near the hcle and said, "Bring him here," "He was brought there and n::
| made to sit in front of the hele, Commanding Officor Miyasakl shet h
I in the back of his head with the pistcl he had, from the back," Cop=
| manding Officer Miyazakl ocrdered Captain “ahnurn whe vas at the scene,
\ to eut the next cne, by saying, "C:ptain Nakamura, eut." ....Comranding
Officer IiE:mH ordered Sergennt Majcr Kckube who was at the scene,
"Sergeant ®ajer Kokubo, cut,' .....Commanding Officer Miyazaki said,
'"Kokubo, it hasn't been cut.' And then Commanding Officer Miynzakd wi
his piatal shot this third prisoner two cr three times and killed him,
as I reeall.” |

Sano even teatified that Miyasald gave orders to the guard who |
was watching that particular man and the division headquarters guard
brcmiﬁ tl!;er prisoncr to the hole and made hin it down, (See answer
to Q. 465,

To questicn 77 Sanc testified: "Cém-anding Officer Miyosaki was
nt the scene and he himself was giving the érders and other things."

He testified that it was the usual crder of things and in accor- E
dance with Apparel Regulations of the Japancse Army that Kokubo wore |
his sword, Sano testified to the official Kempeital diary in whick he
entered by crders of Colonel Miyasaki the following:"Three American
aviators mere ordered by the division headquarters to be executed by
the Kempeitai, This vwas performed.”

|
Then Yojima testified he saw n report submitted by the comranding |
officer of the Ksmpeital, Licutenant Colonel Miyasaki, to Division
Commander Inoue (answer to Q. 29). It was a brief report which stated |
that the exeeution of the three aviators h:d been dcne, Soe answer to

Q. 32,

Yajima testified the prisoners were sent te the Kempeitai by
orders of Colonel Tada who crdered, "Then I request the threc vriscners)
be executed," See answer to Q, 45 - he testified that he understood
the pristners werc béing sent to the Kempgital to be executed,

Yajima testified that Miyasaki had a duty to perform to exceute
the prisonors in his answer to the nert to the last question,

The evidence all shows that the principals are not rn trial here,
i The prineipals are eithor Colonel Tada or as alleged, Lieutenant Co

| Miyasalkd vho actually committed the erime, Licutenant Colonel M

I killed two of tho three prisoners and killod the third by an innccent '
| human agent, Nakamura, according to Sano's testimony, Miyasaki order
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Kokubo %o sut cne but Miyasaki shct this priscner himself several ti.-+
and Jdlled him, |
-In his statement Nakamura tecstified he was cnly a pavm. He was
afrajd of Coleonel Miyazaki, Naokamura is not guilty because cf ig- ,
nerance of fact: He nas never tcld by Miyazaki that the exoeution was
anything but lawful, Nakamura askod why the priscnors were to be oxes=|
cuted and was told it was by orders cf the Division Commander. Miya= |
saki, if ho kmew the excoution wasuhlawful, was a principal and is
guilty as o principal in the firat degreoe uinma he procured the commise
sicn of tho executicn of one prisoner by Naksmura who was an innocent
human agent, ignorant cf tho faet that the execution was unlawful,

What is said ahéut Nakamura, an officer, is true to a much greater
extent as to Kokubo, HNakamura mwas crdered to bring aleng a couple of
Kempeis and sc crdered Kokubo to come along.

At the scene of the execution, Lieutenant Colonel Miyogzaki
ordered Hckubo direct to dut. Not satisfied with ordering Kokubo, an |
innocent agent to cot, Miyazaki himself shot the prisoner several i
times, So whatever Kokubo did ho was cnly an inncoent agent ignorant |
of the fact that tho execution might be unlowful,

Then we have the third accused, Nagatome, Nngatome althcugh he
was ordered to ccme along by Nakamura wnes nover told why or that there
wns to be an execution. He was certainly an innocent human agont, ig=-
norant of the fact of the exeeution, ignorant because of his youth :
about lawful exccutions ordered by Diviséon Headquartors. Nagatome
was cnly an enlisted man and in the Japanese Army the Commanding Gene-
rol didn't as a matter of fact take cnlisted men into his confidence
about why he did things., WNeithor did lieutenant Colonels, So nelther
Gencral Inoue or Lieutenant Colonel Miynzaki told Nagatome why there
~as an erxcoution and sinee thoy hadn't told Nakamura and Kokubo they |
too didn't know. '

|

Nagatome did take the witnoss stand, The rocord shews be desired)
to take the stand as withess in his own behalf., Nagatome not only :
denied all the allegaticns such as that he "=4lfully, felonicusly, .
with premeditation and malice aforethought, and mithcut justifiable
cause, assault, strike, kill and cause to be killed, by beheading,with
swords, and by shooting with firearms" but he absclutely denied that
Kokubo ever gave him any ashes to hcld er that he held any ashes during
the emecution, See his amswer to question 17: "M44 you not receive
something from scmecne at the sceno?” Answer: "Ne, I did not. Whem
I was questioned by the interpreter at Sugame Priscn I was akked, "You
were handed by Sergeant Major Kokubo the remains of Sergeant Ikushima,!
I replied, I was not because I was never handed such a thing. Furthery
more, I have testified to this effect in my statement which I made in
Sugamo,

We will pot admit that Nagatome did anything at this exeetbdion,
Q. 16: "Yhen you went to the scene did you do anything at the scene?™
Answer: "] did not do anything,®
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As he tostified ho was sick that day, he was valking around in the

yard, resting as it werc from his 117ness, and Lt. Nakamura,whc had
been orderod by Colenel Miynzaki to send some Kempel men to the exee
cution, happenaed to see hin and because tho few Kempels attached to the
organisation were cut on patrcl he ordered Na~atome tc "eome .along,."

Negatome was never tcld why ho should corme along, He replied to the |
itﬂgﬁ advoecate's ?mnmn that he was a guard that day by saying, |

P

Angwer to Q. 34:) "I seem to recall that he said, "@uard them."

| But remember all three prisoners werc blindfclded and tied and .
holding the 1ines with which the prisoners mere tled mere three guards f

| from the division headquarters, one for each prisoncr and in addition

|

|

thero was at ‘east cne honecommissioned officer and cne cfficer from
divistontheadquarters. So Nagatcme without any weapon or even a club
couldn't have boon & guard, Nakamura having no heart for the execu-
tion in his simnlc way went through the motions of complying with
Miyagaki's orders to have scme Kempeis there by ordering Nagatome eveh
4if he were sick to come aleng.

| What e trick of Fate it mas that Nagatome should have been aightpd
| by Naknmura that day walldng arcund in the yard getting a 1ittle sun-

shine to holp him as he thcught to recover from his illness, Purely
by acoident a mere chance that he was scon by Nakamura and Nakamura
orders to send somc Kempois to the execution, Nagatome was crdered t
an execution and today Nagatome finds himsclf on trisl fer the murde
of all threoc of tho nriscneors.

The judge advccates rely on civil cascs entirely vhen defining
murder. They oite the Fedoral rule as to a principal, feund in Sec.,
332 of U, S. Criminal Code. This rule is: "Whoever directly comrit
any act constituting an offense Adefined in any law of the United Statcs
or aids, abets, counscls, commands, induces, or vrocures its commis-
sion is a orincipal (R.S., 5323, 5427; March 4, 1909, c. 321, U.S. Gﬂ#
Annotated; Title 18,

Then instead of trying thesc accused for statutery or common
1aw murder they rely cn the vague and undefined phrase "this in vio-
lation of the law an? custcms of mar,”

We asked for a bill of narticulars as to vhat was meant by this
phrase and what specifically mas the Jar amd what customs vere vio-
lated by those three accused. e were told that in due time we would
be told, The prosccution rested; the defense offered evidence; |
. the defonse rested; the accused made porscnel statements; the trial .
| is practically over and the accused are still at a loss as te ~hat '
| the "law and customs of war" are vhich they are in the upaniﬁ.untiunF
| charged with having viclated, 8till thero is only the wague rofer- |
ences to the Haguo Convention and the Genevn Red Cross Convention,

They even go to a textbook which we think is a perfectly good
toxtbook,.and Clark & Marshall in the Law of Crimes for a definition




of a sccond degree prineipal and quoting from this taxtbock they mould)
have the commission boliove that Nogatome is a second degrec principal
but mind you they dc not soc charge him. Nogatome is charged as wil- |
fully, feloniously, with oremeditation and malice aforethcught, and
without justifiable camse, nssault, strike, kill and cause tc be kill
by beheading with swords and by shooting vwith firecarms,---, three un-
armed Amorican priscnors of war..." If Nagatome 1s tc be found guilty
as a second degree principal he shculd be sc charged and it sheuld be
proved and it should be oroved vho tho principals were,

But let us read this section 167 of Clark and Marshall which the
jodge advocate relies upon to cﬁnﬂ.ﬁt Nagateme of beheading and sheoting
these three Americans. We read: "“o render cne guilty as principal
in the seeond degreec, he must in sore way participate in the commissio
of the cffense, by aiding or abetting the nctunl perpetrator of the de
Mere presence at the time the offense is committed, and acnuiocsence or
failure to moke any effort to provent ites commission, or to approhond
the offender, is not enough," - citing Reg v Coney; 82 B.D. 534; I
People V. Woodward, 45 Cal 293, 13 Am. Rep., 176; Lawrenco v State
68 Ga, 289; Peopie v Barnes, 311 I11, 559, 143 N.E, 445 (riding in an
automobile known tc be stolen does not render ono party to theft); State
v Malory, 44 Iowa 104; Levering v Com. 132 Ky, 666; 117 8.9, 253, 136
Am St Rep, 192, 19 Am. Cas, 140; Caroy v State, 194 Ind, 625, LUANE, |
22; chﬂm ¥ Et'ﬂtl“' 43 Tex Cr, R, 323 65 8., m; % Am, 5t, REF.
874; Connaughty v Stato, 1 Wise. 159, Am, Dec, 370,

UIf Md be presont," said Sir Mathew Hale, "and not aiding or
abetting tc tho felony, he is peither principal nor accessory.....

Mere mental approval is not enough to remder cne an aider and
abettor."” (citing De Gregerio v United States, 7 Fed (24) 295,)

Section 168, Clark and Marshall, Ibid, reads, "To be guilty as a
prineipal in the second degree, a eriminn’ intent is necessary...

"When o specific intent is necessary to constitute a particular
erimo, ono cannot be a principal in the socond degree tec that narticu-
lar coffense unless he entortains such an intent, or knows that the
party actoally doing the act entertains such intent."™ Footnote 55
reads: "In order to convict a person of murder in the first ‘egree,
as an alder and abettor, it must be shown that he knew cr believed
that the person who comrmitted the homicide intended to KA, or that
he himself acted with such intent." Savage v State, 18 Fla, 909, And
see, as to assault with intent to kill, State v Hickam, 95 Mec. 322,
B8.5.N. 252 6 An, St. Rop. 54. Mayhem: State v Taylor, 79 V&, 1, 39
Atl. 447, 42 L,R,A, 673, 67 Am, St. Rep. 648,

Nagatcme cannot be either charged or found guilty 2s an accessory
before the fact because "The accessery must be neither nctually or
constructively present when the offonse is committed," and there must
be some martieipation by way of procurement, command, or counsel, Mer
kmovledge that the offense is to be comritted, or ewen mental approval
is not enough," = Section 169, C) rk & Marshall, Ibid,

Little wonder the judge advocate doesn't want to inform these
accused vhat lav and customs of wnr they aro charged with having vic=
lated, He lmons full -¢ll that there is no internaticnal law, no
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Convontion cr Goneva Priscner of ¥ar Convention which prowides for
punishment of individunls for violation of thesc conventions.

Let the judge advocate produce the statute vhich imposes punishment
upon individuals; let him show the statute nhich imposes a punishment
upon the person alone vhe actually comrits the act constituting the
offenso and not in general terms upon those whe are guilty cf the of-
fense,

More atders and abottors will not be doemed to bo within the act |
where the punishment is imposed by statute upon the person alone who
actually commits the acts ccnstituting thoe cffense, See Stamper v '
Com., 7 Bush (Ky) 612 and Soc, 157, Clark and Marshall, Ibid. In
Section 168 of Clark and Marshall, Ibid, the rule is: "To be guilty |
as a orincipal in the scecnd degree, a eriminal intent is necaessary."

Thare has been ne showing that Nagatome had any malice and malice
cannct ho implied oxcopt, (1) ™when there is an actual intent to in-
flict great bedily harm,"(2) ""hen an act is wilfully done or a duty
wilfully omitted, and tho patural tondency of the act or omission is ¢
cause death cr groat bedily harmm," Section 236, Clark % Marshall, Ib!.F

"The distingusihing characteristic cf murder is malice afore~
thought.” eiting 4 Blackstone 198; Com v York, 9 Mcte.(Mass) 93 43 !
Am, Doc. 373. i

See all the learned article, Perkins' MA Resexamination of Malice|
Aforethought® 1934, 43 Yale L.J, 537."

Wihen it does not exist, the hemicide eahnot be murder," Clark |
& Marshall, Ibid, Sec, 237, pages 287-288, r

But the judge advccates go oven further in theoir scramble to cone
vict Nagatome, an innocent bystahder, of murder. They say as long as
he was there ho is guilty of murder because he is responsible for the
nurder becaouse of nonfoasance,

But we will again quote fronm Clark & Marshall, Ibid, Sec., 262(c),
page 332: "To render cne responsible for & homicide because of mere
nonfeasance, ho must have omitted scme legal duty which be omed to de~
ceased, Fallure to perforn acts of merey cr mere mora) obligaticns is
not enough." - citing 1 Wharton Criminal Law, Sec, 329, 330; State v
Reitse, 86 N,J,L. 407, 92 Atl 576; Barrell v State, 18 Tex 713; Connaut
ghty v Stato 1 Tisc 159, 69 Am. Doc., 372,

'_heru must have been a legal duty, and it must have been cming
to the deceased," citing Reg. v Smith 11 Cox, C.C. 210,

Thus in Rex v Smith, 2 Car. P, 449, it was held that cpe was not
guilty of homicide, in nllowing his idiot brother living in the same
housc to die of want, it not aprearing he had assumed any duty tc sup-
port him,"

L]
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"It 1s also necessary, in cases of this character, that the mcoused
shall have kmown of the facts malking it his duty to aet, for a man
cannot be said to neglect to perferm a duty unless he knows of the
condition of thinga which requires performance at ‘is hands", siting
State v Smith, 65 Me. 257: Jestrup v Com., 123 Ky. 95, 93 5,¥W, &6,
29 Ky Law Rep 519, 6 L.R.A. (N.S.) 685, 124 Am. St. Rep, 316, ==
Clark & Marshall, Ibid, Sec, 262, pages 332-3,

And why am I so sure that these threc smccused are all innocent
human agents? First because of their cultural backsreund. You rea-
lize that Japanese have a different cultura! beckground and I say
| hecause of this background they are innccent. Second because of their
fl religion, Their religion isn't something that can be explained in so
i many words, It taught them to obey. Third, their military training
| and position in the Japanese military organization, Blind obedicnce
I and ungquestioned compliance was the crder of t'ings in the Japanese
|l arty, Bedcause of these things there could be no criminal intent on
| the part of Nakamura, Kokubo, or Nagatome. This case clearly and
defindtely is a case cf the prineipal, Miyazaki, actusnlly committing
a crime by his ocwn hand, he shot tmo of the three accusod and thap
comnitted it by innocent human agents, Poor distracted Nakamw'a,
| naver very Btrong mentally, innocently cbeyed the orders of Miynzaki
I ip both instances, in the case cf the aviator. and in the case of
the nlleged Englishman., We say alleged Englishman benanse no one
tostified that the viatim was Charlie Smith alias James and an Englishs
| man mfcept by way of hoarsay testimony to which me objected but under
SCAP rules Hearsay —as allowed to -rove a controverted fact, Lieus
tenant Sano 1s typienl. He believed he was English because some one
told him and so did Ajiocka, So when Miyazakl ordered things to be
done Nakamura cbeyed innccently and so did Kokubo, HNagateme as
innocently went along. He thought he was meant to be a guard but he
had nothing to guard with., How naivel So it was with tnese accused,
naive beyond any words, Innccent human agents best deseribes them,

So as to specifi:etion one of Charge I, Nakamurn ana Kokubo are

. not guilty as »rineipals but mere only innocont human avents to Lt,

i Colonel Miyasaki. According to Clark and Marshall, Lew of Crimes,

' Section 159, Nakamura and Kokubo must be acquitted because they were
not principals,

Nagatome didn't de anything and sc he must be arquittod of murder. !
We will agree with the judge advocates that ¥iyazaki, Aritsune,

deceased, was the principal, Miyasalkd procured the executicn by

two innccent arents, Nakamura and Kokubo, and Miyaszalkd is therefore

hinsclf guilty as the principal in the first degree. (Sec scotion

! 164, Clark and Marshall, Ibid,) None of these three accused are

acccasorica before the fact, nll having been present rhen the cffense

I was committed, Tho evidencc shows Miynszakl the principal is dead,

l The commission should sequit all three of theec innocent agost of

the erime of murder as alleged in specificaticn 1 of Charge I.




Then thore is specification 2 of Charge I. Nakamura is charged -
that he did "wilfully, feloniocusly, with premeditation and raliece
aforethought and without justifiable cause, strike,kill and cause to

klled by shcoting with fircarms-----cne Charlie Smith, alias James,
an unarmed British neticnal.

Licutenant Sano tcstified as to the nalismelity of Smith but
admitted, in asnwer to Q. 22 on ths fifth day 27 tho trial Lisutenant
Sanoc saild, "By naticnality I mean that tiuc person residing in that
coeuntry and rogistered in that ccuntry." To Q. 24 Sano said he knew
Charlie Smith wa=s rosiding in the Palor I-landa an?! thiot he was |
married to a native woman, i

Then the prosccusion brcught inu Ajlicki vio hod bean tried and ftun&
guilty of this same offenso for vhich halnmurn 48 new Laing tried. |

Ajicka testificd In ansver to Q. 24 as tollomwa: "1 think it was -
cn the 28th cor 29th of Leceaber, 1944. OCaptonin Naksmura easc Sronm
Shisui-gan and said, "He will be executed by orders cf the comnanding
officer of the headquarters,!----and Captain Naikamura ~rderad Yanada
tc shoot."

In answer tc Q. 25 he said: "€aptain Nekamura ordered Yamada %o
shoot and thon he mwas executod. That is 1.7

A8 we have pointod out proviounsly Miyazaki the commanding officor
is in this incident again thc principal., He it was who actnally ecp=
mitted the erime by Nakamura, wnhc wns but an innocent hurarn agart.
See Scetion 159, Clark & Marshall, Ibid.

Ajiocka and Yamada ware both merders of the Kerpeltal and the com=
nanding of ficer of the South Seas Kempoitsl was It. Col. Fiyaszakl.
Nakamura was but the cfficor-in-charge of a fea men cnlled a detach=
ment, HNakamura had no melice toward this man Cherlie Sm'th., The
record fails tc show awyr westirony that Nakamura hid any malice, or
that he did this v+1ilfully

The only evidence prodaced by tie vrosecation is tnc testimony of
Ajicka that Yamadr dd ghoot on the crders of Makamura, Bakamura
we say mas cnly an innccent numan agent of Celonel Miyazakd,

The judge advocate was rizht, Nokamura should not have been
tried for this erime. Mi'azaki vas tho prineipal and should be
charged wilh the erime. According to the plece of paper introduced
into evidence Miyrzaki is den.

Acquit Nakamura of the erime cof nurder as he is chargod in speci=-
fication 2 of Charge I, He was but an innocent human cgent. The
evidence introduced by the prosecution shews it is the same offense
for which Ajioka and Yamada were convicted. They too were both
ready to tostify but only Ajioka was called ne a witness,
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Nakamura actoed only boecause ho was compelled to act because of
threata on the part of Niyasald to de him grievous bodily harm if he
refused, These threats were present throats and Nokamura knor full
well the uarelenting Japanese discipline, His fear was well grounded|

The crder was to Nakamure apparently lawful and Nakemura in good |
faith had reascnable grounds tc think he was justified tc act, parti-|
eularly when threatoned with rrievous bedily harm, |

The judge advocates are not satisfied with trying Nakamura for
murder but charge him with failing tc act and failing tc protect the |
very persons whom they charge him -ith murdering, |

Case after case o hear about the Yamashita case and se in this I
case tho judge advecatesays find Nakamura gullty because an arry |
court found Yomashita gullty. %e “ave peinted eut the great differ- |
ence in tho Yamashita case before amd hesitate to de so again be- |
cause they arc sc obvious, Yamashita was n genoral, Nakamura was |
but a first ldeutenant and had a snall detachment of military ocliee, |
some six cr soven men and a handful of assistante. Miyasaki was the
comnanding officer. In the aviator case, specification 1, Miynzakl
stood over Nakamura and forced him to o the act. Poor 1ittle Naka-

mara, cnly an innccont human agzent thinking it was right te chey did
act,

Accordin: to ocur standards of morality we say Nakamura had a
duty to protect., He didn't mevr abeut cur moral standards., Inter- '
national law imposed ne such duty upen him, particularly when his |
commanding officer and the commanding officer of the Japanese mili- |
tary police in the Palau Islands stcod there with a smoking pistol
in his hand havinz just ldlled one of the three priscners and ordered,
"@ut." Whon Kokubo failed to cut Miyaszald fired five cr six shcts
into the third priscner. ™here was the duty to protect? Who had the |
meral duty to eontrol when the ecmranding officer mas executing and |
crdering others tc execute? |

If there was any suc" “uty imposcd by our ecde of morals Nakamura
didn't knov it., "Failurc to perform acts of marcy or more meral
obligations is not enough" (Sec., 262; Clark & Marshall, Ibid)®* The law
doesn't punish fer violation of moral codes. : ‘

The Yamashita case is pocr lavw, as opplied to Nakectura, It vas -
decided when feelint was runnins high and yet there are two strong
Aissenting opinions by twc Suprome Ccurt justiees cn appeal. But
no matter how poor the law of the Yamashita case as applied to Hakaw
mura or any other case is,there will always be som~thing to peg other
cases upon it and say, "This is our »recedent."” It woul? seem that
there should be another case than the Yamashita cpse especially when
that ease darried two strcng dissenting opinions. It is the Auty of
lawyers to show distinctions and there are plenty between the Yamae
shita case an® the ecase c¢f Naokamura,

# « "Mhere must h“ahmnnlognldutruﬂ it must have been owing
to the deceased" = Sqe, 262, Ibid,)

"RR(19)"




So even in the Charlde Smith case the duty Nakomura owel was a
legal duty to earry out the principal's orders, betause Nakamura was
bt an immocent human agent. ‘

Te ask that this dade be Aecided aceording tc law, Let us not
punish these ncouled bocause their meral standards were different
than ours, Let us nct punish them betause they were innceent human

agents.

A orime has been committed ycu say, and scmeone must be punished,
: Agreed, Punish the principal not the innccent human agents of the
| principal,
|

| &

etfully,

LSON

L ]

!|_ Commander, U.S. H;vu.l Reserve,
- Counsel for the Accused,




CLOSING ARGUMENT FOR THE PROSECUTION
IN HE NAKAMURA, ET AL,
Celivered by

Lieutenant Commander Joseph A. Regan, U.5: Navy

May it pleuse the commission:

Defense counsel has gpoken for many minutes. although a closing
argument 1s expected to be an exposition on the evidence educed throughout
the trisl, much of his argument has been on matters already ruled upon by
| the commission, The question of challenges hds beén decided; The cuestion
| of whether or not Miyasaki is dead has alr been passed uptn, and let
| the Judge Advocate assure defense counsel that the Office of the Direetor

of War Crimes, Pacific Fleet, has satisfied itself that Miyasaki is dead.
| As in past times, defense counsel attacks the prinedipel prosecution wit-
[ ness, in the rresent gase Sano. There have been some small inconsisten=<
cies in Sano's testimeny but the mere passage of time == the arime sccured
in 1°44 == would explain the minor differences. On the main issuec of this
oose, the mmrder of the three prisoners and the circumstances surrounding
| their death, Samo is uncontradicted,

The mere faot that defense coumsel argues that the execution is legal
does mot meke it so. The anology between the accused here eand a hangman
is poor., No official hangman ever acts until he has been shown that the
execution ordered is a proper one » and one ordered after a trial, There
is no evidence in this record that the vietims were ever given a trisl,

In faet, all the evidence tends to s ow that they were not.

Today there is no distinction between accessory and prineipal. =
See Section 41, Naval Courts & Boards. Thus we have charged all three
acoused as principals and the evidence showa that they were principals,

Gmtﬁry to the statements of dounsel, the record contains nothing
showing that Neakemura wos ever threctened by Miyasaki. Nekamra hints at.
this in his statement but his unsworn statement is not evidence.

The defense counscl in tHeir arguments seem to have misrend the
charges and specifications in the rresent case, for they deal with each
accused as though he were being tried for a separate murder, In specifi-
ection 1 of Charge I we allege that all ooccused participatod in the murder
of three unmarmed American priscmers cf war, We have proved that were
21l members of a common executiod party and are all eouvally responsible
for the viclente used upon the prisoners, In specifisation 2 of Charge I
only Nakamura is being held acsountable for the murder of Charlie Smith,

|| With respect to the speeific erguments of counsel for both Nalkamure
and Kokubo, they might better have been mode after the findings of the
commission, for they are definitely arguments in mitigetion rather than
in of the tion that Nekamura and Kokubo are mot
1ty of the e to which they have already confessed, In the ocase of




Kokubo, it has been argued that because Miyasaki found it necessary to
fire additional bullets into the head of the airman that Kokubo had used
his sword upon, Kokubo is thereby fiot guilty of murder. Kokubo is guilty
of murder because he was a member of the execution party and also because
he actually did use a weapon upon an airman, We have his econfesaion in
support of this and we have the wmeontradicted testimony of Lieutenant
Sano; and we also have the uncontradieted testimony of Nagatome brought
out on cross-examination, With respeot to the contention that as Kokube's
blade di4 not instantly ecause death he should be released from responsi-
bility, we call the commission's attention to Seetion 225 of Wharten's
"Criminal Law", page 340, which says, "Where onc assailant strikes a blow
which is not fatal and a confederate follows it up with a fatal blow, both
are principals in the homieide." Thus Kokubo 1s a prineipal in the homi-
eide, And as Mr. Kenny advised the commission, this homieide, because it
was done intentionally and without justifiable emuse, is murder, Kokubo,
although he did not take the stand, like Nagatome, who did take the stond,
would have this commission believe that he nctually did not know why he
woa to accompany the execution party., He did not know before they left
che Kempeitai what was going to be done with the three boymd and blind-
folded victims and yet he felt it necessary to secure the ashes of Corpor-
ai Ikushima and to take these ashes along with him. If he did not know
shat he was going to partieipete in an execution, where was there any
necessity of bring a morale builder, the ashes of Ikushima, with him?

All parties involved in this casc Inew when they left the Kempeitai that
the aviztors were going to be killed, True, in the carce of Nagntome we
were uneble to show by definite evidence that he kmew before he boarded
the truck what the end result of the journey was to be, but the commis-
sion is justified in believing from all the facts of the case and in
spite of his deninl that he lofew that the aviators were to be evecuted,
Again, as pointed out by Mr. Kenny, if Nagatome didn't kmow when he
boarded the truck he surely knew when he left the truck., Nagatome is
guilty because he acted as a guard and omce having been given the duty

he never relinguished it uhtil the execution was over,

The fact that there were additional armed men from Diviaion Head-
quarters who alsoc acted as guards in no way denies the guilt of Nagatome,
Poasibly at some later date these additional puards may be brought to
trial for their nartiecipaticn. But merely becouse there were additional
guards does not absclve Nagatome from his guilt, He aided and abetted
and assisted this exceution. He went along as ao guard and for any other
duties that he might be assigned at the sceme, In spite of his denials,
we know from the testimony of Sano that he did have an additional duty at
the scene -- he relieved Kokube of the ashes of Ikushima in order that
Kokubo would be unhampered when he swung his sword against the wietim,
Any degree of nctive partiocipation in A murder is sufficient to warrant
an individuel's being held as a prineipal, While the commission be-
lieve that Nagatome used no vioclemce, and we have never claimed that he
did, that therefore his participation was alight, let the commission take
this into consideration when it comes time to sentence tome but not
be mislead into believing that his actions did not actively mark him as

a participant,

The commission has paid oclose attention to the testimony in this
hﬁﬂd%hunpﬂthmthtmtﬂfmmm.




Once again the commission has been foreed to hear the minority
opinion in the Yamoshita ¢ase, In the Yamashita cage one of the minority
opinions mede mention of the f-et th-t Yamashita was unable to econtrol the
operctions cof his men bedause the American had ruined the eommhicatioms
between his headquarters and his cutlying companies., That is not the case
here, In all instances involving the second charge, Nakamura wes precent
with his men end he did not eontrel them. Iutarnatinnnl law recuires that
the commnding officer exereise control cver men under his eommand, There
was nothing here to prevent Nakamure from exercising his control end he
failed teo do so., Kokubo was his man, as wos Nagntome. In both instances
through his orders Americans died. .Ajioka was his man as was Yamadn and
throuth his orders Charlie Smith dfed and Nakamura should be held to have
violated the law and customa of war ir not uuntrullinz or protecting the
evintors end Charlie Smith,

ir. all the arguments of defense counsel the question of superlor
ce'iry has been used, They have L1lamed Miyasaki and Inoue for the acts of
bo=gmuna end his subordinates. The prosecution admitted and in faet in-
tr .duced evidence that the original idea of the execution of the aviators
cage from Tada and the idea for the execution of Charlie Smith ocame from
Miyazaki, However, in no war erimcs trial has the defense of superior
crders been recognized as a legitimate and eveulpating defense, The fact
1ant there were supcrior orders goes to the degree of punishment which
shruld be ossigned individuals rather than the ruestion of their guilt or
innocence. The prosecution, as my fellow judge advoeate has pointed out,
is under no obligation to rrove everr word in the charzes and sneecifioa-
tions beyend a reasonable doubt but only the incidents of the corpus
delecoti, Thc prosecution in this cmse has proved beyond a reasonable
doubt that Nakamura murdered the aviators and Charlie Smith and that Ko-
kubo and Nagatome aided Nakamura in murdering the first three victims,

On that day in September their v riocus illnesscs and their various
feelings of forebeding and thelr sympathy for the vietiwe did not prevent
them from murdering the victims and we ask that they now be found guilty
of thelr erimes,

Respectfully,

T
Lieutenant cn-nndur, U.5. Navy,

Judge Advocate,
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Examination of NAKANURA, Kasue.
(a) Your serial 206 of 7 Jammary 1948,
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Report

Elace of Registration:
Tokyo-to, Setagaya-ku,
Kamiuma-machi, Itchome,
875-Banchi.

H
Okayama-ken, Maniwa=-gun,
Yuhara=machi, Oaza-Yumoto,
115=Banchi.
Care of NAKATA, Massatane.
MIYAZAKI; Arltsune.
Born 6 October 1901.

On 24 January 1947, Detective TANJI, Akira, and myself were ordered by
Investigating Officer YUSHIDA, who is on duty with Usaka Branch of Legal
Section, GHQ, SCAP, to arrest and bring in the sbove person. Even though
we arrested him in his room at the above mentioned place of residence about

nine-thirty in the morning on the twenty-sixth day of the same month, he was
'ﬂ'alﬂ: in bed and, as communications were bad from his place of residence, we

made preparations to bring him in on the followlng day, the twenty-seventh.
About seven o'clock in the morning on the twenty-seventh he watched for a
moment when the guard wasn't watching, took potassium cyanide internally in
the latrine and finally died.

After the arrest I had to be away from the above mentioned person ﬁH
M from time to time to send a wire to Osaku-fu and to make arrange-
ments for an automobile to go to Usaka. About eleven o'clock on the night
of 26 January I asked Detective TANJI to stand guard and returned to the
barracks. Up to this t I recall ring the following story from the
above mentioned person « MNIYAZAKL/.

Following Story:

"is for being a war criminal, since I committed quite a few ﬁH. war
crimeg/ when I was in NANKING, There is no escape from being put to death
as &8 war oriminal for these.

"] know French very well, but I don't understand much English,

"As Palau is written on this warrant for arrest, this is probably some-
thing to do with the time I was on Palau,

"Since I took good care of the people living there when I was on Palau,
there were absolutely no illegal amcts. As I still have the local newaspapers,
these will be proofl

"If it is something to do with Palau, it did happen that in order to
make it look like the person who killed a prisoner had died, they killed a
local inhabitant, camouflaged the corpse, and then, as they said for the
kempeitai to aprrove it, the kempeitai aprroved it. If it is something te
do with Palsu, thet is probably the affair,

"Exhibit 3(1)"
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nStaff Officer TADA directed this affair. Staff Officer TADA was an
evil man. He was a fellow who put all the responsibility on the kempeitai
if any of his arrangements went awry.

"I was formerly a subordinate of TOJU. I established my base at Akasakn
and did quite a bit of work for him."

I recall that he related the story in the above fashlion.

20 October 1947

Osaka=-fu Police Department,
Detective Bureau,
HIRAI, Kyoshi.

According to my conscience, I swear that I have told the truth, con-
cealed nothing and added nothing.

I have testified to the facts within my knowledge and belief,
20 October 1947.
HMI, Kyoahia |

I hereby certify the foregolng to be a true and complete tramslation,
to the best of my ability, of the original document in Japanese.

wdinick F Searragn
| faderick F. Tremayne,

Lieutenant (junior grade),
United States Naval Reserve,
Interpreter,

"Exhibit 3(2)"
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Actual Circumstances of the Execution and Disposal of the Englishman.

Around the latter part of December 194 the Kempel tal was situated at
Shipuizan. The Kempeli detachment had broken up and was together at head-
quarters, I recall that I was a first lieutenant at that time and had
been ordered to be Chief of police affairs. One morning just after
MIYAZAKT, the unit commander, had returned from division headquarters, he
called me to the unit commander's room and gave me the following orders.

He said, "It has been decided that the Englishman who is with the
Gasupan Kempel tal detachment is to be executed. As it 1s an order of
division headquarters, Lieutenant NAKAMURA, go to Gasupan immediately and
have the exscution carried out at the detachment.™

Furthermore, he told me to have Serpeant TAMADA shoot him, that the
place where they killed the Spanish would be best and that you will rot
just leave it up to the commander of the detachment but even though it is
unpleasant you yourself will go to the scene and supervise 1t directly.
He also sald that it was not necessary to pronocunce the sentence of
execution upon the Englishman as he did not understand the language, told
me to phone the debachment commander to dig a hole at once, and called my
attention to many other details,

As for myself, to go to the Gasupan area at that time was dangerous
because air railds were freqient and moreover, I didn't like the Job.
However, as it was an order of the unit commander and since under the “wy
circumstances I couldn't get out of it, their being mo alternative, I
informed the detachment by phone that they were to dig a hole. After
lunch that day I was again called by the unit commander and when I went
to the unit commander's office the unit commander said further, "As there
aren't any air raids now, go quickly," and he cautioned me again about the
details, I left immedistely taldng one auxiliary kempei with me and
arrived at the Gasupan detachment about two or three o'eclock in the after=
noon. I don't think Warrant Officer AJIOKA was there at that time. After
I had waited about ten minutes he came back and said to me, "The hole has
been prepared."™ With thet I informed Warrant Officer AJICEA of Unit
Commander MIYAZAKI's order, Then Warrant Officer AJIOKA immediately gave
orders to the men of the detachment and they made preparations t& gtart
oute After a short while, as Warrant Officer AJIDKA said, "We are ready
to go," I stepped out to lock around. Warrant Officer AJIUKA, Sergeant
YAMADA, one awdliary kempei (HAYASHI, perhaps , the servant
were all out in and also the Englishman idry kemped
I brought with me “‘went together on foot to the top of Gasupan Hill
and looked for the hole which had been dup but could not find it. There=
fore, as there was something that looked like an old air raild shelter about

two meters square which was at the entrance of the jungle, I said to i
Warrant Officer AJIOKA, we it in this hole?® As detachment :
mmwa,%mw YAMADA, "YAMADA, do 4t.®
I recall that Sergeant YAMADA made a grimace and didn't look like he was |
godng to do 1t so Warrant Officer, AJIOKA said again to Sergeant YAMADA,

e e E— T




PYAMADA, do i1t, do 1t." With that Sergeant YAMADA sat the Englishman dm
on the edge of the hole (or perheps he stood him there) and shot him h:fthi !
back of with a plstol., AJIOEA, the others and myself were - -
watching + As he was killed outright by the one shot and foﬂ b

I had the eocldiers bury him,

The Englishman never sald anything and was very quiet.

On the way back in the middle of the hill the one auxiliary kempedl
whom I brought with me and I separated curselves from the detachment and =
returned together. I reported the circumstances to the unit leader at onni
and the unit leader said, "Thank you for ;ml.tr trouble.”

23 July 1947 -

Former Chief of Police Affairs, L |
South Sens Kempel tei. _
Former Kempel tal First Lieutenant, m,',.

NAKAMURA, Kazuoe

into the hole, and since he was definitely dead when we looked from ubﬂﬂp :

<

I hereby certify the above to be a true and complete tranilation to
the best of my ability of the original statement written in Japanese.

= -

-

m F.
Iieutenant (jg), USHR.
Inhrpl‘ﬁh‘l‘c
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pistol, liext Captain DNalemurs cut one of the avietors with a Jepanese sword.

thought of teling the eshes of Sarseent

| Seryeent lNepatome, essistant Fempels, officers enc men of heedcuarterz and
| other units.

l. I do not know where the three American svietors were epprehended.

2. I did not he=r any telk beforehend sbout the execution of the avim=

|
|
I
3. As I wee setting out for the nlece of the execution, Ceptain ‘.!r.krr!llr‘*
red me, "Sergeant lajor Kokubo, come ermed." I knew at that time for the |
=t time ebout the execution of the evistors,

4. At the same tire sg thet, I felt efreid somehow or ‘other. I suddend
IKUSHIIA in order to rié myself of

this fear.

f. A hcle wes glready dug at the place of the execution.

6. The pecnle who haprened to be present et the nlace of execution were
in 11 ebout ten odd persons such &3 Unit Commender, lieutensnt Colonel
liyazeki; Detachment Cormander, Ceptein llekemure; First Iieutenant Seno;

7« The evietors vere blindfolded,

€. Tirst lieutenant Colonel liyezeli shot one of the aviators with a

g, Ceptain lalermara ordered me directly in regerd to the last aviator,

seying, "lolubo, cut.”

7 did not eim and the sword

10, Becauce the blood rushed to my -
] e -4 3 "
g coat end did not cut him,

{TYpe Ui} only hit the collar of the avia

TeEL
+
L

or

24 December 1947

J=/ KOLUBO, Ghi.hiri—_________., ]

T hereby certify the sbove statement to be & true and comnlete trens-
lotion of the originel document in Japenese, to the best of my ability.,
.E., Er‘. ’f
Iietitenant, U. 5. Hevel Heserve,
Interrreter.

L
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| FF12/417-10(2) UNITED STATES PACIFIC FLEET
02=JDl=ro0 COMMANDER JARTIANAS
Seriels fJ‘fL = | r24 APR 1348 -

The military commission, composed of Army, Na end M " B
ufficex:s, in the foregoing cese, by preccpt ﬂn’:-ﬂd ;yn"::m'uﬁr gri?ﬁégﬂTEB
ordered convened November 20, 1947, or es soon thereafter as’hréct;t:ehh
by the Commander Merlanas Area pursuent to his inherent gut!mfity as a
military ?umrm:}ﬁﬁr and the specific suthorisetion of the Commander in Chief
U, 8. Pacific Fleet end High Commissioner of the Trust Territory of the .
Prcific Islande (CinC U, 5. PacFlt serial 0558 of B Mer, 19463 Gcmﬂ':r:r-inn[-.c;
Desp. 2023362 Sept. 1947; CinCPacFlt Desp., 020103Z Oct. 1947; Secliav Desp.
0819462 Oct, 1947; CinCPacFlt Deep, 0923532 0ct.1947). The commission wes
euthorized to teke up thie case as indiceted in the precept. The order for
trial (clmrges and Epecifiﬂeti{}nﬂ} wag issued DHCEH‘:];EI' :'ﬂ.f,; 1547 and served
on the mccused NAKAMURA and KOKUBO on the seme dey; on the accused HAGATONE
on 31 Decenmber 1947. The trial was held under authority of Nevel Courts
' and Boards except that the commission wes authorised by the precept to relax
the rules for navel courte to meet the necessities of the % i1 end to use
the rules of evidence end procedure promilgeted December 2, 1945 by the
Supreme Commender for the Allled Fowers in hie Regulatione Governing the
Triele of Accused War Criminals, and modificetions thereof, as necessary
to obtein justice.

e ———

On pege 1 of the record it is noted thet the commiesion, before its
menbers were sworn, approved & stipuletion, concerning the security of
classified matter, entered into by the judge mdvocate end the defense counsell
Tt does not arpear from the record that the stipulation wes made with the
epecific consent of the accused. "intil & eourt is duly sworn (organized)
nocording to law, it ie incompetent to perform any judicial ect except to
hear and determine challenges apeinet 1ts members.” (Sect. 394, N.Co®E).
Accordingly the action of the commission in eprroving the stipulation was
erroneous, Further when a stipulation is made 1t should be followed by an
affirmntive statement in the record to the effect that the accused acqulesced
in the agreement made by his counsel (GID 1-1942 p. 290), However, here the
stipulation accepted yeloted only to matters perteining to the gecurity of
olpesified materiel and did in no way involve the issues of the case. It
is the opinion of the convening authority that the substentlel rights of
the eccused were not prejudiced. (CMO 2-1943, p. 183).

The record shows thet the gsocused NAKANURA was convicted on two

specificetions of murder and thet the accused KOKUSO was coawy_:.’.c_'eﬁ on one

specification of murder, [ TERAMUTE §nd FOKUE0, in my opinicn, performes
: their acte in vbedience %o superior orders. While their acte were nrut.e‘..ll‘l)%
uthorized in law, it does pot appeer that thelr cond -

unwarrented end una :
in cerrying out thelr orders wWas more severe or apgreveted than the nature

of their acts and orders required.

' Jawful
The commend of a superior neither excuses nor justifies an unia
act but may be given consideration in determining the culpebility of an

5 W7 In view of

ed (Para. 345.1, War Dept. Basic Field Manual, FM27-10).
:i';“m E.iruumtancu; as indicated in the record, the convening suthority
does not believe the culpebility of N and KOKUBO equel to that of

gued the orders, In this connection & review of all
Puds spariers 250 = i t no person has been sentenced to

jous triels in this area reveals tha .
E:::h as Tinally spproved, who wes convicted of murder which he committed
I'i'bhﬂ':tt ageravation while scting in obedience to superior orders,




FF12/A17-10(2) UNITED STATES PACIFIC FLEET
02=JDM-ro COMMANDER VARTANAS

Seriels 7'_4'4'2:

In view of the above two paragrephs and because the convening authorit
believes that the punishment for similar wer crimee should, insofar as
practiceble, be lni*ﬂrr., it is recommended that the Secrntary of the lavy
commite the death sentences of NAFANURA, Kazuo, and KOKUBEO, Chihiro, tc
thet of 1ife imprisonment (Seec. 481, n.C. B, 1~ei‘eru:l

o4 APR 1948

Subject to the above remarks, the prooeedings in the foregoing case of
NAKAMURA, Keguo, KOKUEQ, Chihiro, and HAGATULE, Yoshimori are approved, The
findinge of puilty and sentences ss to the sccused NHAKAMUAA and KOKUBO are
ppproved.
| HAKAMURA, Kezuo end KOXUEQ, Chihiro will be relained in confinement at
the War Criminel Stockade, U. S. Marine Barrecks, Guam, pending instructions
from higher suthority.

NAGATONE, Yoshimori, who wae acquitted, was releesed from arrest and
returned to Jepan.

—

C. h. I-‘Du_dL_.,
Rear Admirsl, U.S. Nevy,
The Commander Marianss Area.
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FF12/017+16(2) UNITED STLTES mm e
02+JDlssh COMMLNDER MLRILNLS A

(In re N/KLMURL, Kasuo, former Pirst Lieutemant, IJL, et al)

R

FIDINGS: Tyo Commission on 27 January 1948 made the fallowing findings:

"Ls to the scoused NLKLMURL, Kaszuot

first specification of the first charge in proved exsopt
mm-mmrm Youhisiud, Ul nm g

not proved.
_The second specification of the first charge _
&nd thet the accused NLKLMURL, Kasuo, is of t: first charge guilty."

"The first specification of the second cherge not proved,
The sccond specificntion of the second charge not proved.

charge proved,
Lod that the accused NLELMURL, Kasuo, is of the second cherge guilty."

PLs to the aocused KOKUBO, Chihiro:
firet specification of the first charge proved in part, proved excep
words 'NLGLTOME, Yoshimori, then a corporal, I-TL,' ‘which words are

proved, -
thntthummlﬂm,mﬂdru,hofthﬂﬂrﬂmldlﬂ‘
to t

he aceused NLGLTOME, Yoshimordi:

g5 EREE

firset spocifiocation of the first charge not proved.

ind thet tho mecused NLGLTOI'E, Yoshimori, is of the first charge not
guilty, and the commission ﬁwl‘ therefore, acquit the said NLGLTOME,
Yoshimori, of the first charge.

ES: The Commission on 27 Iamur 1948 sentenced the acoused rs follo

"The Commission, therefore, sentences him, NLKLMURL, lnm, ta be hanged
by the neck until dead, t:m-t.hirdt of the membors c

"Tho Commission, therofore, sentences him, KOKUBO, Chihiro, to be hanged
by the neck until dead, two-thirds of the membors concurring.”

. 2. On 24 Lpril 1948 tho convening authority (Commander Marisnas),
| subject to certain remarks not horein quoted, took the following action:

s Mo sssthe proceedings in the foregoing erse of NLELMURL, Kasuo, KOKUBO,
f ! Chihiro, and FLG/!TOV'E, Yoshimori are approved, The findings of gﬁ'ﬂw
and sentences ns to the accused NLKLMUR. end KOKUBO are spproved."

"NLKMUR., Xesuo and KOKUBO, Chihiro will be retained in confinement at
the War Criminal Stocknde, U, 5. Morine Barracks, Guam, pending instruo-
tions from higher authority.®

"NLGLTOVE, ‘!M,m'umuiﬁnd,mmn-nm-ﬂ
returned to Jopan,™

m:'m, #6. Navy,
Marianns Lrea .
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